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Dear Members,

DIRECTORS’ REPGRT

Your Directors are pleased to present the 33" Annual Report of the Company and the Audited

Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2022.

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS

¥ In Lakhs) (T 1 Lakh equals T 100,000)

Particulars Standalone Consolidated
2021-22 2020-21 2021-22 2020-21

income

Revenue from Operations 33,741.48 24,275.32 33,741.48 24,275.32

Other Income 498.90 611.01 498,90 611,01

Total income 34,240,138 24,886,33 34,240.38 24,886.33

Total Expenditure * 26,358.06 19,376.09 26,358.06 19,376.09

Earnings Before Interest, Tax, 7,882.32 5,910.24 7,882.32 5,510.24

Depreciation and

Amortization and Exceptional

items

Less: Interest and Depreciation 2,474.49 2,621.79 2,474.49 2,621.79

Less: Exceptional items - - - -

Profit before Tax 5,407,83 2,888.45 5,407.83 2,888.45

Less: Income Tax 1,241.58 779.05 1,241.58 779.05

Profit/(Loss) after Tax 4,166.25 2,109.40 4,166.25 2,109.40

Add: Share of Profit/ (Loss) in

Associates {Net) (Foss) ) ) (0.02) )

ig:gcia?:n cn disposal of i i 3.54

Profit for the year 4,166.25 2,109.40 4,169.77 2,109.40

ﬁdd: Other comprehensive (12.28) 2 02 (12.28) 2.02

neome

Net Profit/(Loss) 4,153.57 2,111.42 4,157 .49 2,111.42

Earnings per Share (Basic) 5.21 .64 3,21 2.64

Earnings per Share {Diluted) 5.21 2.64 5.21 2.64

* Expenses before depreciation and amortization, finance costs and excepticnal items.

2. COMPANY’S PERFORMANCE

During the financial year 2021-22, the Company recorded revenue from operations of
T33,741.48 Lakh, a growth of 39% over the previous year’s revenue of T 24,275,32 Lakh, The
Company’s operating EBITDA from operations stoad at ¥ 7,882.32 Lakhs against that of ¥

5,5910.24 Lakh in previous year.

The Company is operating its four haspitals, in Salt Lake (Kolkata, West Bengal), Agartala
(Tripura), Dum Dum (Kolkata, West Bengal) and Howrah {West Bengal) having a total
capacity of about 556 beds with multispecialty facilities in the brand name of IL.S Hospitals.
All the four hospitals are in smooth operations and have been able to service the community
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during the brutal waves of the Covid-19 pandemic. They were also on the forefront of the
vaccination drives and have vaccinated more than 200,000 citizens in the last year.

3. EXPANSION OF BUSINESS OF THE COMPANY

As a part of expansion plan and business of the Company, The Company has signed a Lease
Agreement on September 17, 2021 for setting up a greenfield hospital in the heart of Ranchi
(Jharkhand), with a capacity of 140 beds. This hospital will be a neighborhood tertiary care
setup providing advance care to the citizens of the state. The hospitat is proposed to be a
long term lease for the land and building with an investment outlay of approximately ¥ 5,000
lakh from the Company. Operations of the hospital in Ranchi are expected to commence in
the year 2025 and it will further strengthen our revenue from operations.

In addition, the Company is exploring various options viz. greenfield, acquisitions to enhance
its bed capacity to 1,000 beds in the next 3-4 years to establish itseif as a preferred
healthcare provider in the eastern part of the country.

4. COVID-19

The CoVID-19 pandemic created a lot of disruptions in the entire world and forced the world
to rethink their way of functioning and we as a healthcare provider were at the forefront of
this disease due to its large effects on the entire population.

All four of our hospitals faced the challenge in the first quarter with respect to the Delta
variant which was quite brutal for the community at large and as healthcare providers we
offered critical care services, home care services, covid testing facilities and patient
consultations,

When the vaccination drive was opened to the private hospitals, ILS Hospitals was one of
the first healthcare chains to provide workplace vaccination by sending teams to various
locations in and around the Kolkata city while also augmenting its facilities in each of the
four hospitals te handte the huge influx of patients seeking rapid vaccinations.

The hospitals at Dum Bum and Howrah were also recognized by Cll and other organizations
as one of the best facilities for providing treatment to covid patients, which reinforces our
belief of providing goed quality healthcare at affordable prices, We proud of the fact that
ILS Hospitals and its team of dedicated professionals were recognized as one of the most
successful Covid facilities in the city of Kolkata,

The management has ensured safety of the entire team by providing them free vaccination,
best available PPE suits, masks, gloves, face shields etc. This led to the team members and
especially their families to be assured of their safety and protection from this disease. ILS
recorded one of the lowest incidents of Covid cases amongst the staff and we are proud of
the fact that we did not lose any of our team members to Covid 19, despite handling large
volumes, which we believe is our single biggest achievement of this financial year.

The entire team of paramedical staff, doctors, administrative staff have been on the
forefront of this once in a lifetime pandemic and have been aptly recognized as Front Line
Warriors by the society. We salute their exemplary dedication and service which has led to
ILS Hospitals living upto the expectation of the community. We have received unconditional
love and support from people from all walks of life on our way to becoming one of the most
trusted hospitals in Eastern India.
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Given the Company’s reputation for neighborhood hospital with the most modern equipment
and team of treating consultants and medical staff, the Company is well positioned to
address the demand for high quality tertiary care in Kolkata, Howrah and Agartala.

3. DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors {“the Board”) at their meeting held on 20t August, 2021 had declared
Interim Dividends on equity shares and compulsorily convertible preference shares (CCPS)
@ 50 % (T 5.00 per share) aggregating to ¥ 8,97,05,000 and @ 8.25 % (¥ 0.825 per share)
aggregating to 3,30,00,000 respectively for the financial year 2021-22.The same were paid
to the shareholders of the Company within the stipulated time.

The Beard of Directors is now pleased to recommend payment of final dividend @ 10% (%
1/- per share) on 7,99,04,286 equity shares fully paid-up of face value of T 10/- each of the
Company for the financial year 2021-22 aggregating to ¥ 7,99,04,286/- distributed to the
shareholders of the Company out of the profits of the Company subject to approval of the
shareholders of the Company in the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Thus, the aggregate dividend for the year 2021-22 will be ¥ 6/- i.e 60% amounting to ¥
16,96,09,286 for Equity Shares and ¥ 0.825 i.e 8.25 % amounting to ¥ 3,30,00,000 for
Preference Shares totalling to payout of ¥ 20,26,09,286/-

6. INITIAL PUBLIC OFFER

The members of the Company at their meeting held on 1% October, 2021 on the
recommendation of the Board of Directors of the Company have approved Fresh issue of
Shares through Initial Public Offer. Accordingly the Company has filed DRHP and the same
has received SEBI Final observations Letter from SEB! on December 29, 2021. The Company
has also received in-principle approval from the Stock Exchanges viz. NSE and BSE. The
Company shall approach the market on the basis of advise from the BRLMs and the market
conditions and is confident of completing this process within the regulatory timetines,

7. CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL

a) Authorized Share Capital

During the year under review the Authorized Share Capital of the Company has been
increased as under:

i, in the Annual General Meeting of the shareholders on September 3, 2021, the
shareholders have approved increasing the authorized capital from ¥
58,00,00,000/- (Rupees Fifty Eight Crore only} divided intc 1,80,00,000
equity shares of T 10/- each and 4,00,00,000 Preference Shares of T 10/-
each to T 100,00,00,000/- (Rupees One Hundred Crores) divided into
6,00,00,000 equity shares of T 10/- each and 4,00,00,000 Preference Shares
of ¥ 10/- each, by creation of further 4,20,00,000 Equity Shares of ¥ 10/-
each ranking paripassu with the existing shares of the Company.

it Further in the Extraordinary General Meeting of the shareholders on October
1, 2021, the shareholders have approved increasing the capital from ¥
100,00,00,000/- {Rupees One Hundred Crores) divided into 6,00,00,000

™
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equity shares of ¥ 10/- each and 4,00,00,000 Preference Shares of ¥ 10/ - each
to T 125,00,00,000 (Rupees One Hundred Twenty Five Crores) divided into
8,50,00,000 equity shares of T 10 each and 4,00,00,000 Preference Shares of
¥ 10 each, by creation of further 2,50,00,000 Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each,
ranking pari passu with the existing shares of the Company.

Further, the board of directors have recommended reclassification of Authorized share
capital subject to approval of shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the
Company {more particularty appearing in the resolution no. 8 of the AGM Notice). Therefore
the preference shares of 4,00,00,000 of ¥ 10/- each which forms part of the Authorized
Share Capital is no more required. The existing Authorized Share Capital which includes Rs.
40,00,00,000 of preference shares be merged with Equity shares and reclassified as
Rs.125,00,00,000/- (One Hundred Twenty Five Crores Only ) divided into 12,50,00,000
equity shares of ¥ 10/- each equity shares.

b} Issued, Paid-up & Subscribed Capital

Buring the year under review there were following changes in the [ssued, Paid-up &
Subscribed Capital of the Company, the details of which is mentioned below:-

i. The Board of Directors at their meeting dated September 13, 2027 have
atlotted benus shares in the ratio of 2:1 for the equity shares held by each
shareholder pursuant to approval of members at the 32" Annual General
Meeting of the Company to those equity shareholders whose names appeared
on the Register of Members on Thursday, 2™ day of September, 2021 being
the Record date, thus increasing the issued, paid up and subscribed capital
from T 57,94,10,000 (Rupees Fifty Seven Crore MNinety Four Lakhs Ten
Thousand only} divided into 1,79,41,000 equity shares of ¥ 10/- each and
4,00,00,000 Preference Shares of ¥ 10/- each to T 93,82,30,000 (Rupees
Ninety Three Crore Eighty Two Lakhs Thirty Thousand only) divided into
5,38,23,000 equity shares of ¥ 10/- each (including of further issue of
3,58,82,000 Bonus Equity Shares of T 10/- each.) ranking paripassu with the
existing shares of the Company and 4,00,00,000 Preference Shares of T 10/-
each.

ii. At the request of the shareholder, BanyanTree Growth Capitat H, LLC, the
Board of Directors have approved conversion of the 4,00,00,000 Preference
Shares of ¥ 10/- each into 26,081,286 Nos of Equity Shares at a price of ¥
13.34 per shares {premium of ¥ 5.34/- per shares), as per the conversion ratio
agreed with the shareholder, thus increasing the issued, subscribed and paid
up capital to ¥ 79,90,42,860 (Rupees Seventy Nine Crore Ninety Lakhs Forty
Two Thousand Eight Hundred Sixty only) divided into 7,99,04,286 equity
shares of T 10/- each,

8. CONVERSION OF COMPANY FROM PRIVATE LIMITED TO PUBLIC LIMITED

Pursuant to approval of members of the Company at the 32" Annual General Meeting of the
Company the status of the Company has been changed from “GPT HEALTHCARE PRIVATE
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LIMITED" to "GPT HEALTHCARE LIMITED" and accordingly the Memorandum and
Articles of Association of the Company has also been modified and fresh Certificate
of Incorporation dated 15% September, 2021 was issued by the Registrar of
Companies, WB.
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9. ADOPTION OF NEW MEMORANDUM AND ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

The Company has adopted new Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association as
applicable to Public Company in place of existing Memorandum of Association and Articles
of Association of the Company. Further necessary modifications in Memorandum of
Association has been carried put twice due to increase in Authorized Share Capital and
conversion of preference shares into equity shares as stated above.

Further the board of directors have recommended alteration of articles of association
subject to approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annuat General Meeting of the
Company for rectification of typographical error appearing in the PAN No. of Mr. Shree Gopal
Tantia {(more particularty appearing in the resolution no. 7 of the AGM Notice) contained in
the “Definition” of Promoters under the head Definitions and Interpretation in clause-4 of
Part-A of Articles of Association,

10, TRANSFER TO RESERYES

The Company has not transferred any amount to the General Reserve Account during the
financial year ended March 31, 2022, the entire sum of profit has been transferred to surplus
of Profit & Loss.

11. CREDIT RATING

The long term credit facilities continue to be rated by Credit Analysis & Research Limited
(CARE) and the present rating of the Company has been improved from BBB (Triple B,
Qutlook: Stable} to BBB+ (Triple B Plus, Outlook: Stable) confirmed on Cctober 27, 2021.

12. CONSQLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT

The Company has sold its entire stake in its associate TM Medicare Private Limited,
Accordingly the said Company ceased to be an associate Company w.e.f. July 1, 2021,

Mowever as required pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act™), the
consolidated financiat statements of the Company and its associate for the financial year
2021-22 is prepared in accordance with the relevant Accounting Standard specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts} Rules, 2014 as
approved by the respective Board of Directors. The Consolidated Financial Statements
together with the Auditors’ Report form part of this Annual Report. Pursuant to the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, a statement containing the salient features of the
financiat statements of the Company’s associate in Form AQC-1 is given in this Annual
Report.

The Annual Report of the Company, containing therein its standalone and the consotidated
financiat statements along with audit reports and the financial statements of the associate
along with the audit report are available for inspection by the Members at the Registered
Office of the Company during working days between 11.00 A M. and 1.00 P.M., Shareholders
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interested in obtaining a copy of the audited financial statements may write to the Company
Secretary at the Company’s registered office.

13. SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

During the year upder review, TM Medicare Private Limited, ceased to be an associate
Company w.e.f. July 1, 2021 as stated above. Further, the Company also does not have any
Subsidiary, Joint venture Company.

14, DIRECTORS™ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Your Directors state that:

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2022, the
appticable accounting standards read with requirements set out under Schedule il to
the Act, had been followed and there are no material departures from the same;

b} the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022 and of the profit
of the Company for the year ended on that date;

¢) the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a ‘going concern’ basis;
P

e) the Directors had laid down internal financiat controls to be followed by the Company
and that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively;
and

f) the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of
all applicable taws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

15. BUSINESS RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has constituted/reconstituted Risk Management Committee in accordance
with Regulation 21 of the Listing Regulations. The Risk Management Committee shall
perform the following functions:

(a) Lay down risk assessment and minimisation procedures and the procedures to inform
board of directors of the Company, of the same;

{b} Frame, implement, review and monitor the risk management plan for the Company
and such other functions, including cyber security; and

{c} Perform such other activities as may be delegated by the Board and/or are statutorily
prescribed under any law to be attended to by the Risk Management Committee.

Apart from the above Company’s management systems, organizational structures,
processes, standards, code of conduct, Internal Control and internal audit methodologies
and processes that governs as to how the Company conducts its business and manages
associated risks. The Company also has in place a Risk Management Policy to identify and
assess the key risk areas which may be accessed at the Company’s website at the tink:
https://ilshospitals.com/investor
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The Board of Directers monitors and reviews the implementation of various aspects of the
Risk Management Paolicy. Major risks identified by the Company are systematically addressed
through mitigating actions on a continuous basis. The Company has also adopted Risk
Assessment, Minimization and Control Procedures. At present no particular risk whose
adverse impact may threaten the existence of the Company is visualized.

16, CONTRACTS AND ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

In Line with the requirements of the Act, All Related Party Transactions which are repetitive
in nature and / or entered in the Ordinary Course of Business and are at Arm’s Length basis
are placed before the Board of Directors for review and approval. Prior omnibus approval is
obtained for Related Party Transactions on yearly basis for such transactions.

During the year, the Company had not entered into any contract / arrangement / transaction
with related parties which could be considered material and are not at Arm’s Length basis.
The Company has alse made full disclesure of transactions with the related parties as set
out in Note sections of the Annual Report.

There were no materially significant related party transactions which could have potential
conflict with interest of the Company at large.

17. NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

During the vear 9 (Nine) Board Meetings were convened and held within the allowable time,
The Details of Board Meetings attended by the directors is as per Annexure-,

18, CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

The Company has constituted/reconstituted Corporate Social Responsibility Committee in
accordance with Section 135 of the Companies Act read with rules notified thereunder. The
(SR Policy may be accessed at the Company’s website at the link

https: / fitshospitals. com/investor

In terms of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies {Corporate Social
Responsibility) Rules, 2014 as amended (“C5R Rules”} and in accordance with the CSR Policy,
during the year 2021-22, the Company has spent above two percent of the average net
profits of the Company during the three immediately preceding financial years. The details
are provided in the Annual Report on (SR activities appended as Annexure-ll and forms
integral part of this Report.

19. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements. During the year, such controls were tested and no reportable material
weaknesses in the design or operation were observed. Internal Audit is carried out in
accordance with auditing standards to review design effectiveness of internal control system
& procedures to manage risks, operation of monitoring control, compliance with relevant
policies & procedure and recommend improvement in processes and procedure.

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (IND AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 as amended from time to time notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the
‘Act’} and other relevant provisions of the Act. The Company maintains all its records in ERP
(SAP) System and the work flow and approvals are routed through ERP (SAP}.
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The Board of Directors regularly reviews execution of Audit Plan, the adequacy &
effectiveness of internal audit systems, and monitors implementation of internal audit
recommendaticns including those relating to strengthening of company’s risk management
policies & systems.

20. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

(i) in accordance with the provisions of the Act and the Articles of Association of the
Company, Dr. Aruna Tantia, Director of the Company, retires by rotation at the
ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible offers herself for re-
appointment. The Board recommends her re-appointment. Her brief resume and
other requisite information as required under Secretarial Standard-2 on Generat
Meetings as required under the Act for her reappointment as Director are
provided in the Notice of the 33" Annual General Meeting of your Company.

(i) During the vear under review the designation of Mr. Dwarika Prasad Tantia was
changed to Executive Chairman from Non-Executive Chairman of the Company
w.e.f 1% October, 2021.

(iii)  Following Directors were appointed and regularized during the year:

Sl [Name of Appointed | Category Position Effective Effective Date
the with Date of of
Directors | Designation Appointment |[Regularization
as Additional ias
Director Independent
Director
1 Kashi Additional | independent | Non- 15.09.2021 01.10.2021
Prasad Director Executive
Khandelwat
2 |Bal Kishan | Additional | Independent | Non- 15.09.2021 01.10.2021
Choudhury | Director Executive
3 [Hari Modi | Additional | Independent | Non- 15.09.2021 01.10.2021
Director Executive
4 [Tapti Sen | Additional | Independent | Non- 15.09.2021 01.10.2021
birector Executive
5  [Saurabh Additional | Independent | Non- 15.09.2021 01.10.2021
Agarwal Director Executive
6 [‘Amrendra | Additional | Independent | Non- 15.09.2021 01.10.2021
Prasad Director Executive
Yerma

*Resigned wef November 15, 2021
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Following Directors resigned during the year:

Sl [Name of Present Category Position Effective Effective
the Designation Date of Date of
Directors Appointment Resignation

1 |lAmrendra | Director Independent | Non- 15.09.2021 15,11.2021
Prasad Executive
Verma

2 |Naval Director Nominee Non- 19.02.2015 15.11.2021
Jawaharlal Executive
Totla

21, DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Company has received declarations from all the Independent Birecteors of the Company
confirming that they meet the criteria of independence and that they are not aware of any
circumstance or situation, which exist or may be reasonably anticipated, that could impair
or impact their ability to discharge their duties with an objective of independent judgment
and without any external influence, pursuant to Regulation 25 of the Listing Regulations.
Nene of the Directors have been subjected to any disqualification under the Act. All the
Independent Directors of your Company have been registered and are members of
Independent Directors Databank maintained by Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs.

Out of five Independent Directors of the Company, One Independent Directors have passed
the Online Proficiency Self-Assessment Test conducted by Indian Institute of Corporate
Affair (11CA).

Two independent Directors was exempted by Indian Institute of Corporate Affair (1ICA) from
appearing Online Proficiency Self-Assessment Test, as they have fulfitled the conditions for
seeking exemption from appearing for the Online Proficiency Self-Assessment Test.

Two Independent Directors to undergo Online Proficiency Self-Assessment Test within a
period of Two Years from the date of inclusion of their names in the data bank, as provided
in Rule 6(4} of The Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014,

in the opinion of the Board Independent director appointed during the year possess
necessary integrity, expertise and experience.

22, SEPARATE MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Independent Directors met on March 25, 2022, without the attendance of Non-
Independent Directors and members of the Management. The Independent Directors
reviewed the performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board and its Committees
as a whole, the performance of the Chairman of the Company, taking into account the views
of Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors and assessed the guality, quantity and
timeliness of flow of information between the Company Management and the Board that is
necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties.
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73. COMMITTEES OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

In compliance with the regulatory requirements, your Board had constituted/ reconstituted
various Board Committees to assist it in discharging its responsibilities. The Board has
adopted charters setting forth the roles and responsibilities of each of the Committees. The
Board has constituted/reconstituted various Committees to deal with matters and monitor
activities as detailed in Annexure-lll.

24, ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THE BOARD, ITS COMMIITTEES AND INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS

The Company has devised a Policy for performance evaluation of Independent Directors,
Board, Committees, the Chairman and other individual Directors which includes criteria for
performance evaluation of the non-executive Directors and executive Directors. On the basis
of Policy approved by the Board for performance evaluation of Independent Directors,
Board, Committees and other individual Directors, a process of evaluation was followed by
the Board for its own performance and that of its Committees and individual Directors. The
Independent Directors, in their separate meeting, evaluated the performance of Non-
Independent Directors, the Board as a whole, its Committees and that of the Chairman of
the Company, taking into account the views of Executive Directors and Non-Executive
Directors. Performance evaltuation of independent directors was done by the entire board,
excluding the independent director being evaluated.

The Independent Directors have expressed satisfaction at the robustness of the evaluation
process, the Board’s freedom to express its views on matters transacted at the Meetings and
the openness and transparency with which the Management discusses various subject
matters specified on the agenda of meetings. Parameters and process applied for carrying
out the evaluation.

Ongoing familiarisation program aims to provide insights intc the Company and the business
environment to enable all the Independent Directors to be updated of newer challenges,
risks and opportunities relevant in the Company's context and to lend perspective to the
strategic direction of the Company. The details of programs for familiarization of
independent Directors with the Company, their roles, rights, responsibilities in the
Company, nature of the industry in which the Company operates, business model of the
Company and retated matters are put up on the website of the Company and can be accessed

at the link: https: / /ilshospitals. com/investor.
25. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Company has a Board approved Remuneration Policy on appointment and remuneration
of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Personnel, containing
criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director.

Proviso to Section 178 (4) of the Companies Act, 2013 requires the Company to place its
Remuneration policy on its website and disclose the salient features of such policy and
¢changes therein, if any, along with the web address of the policy in the Board’s report.
Accordingtly, the Remuneration Policy of the Company has been made available on the
Company’s website at https://ilshospitals. com/investor. The Remuneration Policy of the
Company is appended as Annexure-tV to this Report.

26. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

None of the Managerial Personnel of the Company are drawing remuneration in excess of
the limits set out in Companies Act, 2013.

Chroup
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27. HUMAN RESOURCES

Your Company treats its “Human Resources™ as one of its most important assets. Your
Company continuously invests in attraction, retention and development of talent on an
ongoing basis. Your Company believes in the promotion of talent internally through job
rotation and job enlargement.

28. AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’ REPORT
a. Statutory Auditor (s}

M/s Singhi & Co., Chartered Accountants, were re-appointed at the 31% Annual General
Meeting of the Company held on August 28, 2020 for their Second Term for period of 4 years
from the conclusion of the 31 Annual General Meeting of the company till 35% Annual
General Meeting of the Company to be held in the year 2024 to conduct the audit of accounts
of the Company from Financial year 2020-21 till the financial year 2023-24,

The requirement of the ratification of the appointment of Statutory Auditors at every Annual
General Meeting has been done way by the Companies Amendment Act, 2017 notified by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated May 7, 2018, and hence the notice of ensuing Annual
General Meeting does not carry any resolution pertaining to ratification of appointment of
Statutory Auditors.

The Notes on financial statement referred to in the Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory
and do not call for any further comments.

b. Cost Auditors

In terms of the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies (Cost Records and Audit), Rules, 2014 the Company is required to get its cost
record audited by a cost accountants in whole time practice. In this regard the Board of
Directors has re-appeointed M/s. S.K. Sahu & Associates, Cost Accountants, {(Membership
No0.28234) as the Cost Auditor of your Company to conduct the audit of cost records for the
financial year 2022-23.

In terms of the provisions of Section 148(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 14{a)
{ii) of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration as recommended
by the Board shall be ratified by the Members. Accordingly, requisite resolution seeking
ratification of remuneration payabie to the Cost Auditors for the Financial Year 2022-23 is
forming part of the notice convening the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

Your Company has received consent from M/s. S.K. Sahu & Associates, Cost Accountants, to
act as the Cost Auditor for conducting audit of the cost records for the financial year 2022-
23 along with a certificate confirming their independence and arm’s length relationship.

The Company is maintaining the cost records as specified by the Central Government under
sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013.

¢. Secretarial Auditor
Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies {Appointment and

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Amendment Rutes, 2020. which inter-alia reguires
every company having outstanding loans or borrowings from banks or public financiat
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institutions of one hundred crore rupees or more to annex with its Board’s report made in
terms of sub-section (3) of section 134, a secretarial audit report, given by a company
secretary in practice, in form no. MR. 3.

Since the Company falls under the purview of above criteria, Accordingly, The Board of
Directors had appointed Mr. Ashok Kumar Daga, Practicing Company Secretary having
Membership No. FCS 2699 and CP No.2948 as secretarial auditor of the Company to conduct
the secretarial audit of the Company for the financial year 2021-22,

The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended on March 31, 2022 is annexed
herewith marked as Annexure-V to this Report. The Secretariat Audit Report does not
contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

Your Company has also received consent from Mr. Ashok Kumar Daga, Practicing Company
Secretary, to act as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company for the financial year 2022-23
and accordingly the Board of Directors had re-appointed Mr, Ashok Kumar Daga, Practicing
Company Secretary having Membership No. FCS 2699 and CP No.2948 as secretarial auditor
of the Company to conduct the secretarial audit of the Company for the financial year 2022-
23,

d. internal Auditors

The Board has re-appointed M/s. Sumit Binani & Associates, Chartered Accountants, as
Internal Auditors for its unit ILS Hospitals, Dumdum and for ILS Hospitals, Salt Lake and re-
appointed M/s. ARVS & Associates, Chartered Accountants, as Internat Auditors for its unit
ILS Hospitals, Agartala, for ILS Hospitals, Howrah and Head office of the Company as
required vide section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013, for the financial year 2022-23, as per
the scope, functioning, periodicity and methodology for conducting the internal audit of the
Company at a remuneration as per the engagement letters.

29, DISCLOSURES

a. Whistle Blower Policy/ Vigil Mechanism

The Company promotes ethical behavior in all its business activities and has put in place a
mechanism for reporting illegal or unethical behavior. The Vigil Mechanism of the Company
also incorporates a whistle blower policy pursuant to the provisions of section 177(9) & (10)
of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has a Vigil Mechanism for directors and empltoyees
fo report genuine concerns.

Protected disclosures can be made by a whistle btower through an e-mail, or a letter to the
Chairman of the Board.

b. Particulars of Loans given, Investments made, Guarantees given and Securities
provided

The Company has disclosed the full particulars of the loans given, investments made or
guarantees given or security provided as required under section 186 of the Companies Act,
2013, in Note 7, 8 and 45 forming part of standalone financial statement. The aggregate of
total loans Given, Investments made or Guarantees or security provided are within the limit
under section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013,
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¢. Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and
Outgo

Information on conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings
and outgo as stipulated in Section 134(3} (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule
8(3) of the Companies {(Accounts} Rules, 2014 is given in Annexure-V¥! hereto and forms a
part of this Report.

e, Extract of Annual Return

Pursuant to Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3)(a) of the Act, the Annual Return as on
March 31, 2022 is available on the Company’s website on hitps://ilshospitals.com/investor

f. Prevention of Sexual Harassment at Workplace

The Company has zero tolerance towards sexual harassment at the workplace and to this
end, has adopted a policy in line with the provisions of Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace {Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 (POSH Policy) and the Rules
thereunder. All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered
under the said Policy.

An Internal Complaints Committee has also been set up to redress complaints received on
sexual harassment.

During the year under review, there were no complaints pertaining to sexual harassment
has been received by the Company.

30. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY REGULATORS OR COURTS OR
TRIBUNALS

The Company has cbtained approval of MCA for Conversion of its status from Private Limited
to Public Limited. Further, the Company has also received In-Principal approval from NSE
and BSE Limited with regard to fresh issue of shares through Initial Public Offer,

No other significant or material crders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals
which impact the going concern status and Company’s operations in future.

31, UNPAID/UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND

There is no unpaid or unclaimed dividends as on 31 March, 2022, during the current
financial year 2021-22 no amount remained unclaimed and unpaid for a period of seven
years, is due for transfer to Investor’s Education and Protection Fund.

32, OTHER DISCLOSURES

a. During the year under review, the Company has not accepted any deposit within the
meaning of Sections 73 and 74 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s} or re-
enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force).

b. The Company has complied with Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India on Board and General Meetings.

¢. The Company does not have any scheme or provision of money for the purchase of its
own shares by employees/Directors or by trustees for the benefit of employees/
Directors.
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d. The Company has not issued equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting
or otherwise,

e. Neither the Managing Director ner the Whole-time Directors of the Company received
any remuneration or commission from any of its associate company.

f. Other than stated elsewhere in this report, there are no material changes and
commitments affecting the financial position of the Company between the end of the
financial year and the date of this report.

g. There were no frauds reported by auditors under sub-section {12) of Section 143 other
than those which are reportable to the Central Government.

h. During the year under review, there was no change in the nature of business of the
Company.

i. Since the Company is a proposed listed Company, the company has complied with
necessary provisions to the extent applicable to the Company.

i. Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following
items as there were no transactions on these items during the year under review:

i} the details of application made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 {31 of 2016) during the year alongwith their status as at the end
of the financial year,

ii} the details of difference between amount of the valuation done at the time of one-
time settlement and the valuation done while taking loan from the Banks or Financial
institutions along with the reasons thereof.

33, ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors would like to express their sincere appreciation for the assistance and co-
operation received from the doctors, banks, government authorities, customers, vendors,
business associates and members during the year under review.

The Directors regret the loss of life due to COVID-19 pandemic and are deeply grateful and
have immense respect for every person who risked their life and safety to fight this
pandemic.

Your Directors wish to place on record their sincere appreciation for the dedicated efforts
and consistent contribution made by the employees, especially during pandemic, at all
levels, to ensure that the Company continues to grow and excel,

For and on behalf of the8pard of Directers

Registered office:

GPT Centre, JC-25, Sector-!l
Salt Lake, Kolkata-700 106
West Bengal (India) D.

DIN? 00001341
31 May, 2022
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Annexure-[

Details of Board Meeting attended by the directors during the vear 2021-22

\gm'p .

Date of Mr. Dr. Br. | Mr. Dr. | *Mr. Mr. | *Mr. | Mr. B | Mr. Dr. Mr.
Board D.P. Om | Arun | Anur | Ghans | N J KP | AP K Hari { Tapti | Saura
Meeting | Tanti | Tanti a |ag hyam | Totta | Khan | Ver { Chou | Mod | Sen bh
a a Tant | Tant | Goyal delw [ ma {dhury| i Agar
ja |ia al wal
14,05.2021 Yes Yes Yes i Yes Yes LOA NA NA NA NA NA NA
15.06.2021 Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes LOA NA MA NA NA NA NA
15.07.2021 Yes Yes LOA | Yes LOA | Yes NA NA NA NA NA NA
20.08.2021 Yes Yes Yes | Yes Yes LOA NA NA NA MNA NA NA
15.09.2021 Yes Yes LOA | Yes Yes LOA Yes | Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
30.09.20M1 Yes Yes Yes | Yes Yes Yes Yes | LOA Yes Yes Yes Yes
13.10.2021 Yes LOA LOA | Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
15.11.2021 Yes Yes LOA | Yes LOA NA Yes NA LOA | LOA | LOA LOA
03.01.2022 Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes NA Yes NA Yes Yes Yes Yes

LOA = Leave of absence
MA= Not Applicable

* Resigned w.e.f. from November 15, 2021
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Annexure-ll
ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SCCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES
1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:

Introduction:

a. The Corporate Social Responsibility {CSR) Policy of the GPT Healthcare Limited (GPT)
is aligned with its overall commitment to maintaining the highest standards of
business performance.

b. The CSR commitment of GPT positions its social and environmental consciousness as
an integral part of its business plan and its commitment to all its stakeholders
including consumers, share holders, employees, local communities and the society
at large.

c. The policy has been formulated as per the provisions of section 135 of the Companies
Act, 2013 {Act) read with Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Palicy) Rules,
2014 (Rules) and Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2021.

Policy Statement:

The CSR Policy of GPT aims to achieve, consolidate and strengthen Good Corporate
Governance including socially and environmentally responsible business practices
that balance financial profit with social well heing.

Scope and Approach:
a. GPT is committed to the well being of the local communities and the society at large.

b. The scope and approach of the CSR Policy of GPT is defined by the following
considerations:

{i) GPT acknowledges that there are or can be expected and umintended
outcomes and impact of its core business of healthcare activities.

(ii) While the overall outcome of its work is a positive contribution to the
economy and saciety at large, some of the impact could be negative in the
short term.

{(iii)  Given the nature of its work the strongest impact of its activities is primarily
on the environment and communities in the immediate vicinity of working
activities.

¢. The geographic scope of GPT’s CSR work includes:

{i The immediate surroundings of its Hospitals units.

ii} The district, town or city as a whole where its Hospitals are located.

(i)  The country as whole as part of GPT's contribution to national efforts towards
social development of the communities at large.
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Strategies:

The strategies for designing, implementing and monitoring the CSR activities of GPT
are based on the existing good practice models in the country, sample activities
suggested in the CSR Guidelines as well as the first hand experience of the GPT in
implementing its CSR activities over the past years. These strategies will help in
standardizing the CSR related processes, essential in the context of GPT which is
spread across the country.

Goal:

The overall goal is to promote sustainable and inclusive development as a
Responsible Corporate Citizen.

This Goal will be achieved through the following broad Objectives:

(i}

(in)

(iii}

(iv)

{v)

{vi}

(vii)

(vii)

Eradicating hunger, poverty and malnutrition promoting health care including
preventive healthcare and sanitation including contribution to the Swach Bharat
Kosh set up by the Central Government for the promotion of sanitation and
making available safe drinking water;

Promoting education, including special education and employment enhancing
vocation skills especially among children, women, elderly and the differently
abled and livelihood enhancement projects;

Promoting gender equality, empowering women, setting up homes and hostels
for women and orphans; setting up old age homes, day care centres and such-
other facilities for senior citizens and measures for reducing inequalities faced
by socially and economically backward groups;

Ensuring environmental sustainability, ecological balance, protection of flora and
fauna, animal welfare, agro forestry, conservation of natural resources and
maintaining quality of soil, air and water including contribution to the Clean
Ganga Fund set up by the Central Government for rejuvenation of river Ganga;

Protection of national heritage, art and culture including restoration of buildings
and sites of historical importance and works of art; setting up public libraries;
promotion and development of traditionat arts and handicrafts;

Measures for the benefit of armed forces veterans, war widows and their
dependents, Central Armed Forces (CAPF) and Central Para Military Forces
(CPMF) veterans, and their dependents including widows;

Training to promote rural sports, nationally recognized sports, Paralympics sports
and Olympic sports;

Contribution to the Prime Minister’'s National Relief Fund or Prime Minister's
Citizen Assistance and Relief in Emergency Situations Fund {(PM CARES Fund) or
any other fund set up by the Central Government for socio-economic
development and relief and welfare of the Scheduled Castes, the Scheduled
Tribes, other backward classes, minorities and women;

.

GPT Healthcare Limited a&-P-T
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{ix)  Contribution to incubators funded by Central Government or State Government
or any agency or Public Sector Undertaking of Central Government or State
Government, and contributions to public funded Universities, Indian Institute of
Technology {IITs), National Laboratories and Autonomous Bodies (established
under the auspices of Indian Council of Agricultural Research {ICAR), Indian
Council of Medical Research {(ICMR), Council of Scientific and industriat Research
{CSIR), Department of Atomic Energy (DAE), Defence Research and Development
Organisation {DRDO), [Department of Biotechnology (DBT)], Department of
Science and Technology (DST), Ministry of Electronics and Information
Technology) engaged in conducting research in science, technology, engineering
and medicine aimed at promoting sustainable development Goals (SDGs);

GPT Healthcare Limited e PP

(x) Rural development projects
(xi)  Slum area development

(xii) Disaster management, including relief, rehabilitation and reconstruction
activities.

2, Composition of CSR Committee:

The CSR Committee of the Company comprised of the follewing members:

sl Name of Director Designation | Number of meetings Number of
No. / Nature of of C8R Committee meetings of CSR
Directorship | held during the year Committee
attended
during the year
1. | Mr. Dwarika Prasad Tantia [ Chairman *Nil *Nil
2. | Dr. Aruna Tantia Member *Nil *Nil
3. | Dr. Tapti Sen Member *Nil *Nil

* Since the Company has been converted from “Private Limited” to “Limited” with effect from
15t September, 2021 prior to which all necessary matters related to CSR was taken care by the
Board of Directors of the Company as per the provisions of Section 135{1), 135(5) read with 135(9)
of the Companies Act, 2013, Therefore No CSR Meeting after constitution/Re-constitution was
held in this year.

Mr. Amrendra Prasad Verma former member of the Committee resigned w.e.f 15th
November, 2021.

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects
approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company:
https: / filshospitals.com/investor

4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-
rute (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if
applicable (attach the report): Not Applicable.

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the
Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off
for the financial year, if any.
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Amount available for
set-off from
preceding financial
years (in Rs)

Nil
6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5):Rs. 21,09,73,772

Amount required to be set-off
for the financial year, if any
(in Rs)

Sl.

No. Financial Year

7. {a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs. 42,19,475
(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous
financial years: Nil,
{c} Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Nil.
{d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c): Rs, 42,19,475

8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Total Amount Amount Unspent (in Rs.)
Spent for the Total Amount transferred to | Amount transferred to any fund specified under
Financial Year Unspent CSR Account as per | Schedule VIl as per second proviso to section
(in Rs.) section 135(6) 135(5)
Name of
Amount Date of the Amount Date of transfer
transfer
Fund
42,38,290 Not Applicable

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:

Mmi 2 (3) 4) (5) (6) {7) (8 ® (19) (11)
Sl. | Nam | Item | Local Location | Proj | Amou { Amou | Amount | Mod Mode of
No e from | area of the ect nt nt transferr | e of | implementation -
of the |[(Yes/N| project | durati alloca | spent ed to Impl Through
the | list of | 0). (7))} ted in Unspent | eme Implementing
Proje | activit for the C5R ntati Agency
ct ies State( Distri the | curre | Account | on- | Name CSR
in ct proje nt for the | Direc Registrat
Schedul ct | financ| project |t ion No.
e Vil to (in fal as per (Yes
the Act Rs.) | Year | Section | /No)
(in 135(6) .
Rs.) {in Rs.)
Not Applicable

(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:

(1) (2) (3) {4) ) (6) {7) (8)
Item from the Amount Moda of Made of
. Local Implem |Implementation
Sl Nag:t; of acl:::\tfi:igs areall Location of the spetrl:!;for entatio .
No X Yes/ project . n- Through
Project intSc'I:-lhedxlet vii No) pro_ligc; {in Direct(Y | Implementing
othe Ac ' es/No) Agency
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CSR

. e Registr
State District Name ation
No.
Food for | Clause (xii) | Yes | West Rirbhum | 9,39,123/- No Govard | CSRO0
covid disaster Bengal | (Kolkata} han Q00275
patients | management, Founda |7
including tion
relief,
rehabilitation
and
reconstruction
activities
Animal Clause (iv} | Yes | West Kolkata | 3,15,000/- No Govard | CSR00
Welfare Ensuring Bengal han 00275
environmental Founda |7
sustainability, tion
ecological
balance, s
protection of
flora
and fauna,
animat welfare
Disability | Clause (1) | Yes | West Kolkata | 5,55,000/- No Govard | CSROO
Eradicating Bengal han 00275
hunger, Founda |7
poverty  and tion
malnutrition
prometing
health care
including
preventive
healthcare
Education | Clause (i} { Yes | West North 24 | 3,37,450/- No Govard | CSROO
Promoting Bengal | Parganas han 00275
education, (Kotkata) Founda |7
including tion
special
education
Climate Clause (iv) | Yes | West North 2419,75,631/- No Govard | CSRCO
Change Ensuring Bengal | Parganas han 00275
environmentat (Kolkata) Founda |7
sustainability, tion
ecological
balance
Disaster Clause (xii) | Yes | West North 24| 6,16,086/- No Govard | CSRO0
Relief disaster Bengal | Parganas han 00275
management, {Kolkata) Founda |7
including tion
relief,

rehabilitation
and




GPT Healthcare Limited
{Formerly GPT Healthcare Private Limited)

CiN: U70101WB1985PLCO47402

&P

group

reconstruction
activities
7 |0ld Age |Clause (iii) | Yes | West Birbhum | 5,00,000/- No Bharat | CSROO
Home Promoting Bengal | {Kolkata) Sevashr | 00081
gender am 2
equality, Sangha
empowering
women,
setting up
homes and
hostels for
women and
orphans;
setting up old
age homes,
Total 42,38,290
Je
(d) Amount spent in Administrative Qverheads: Nil.
() Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not Applicable,
{f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): Rs. 42,38,290/-
(2) Excess amount for set off, if any:
sl p .
No. articular Amount (in Rs.)
(i} | Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) 42,19,475
{ii) | Total amount spent for the Financial Year 42,38,290
(iii) | Excess amount spent for the financial year [{ii)-{(i)] 18,815
(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the "
previous financial years, if any
(v) | Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv})] 18,815
9. (a) Detaits of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:
Amount Amount transferred to any
transferred fund specified under
to Unspent Amount Schedule VIl as per section A_rnpunt
: spent in the remaining to be
St Preceding CSR reporting 135(6), if any spent in
No. F1r;fancual Accgunt Financial Name of | A succeeding
ear seclij:ir::a ne‘rl 35 Year the o m: UN | pate of | financial years
(6) {in Rs.) Fund in Rs.) transfer (in Rs.)
(in Rs.)

Not Applicable

| Total
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(b} Detaits of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding
financial year(s):

T

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5} {6) ) (8) &)
Cumulati
Amount ve
Financial Total spe?]t on | amount
Year in the spent
. amount . Status of the
sl. Project 2Ifa :_-11:2 wh:gbetlze Project | allocated prozﬁgt n :ﬁéh; project -
No. D p pro) duration| for the . Completed
roject was project rgporti.ng reportin / Ongoing
commence in Rs.) Financial
d (in Rs. Year (in | Financial
Rs) Year (in
Rs.)
Not Applicable

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset
-~ 50 created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year (asset-wise details):

{a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s): Not Applicable.

{b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset: Nil.

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital
asset is registered, their address etc.: Not Applicable.

(¢) Provide details of the capital ass’ét(s) created or acquired {(including complete address
and location of the capital asset): Not Applicable,

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average
net profit as per section 135(5): Not Applicable,

Sd/-
b.P, Tantia
Chairman

GPT Healthcare Limited

Dated: 03-05-2022

Sd/-

Om Tantia

Managing Director

GPT Healthcare Limited

Dated: 03-05-2022
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Annexure-lll

COMMITTEES OF BOARD COF DIRECTORS

A) MANDATORY COMMITTEES

i} Audit Committee:

The Audit Committee was formed to supervise all financial transactions and to report on
actual or suspected fraud etc. Presently the Audit committee comprises of two Non-
Executive, Independent Directors and one Executive Director, all of whom are financially
literate. The composition of audit committee as on 31% March, 2022 and upto the date of
report is as under:

SNo | Name of the Directors | Position Category

1 Mr. Saurabh Agarwal Chairman | Non-Executive - Independent Director
y Mr. K. P. Khandelwal Member Non-Executive - Independent Director
3 Mr. Anurag Tantia Member | Executive Director

Mr. Amrendra Prasad Verma former member of the Committee resigned w.e.f 159
November, 2021.

The Audit Committee has met 2{Two) times during the period from 15 September, 2021 to
31% March, 2022. The dates of meeting are 30" September, 2021 and 3™ January, 2022.The
Board had accepted all the recommendation of the Audit Committee,

ii} Nomination and Remuneraticn Committee

The Nomination and remuneration committee was formed to formulate Policy of the
Company on Directors appointment & remuneration and for determining qualifications and
independence etc. Presently the Nomination and Remuneration committee comprises of
three Non-Executive, independent Directors. The composition of Nomination and
Remuneration committee as on 31 March, 2022 and upto the date of report is as under:

SNo | Mame of the Directors | Position Category

1 Mr. K. P, Khandelwal Chairman | Non-Executive - Independent Director
2 Mr. Hari Modi Member Non-Executive - Independent Director
3 Dr. Tapti Sen Member Non-Executive - Independent Director

The Nomination and Remuneration committee has met 1{One) time during the period from
15t September, 2021 to 31 March, 2022. The date of meeting is 30t September, 2021.The
Board had accepted all the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration
Comimittee.

iii) Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee

The Stakeholder’s Relationship committee was formed to consider the grievances of Security
holders of the company ete. Presently The Stakeholder’s Relationship committee comprises
of two Non-Executive, Independent Directors and one Executive Director. The composition
of Stakeholder’s Relationship committee as on 31 March, 2022 and upto the date of report
is as under:

SNo | Name of the Directors | Position Category
1 Mr. Hari Modi Chairman | Non-Executive - independent Director
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Z br. Ghanshyam Goyal
3 Mr. Anurag Tantia

oty

Non-Executive - independent Director
Executive Director

Member
Member

The Stakeholder’s Relationship committee was not required to meet during the period from
15 September, 2021 to 31% March, 2022.

iv} Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

The Detailed composition and Annual Report on CSR activities is already appended as
Annexure-ll and hence not incorporated here.

v) Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management committee comprises of three Non-Executive, Independent Directors.
The composition of Risk Management committee as on 31% March, 2022 and upto the date
of report is as under:

SNe | Name of the Directors | Pasition Category

1 Mr. B. K. Choudhury Chairman | Non-Executive - Independent Director
2 Mr. Saurabh Agarwal Member Non-Executive - Independent Director
3 Mr. Anurag Tantia Member Executive Director

Mr. Amrendra Prasad Verma former member of the Committee resigned w.e.f 15
November, 2021.

The Risk Management committee was not required to meet during the period from 15t
September, 2021 to 31 March, 2022,

B) NON-MANDATORY COMMITTEES

i} Executive Committee

The Executive committee comprises of three Executive Non-Independent Directors. The
composition of Executive committee as on 31 March, 2022 and upto the date of report is
as under:

SNe | Name of the Directors | Position Category

1 Mr. D, P, Tantia Chairman | Executive Non-Independent Director
2 Dr. Om Tantia Member Fxecutive Managing Director

3 Mr. Anurag Tantia Member | Executive Director

The Executive Committee has met 4 {(Four) times during the period from 15" September,
2021 to 31% March, 2022. The dates of meeting are 17% November, 2021, 26" November,

2021, 22 December, 2021 and 215 February, 2022.

it} IPO Committee:

The IPO committee comprises of three Executive Non-Independent Directors. The
composition of IPO committee as on 31% March, 2022 and upto the date of report is as under;

SNo | Name of the Directors | Position Category

1 Mr. D, P, Tantia Chairman | Executive Non-Independent Director
2 Mr. Anurag Tantia Member Executive Director

3 Mr. K. P. Khandelwal Member Non-Executive - Independent Director
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Mr, Naval J Totla former member of the Committee resigned w.e.f 15* November, 202 1.

GPT Healthcare Limited %T‘“---

The IPO committee has met 2 (Twa) time during the period from 15% September, 2021 to
31% March, 2022. The dates of meeting are 6" Qctober, 2021 and 14 October, 2021.

Detaited composition of the above Committees are also available at the website of the
Cornpany on the link: https: / filshospitals. com/investor
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Annexure-lV

Nomination and Remuneration Policy For
the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees

This Nomination and Remuneration Policy {the “Policy™) has been farmulated in compliance
with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with applicable rules made thereunder
{defined below) and in compliance of Regulation 19 of the SEBI Listing Regulations (defined
below), when so applicabte. This Nomination and Remuneration Policy is applicable to the
Board of Directors (the “Board”), Key Managerial Personnel (the “KMP™) and the Senior
Management Personnet {the “SMP”} of GPT Healthcare Limited (“Company”}.

In accordance with the provisions of the Act and the SEBI Listing Regulations, and other
applicable provisions of law the Company has framed this Policy. Any future changes in the
SEBI Listing Regulations or the Act will, ipso facto, apply to this Policy. The Policy has been
approved by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors in
their meetings held on September 30, 2021.

1, OBJECTIVE:
The Key Objectives of the Committee would be:

a. to guide the Board in relation to appointment and removal of Directors, Key
Managerial Personnet and Senior Management.

b. to evaluate the performance of the members of the Board and provide necessary
report to the Board for further evaluation of the Board.

¢. to recommend to the Board on Remuneration payable to the Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel and Senior Management.

2. DEFINIT}ONS:
a. Key Managerial Personnel: Key Manageriat Personnel means-

i.  Chief Executive Officer or Managing Director or Manager;
ii.  Company Secretary,
iii.  Whole-Time Director;
iv.  Chief Financial Officer; and
v. such other officer as may be prescribed.

b. Senior Management: “Senior Management” shall comprise all members of
Management one level below the “chief executive officer/managing director/whole
time director/manager {including chief executive officer/manager, in case they are
not part of the board) and shall specifically include company secretary and chief
financial officer.

3. ROLE OF COMMITTEE:

The role of the Committee inter alia will be the following:
a. to formulate a criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and
independence of a Director;
b.  to recommend te the Board the appointment and removal of Senior Management;
c. to carry out evaluation of Director’s performance and recommend to the Board
appointment / removal based on his / her performance;
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d.  to recommend to the Board on (i) policy relating to remuneration for Directors,
Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management and (ii) Executive Directors
remuneration and incentive;

e, to make recommendations to the Board concerning any matters relating to the
continuation in office of any Director at any time including the suspension or
termination of service of an Executive Director as an employee of the Company
subject to the provision of the law and their service contract;

f. ensure that level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient,
relationship of rermuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate
performance benchmarks;

g.  to devise a policy on Board diversity; and

h.  to develop a succession plan for the Board and to regularly review the plan.

4, MEMBERSHIP:

a.  The Committee shall consist of a minimum 3 non-executive directors, majority of
them being independent;

b.  Minimum two (2) members shall constitute a quorum for the Committee meeting;

Membership of the Committee shall be disclosed in the Annual Report; and

Term of the Commitiee shall be continued unless terminated by the Board of

Directors.

oo

5. CHAIRMAN:

Chairman of the Committee shall be an Independent Director;

Chairperson of the Company may be appointed as a member of the Committee

but shall not be a Chairman of the Committee;

c. In the absence of the Chairman, the members of the Committee present at the
meeting shall choose one amongst them to act as Chairman; and

d. Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee meeting could be

present at the Annual General Meeting or may nominate seme other member to

answer the shareholders’ queries.

o

6. FREQUENCY OF MEETINGS:

The nomination and remuneration committee shall meet at least once in a year.
7. SECRETARY:

The Company Secretary of the Company shall act as Secretary of the Committee,
8. NOMINATION BUTIES:

The duties of the Committee in relation to nomination matters include:

a. Ensuring that there is an appropriate induction & training programme in place for
new Directors and members of Senior Management and reviewing its effectiveness;

b. Ensuring that on appointment to the Board, Non-Executive Directors receive a format
letter of appointment in accordance with the Guidelines provided under the
Companies Act, 2013;

¢. Identifying and recommending Directors who are to be put forward for retirement
by rotation;

d. Determining the appropriate size, diversity and composition of the Board;



GPT Healthcare Limited P~
(Formerly GPT Healthcare Private Limited) group

CIN: U70101WB1989PLL047402

e. Setting a formal and transparent procedure for selecting new Directors for
appeintment to the Board;

f. Developing a succession plan for the Board and Senjor Management and regularly
reviewing the plan;

g. Evaluating the performance of the Board members and Senjor Management in the
context of the Company’s performance from business and compliance perspective;

h. Making recommendations to the Board concerning any matters relating to the
continuation in office of any Director at any time including the suspension or
termination of service of an Executive Director as an employee of the Company
subject to the provision of the law and their service contract;

i. Delegating any of its powers to one or more of its members or the Secretary of the
Committee;

j. Recommend any necessary changes to the Board; and

k. Considering any other matters as may be requested by the Board.

9, REMUNERATION DUTIES:
The duties of the Committee in relation to remuneration matters include:

a. to consider and determine the Remuneration Policy, based on the performance and
also bearing in mind that the remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract
retain and motivate members of the Board and such other factors as the Committee
shall deem appropriate all elements of the remuneration of the members of the
Board.

b. to approve the remuneration of the Senior Management including key managerial
personnel of the Company maintaining a balance between fixed and incentive pay
reflecting short and long term performance objectives appropriate to the working of
the Company.

¢. to delegate any of its powers to one or more of its members or the Secretary of the
Committee

d. to consider any other matters as may be requested by the Board

e. Professional indemnity and liability insurance for Directors and senior management.

10. MINUTES OF COMMITTEE MEETING:
Proceedings of all meetings must be recorded and signed by the Chairman of the

Committee at the subsequent meeting. Minutes of the Committee meetings will be
tabled at the subsequent Board and Committee meeting.
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Annexure-¥Y

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2022
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

GPT HEALTHCARE LIMITED

GPT Centre, JC-25, Sector-Ill, Salt Lake
Kolkata - 700106

[ have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by GPT HEALTHCARE LIMITED (Formerly
GPT Healthcare Private Limited) {hereinafter called the company). Secretarial Audit was
conhducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company's bocks, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by
the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of
secretarial audit, | hereby report that in my opinion, the company has, during the audit
period covering the financial year ended on 3157, March, 2022 complied with the statutory
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting
made hereinafter:

| have examined the books, papers and other records maintained by GPT HEALTHCARE
LIMITED (“the Company”) for the financial year ended on 31% March, 2022, according to the
provisions of:

(i} The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

{ii) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there
under to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and
External Commercial Borrowings;

(i) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; (to
the extent applicable to the Company);

(iv) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 ("SEBI Act”):-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008; Not applicable, since the company has not issued any debt
securities as per (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;
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(v) In our opinion and as identified and informed by the Management, the Company has
adequate systems to monitor and ensure compliance {including the process of
renewal/fresh/pending applications with Government Authorities), the foltowing laws are
specifically applicable to the Company.

. Blood Bank Regulations under Drugs and Cosmetics Act, 1940

. Clinical Thermometers (Quality Control) Order, 2001a

. The Dentists Act, 1948

. Drugs and Cosmetics Act, 1940

. Drugs and Cosmetics Rules, 1945

. Drugs and Magic Remedies (Objectionable Advertisements) Act, 1954

. Drugs and Magical Remedies Rules, 1935

. Epidemic Diseases Act, 1897

. Ethical guidelines for Biomedical Research on Human Subjects

10. Fxcise Permit (For Storage of Spirit) under Central Excise Act, 1956

11. Infant Milk Substitute, Feeding Bottles and infant Foods {Regulation of Production,
Supply and Distribution) Act, 1992

12. Infant Milk Substitute, Feeding Bottles and Infant Foods {Regulation of Production,
Supply and Distribution) Rules, 1993

13. Legal Metrology Act, 2009

14. Legal Metrology Rutes, 2011

15, Medical Termination of Pregnancy Act, 1971

16. Medical Termination of Pregnancy Regulations, 2003

17. Medical Termination of Pregnancy Rules, 2003

18. NACO Guidelines

19, Mental Healthcare Act, 2017

20. Narcotic Drugs and Psychotropic Substances Act, 1985

21. Narcotic Drugs and Psychotropic Substances Rules, 1985

22. Pharmacy Act, 1948

23. Poisons Act, 1919

24. Poisons Rules (state specific)

25. Pre Conception and Prenatal Diagnostic Techniques Act, 1994

26. Pre Conception and Prenatal Diagnostic Techniques, Prohibition of Sex Selection Rutes,
1996

27. Prevention of Illicit Traffic in Narcotics Drugs Act, 1988

28. Clinical Establishments and Registration Act, 2010/ State Private Clinical
Establishment Registration Act.

29. E-Waste Management Rules, 2016

30. Solid Waste Management Rules, 2016

31. Batteries Waste Management Rules, 2001

32. Plastic Waste Management Rules, 2016

00 N O W B G PO e

| have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India as
amended from time to time,

(i)  The Company has complied with the terms and conditions, set forth by the
lending
bank / financial institution at the time of availing any facility
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(iii}  The Company has conducted Annual General Meeting on 3" September, 2021 and
an Extra-ordinary General Meeting on 1%t Octcber, 2021 through physical modes,
however, some of the Board Meetings & Committee Meetings were held through
video conferencing (VC) and has followed the prescribed procedures and rmanner
of conducting the same.

Buring the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above;

| further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and KMP. The following changes occurred in the Directors
and KMP during the vear:

SL NO. MAME OF THE DIRECTOR / KMP PARTICULARS OF CHANGES

1. Dwarika Prasad Tantia Change in designation from WNon-
Executive Chairman to Executive
Chairman w.e.f 01.10.2021

2. Kashi Prasad Khandelwal Appointment  As  Independent
Director

3 Bal Kishan Choudhury Appointment  As  Independent
Director

4, Hari Modi Appointment  As  Independent
Director

5. Tapti Sen Appointment  As  Independent
Director

6. Saurabh Agarwal Appointment As  Independent
Director

7. Amrendra Prasad Verma Appointment  As  independent

Director on 15.09.2027 & Resigned
on 15.11.2021

8. Naval Jawaharlal Totla Resigned on 15.11.2021

During the year, the status of the Company has been changed from Private Limited
Company to Public Limited Company and necessary alteration in Memorandum of
Association and Articles of Association has been impiemented accordingly.
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The Company has Converted 40000000 CCPS (Compulsery Convertible Preference
Shares) of Rs. 10 each to 26081286 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each at a premium of Rs.
5.34/- per equity shares as per the terms of conversion of aforesaid CCPS.

The Company has also issued 35882000 Bonus Shares in proportion of 2{Two) Equity
Share for every 1(One) Equity Share of Rs, 10/- each,

The members of the Company at their meeting held on 1% October, 2021 on the
recommendation of the Board of Directors of the Company have approved Fresh issue
of Shares through initial Public Offer. Accordingly the Company has filed DRHP and
UDRHP with SEB! which was later approved by the SEBI. The Company has also received
In-Principte approval from NSE and BSE Limited. The Company is in the process to
complete remaining regulatory compliances and formalities.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for
seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and
recorded as part of the minutes,

| further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

Place: KOLKATA Sd/-
Date: 27.04.2022 ASHOK KUMAR DAGA
{Practicing Company Secretary)
FCS No.269%, C P No: 2548
UDIN: FO02699D000218178
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Annexure-Vi
Infarmation under Section 134(m) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 8 of
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, and forming part of the Directors’ Report for the
year ended 31%March, 2022,

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

(i) Steps taken or impact on conservation of energy

The operations of the Company are not energy-intensive. However, significant measures are
being taken to reduce the energy consumption by using energy-efficient equipments.

Your Company constantly evaluates and invests in new technology to make its infrastructure
more energy efficient.

{ii} Steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy

Since your Company is not an energy intensive unit, utilization of alternate source of energy
may not be feasible. However Procurement of electricity from alternative source i.e Solar
Energy to the extent possible is being done.

(iif) Capital investment on energy conservation equipment

The Management of the Company continuously upgrades and/or replaces old medical
equipments with new efficient equipments as and when required.

B, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:;-

(i) The efforts made towards technology absorption and benefit derived:-

The Company has adapted state of the art technology, available in the Industry of operation
of the Company to derive cost and efficiency benefits.

(i) Your Company is not engaged in manufacturing activities, therefore there is no specific
information to be furnished in this regard.

(it} The expenditure incurred on Research and Development: -Further, there was no
expenditure incurred on Research and Development during the period under review.

€. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO-

The Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual inflows during the year and the Foreign
Exchange outgo during the year in terms of actual outflows are as under:-

FY 2021-22 FY 2020-21
T in Lakh ¥ in Lakh
i. Foreign exchange earnings: NIL NI
ii. Foreign exchange Outgo: NEL NiL
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REFPORT

To the Members of

GPT Healthcare Limited (formerly known as GPT Heaitheare Private Limited)
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial stalements of GPT Healthcare Limited (*the Company”),
which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2022, the statement of profit and loss, (including the statement of
other comprehensive income), the cash flow statement and the statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting pelicies and
other explanatory information { hereinafier referred to as "the standalone financial statements®).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statemenis give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”)
in the manner s¢ required and give a true and fair view in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, its profit including other comprehensive
income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing {SAs)
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics' issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants (ICAl} of India together with the sthical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Standalone
Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
Standalone Financial Statements.

Key Audit Mafters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
Standalone Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2022. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate cpinion on these matters. We have determined that there are nc key audit matters to

communicate in our report.
Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Repoit including
Arnexures to Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shargholder's
Information, but does not include the Standalone Financial Statements ard our auditor's report thereon.

Qur opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance corclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Standalone
Financial Statements, or our knowledge cbiained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be
maieriaily misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Qffiews: Kolkata, Murmbai, Delbi, Chennai, Bangalore & Abrnedabiad
Ketwork Locations: Hyderabad, Nagpur
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Managements’ Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to
the preparation of these Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in eguity of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepied in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and cother irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalcne Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the geing
concern basis of accounting unless management sither intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those charged with governance are also responsible for overseeing the
Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reascnable assurance about whether the Standalone Financial Statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Standalone Financial Statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

= |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

»  Obtain an understanding of internal centrol relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(j) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

«  Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events cr conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the Standalone Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
epinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Financial Statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the Standalone Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Standalone Financial Statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Standalone
Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning
the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our werk; and (i) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the Standalone Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scape and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicahble, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because (he adverse conseguences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reguirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's report) Order, 2020 (“the Order"} issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of sub-seckion (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A" a statement on the malters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(8) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so fer as it appears
from our examination of those books;

(c} The Balance Shest, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income,
the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with
the books of account;

(d} In our opinion, the aforesaid Standatone Financial Statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended
from time to time;

(e) On the basis of the writlen representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022 taken on record by
the Board of Direclors, none of the directors are disqualified as on March 31, 2022 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

() With respect 1o the adeguacy of the internal financial confrols over financial reporting with reference (o
standalone financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure B".

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the requirement of
section 197(16) of the Ack:

In our opinion, the manageriat remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2022 has been paid/ provided by the
Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of seclion 197 read with Schedule V to the Act; and

(h) With respect to the other matiers to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the exglanations given to us:
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The Company does not have any pending litigations doss not have any pending litigation which may
impagct its financial position in its Standalone Financial Statements;

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were
any material foreseeahle logses as on March 31,2022,

There were no amounts which were required fo be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

{(a) The management has represented to us that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, as disclosed
in the note 51(e) to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, directly
or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or previde any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ullimate Beneficiaries,;

{b) The management has represented 1o us that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, as disclosed
in the note 51(f) to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been received by the company
from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shali, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or
tnvest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on our audit procedures that are considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations
under sub-clause {i} and (i} of Rule 11(e) as provided under paragraph 2{h} (iv)(a) &{b) above, contain
any material mis-statement.

As stated in note 49 fo the standalone financial statements,

(&) The interim dividend related to F.Y.2020-21 as well as interim dividend related to F.Y.2021-22
declared and paid by the company during the current year is in compliance with Section 123 of the
Act,

(b) The final dividend related to F.Y.2021-22 proposed by the company is in compliance with Section
123 of the Act.

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountanis
Firm Registration Number: 302049E

(\ ! ‘L\W%W

{Ankit Dhelia)

Partner

Membership Number; 069178
UDIN ; 22089178AIIUWMST 32

Place: Kolkata
Date: May 3, 2022
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Annexure ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
{Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report

to the Members of the Company of even date)

(a}{A} The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(a){B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) The property, plant and eguipment were physically verified during the year by the Management in
accordance with a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, provides for physical verification of
all the property, plant and equipment at reasonable intervals, According to the information and explanation
given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

{c) The tifle deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the lessee
and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the [essee) are held in the name of the Company.

{d) The Company has not revaiued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of use assets) or
intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2022,

(e) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records
of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Prchibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made
thereunder.

(a)The management has conducted physical verification of inventory (excluding inventories in transit} at
reasonable intervals during the year and discrepancies of 10% or more in aggregate for gach class of
inventory were not noticed on physical verification of such inventories. In our opinion, the frequency of
verification by the management is reascnable and the coverage and procedure for such verificafion is

appropriate.

(b) The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate from
banks during the year on the basis of security of current assets of the Company. However, as per the terms
and conditions of the sanction, the company is exempted from submission of quarterly retums/statements
with such banks and accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ii){(b) of the Order is not applicable to

the Company.
(@) During the year, the Company has not provided advances in the nature of loans, stood guarantee or

provided security to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. However, the
Company has granted loans to companies, the details of which are as follows :

Loans
(Rs. in lakhs)
Aggregate amount granted/ provided during the year
- Subsidiaries, Associates & Joint Venfures Nil
- Related Parties 1450.28
- Others 3850.00
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of above cases
- Subsidiaries, Associates & Joint Ventures Nil
- Related Parties Nil
- Others 3830.00

{b} During the year, the Company has not provided advances in the nature of loans, stood guarantee or
provided security to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. However, the
investments made in Mutual Funds ! Debt Securities and the terms and conditiens of the grant of all loans to
companies during the year, prima facie, are not prejudicial to the Company's interest.
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(c) The Company has granted loans during the year to companies where the schedule of repayment of
principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayment or receipts are regular,

(d) There are no amounts of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted to companies, firms,
limited liability partnerships or any other parties which are overdue for more than ninety days

(e) According to the information and explanations given fo us, there were no loans or advance in the nature of
loan granted to companies, firms, Limited Liability Parinerships or any other parties which was fallen due
during the year, that have been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted (o settle the overdue of existing

loans given to the same parties.

() The Company has granted loans to two companies during the year, either repayable on demand or without
specifying any terms or period of repayment of which the entire principal amount including interest has been
received and closing balance of such loan is Nil. Following are the details of the aggregate amount of loans
or advances in the nature of loans granted 10 promoters or related parties as defined in clause (76} of section

2 of the Companies Act, 2013.

All Promoters Related Parties
Parties {Holding {Rs. in Jakhs)
Company}
Aggregate amount of loans/ advances in nature of
loans - 1125.00 32528
- Repayakle on demand
Percentage of loans/ advances in nature of loans - 21.22% 6.14%

to the total loans

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied
with provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans granted and
investments made. The company has not provided any guarantee or security to any party falling under

section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013,

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which are
deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the rules made
thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3{v) of the Order is not

applicable to the Company.

We have broadly reviewed the accounts and records maintained by the Company pursuant to the Order
made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Companies
Act, 2013. We are of the opinion, that prime-facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and

maintained. However, we have not carried out a detailed examination of the same.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by
us, the Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues
including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, incomne-tax, sales-tax, service
tax, duty of customs and other statutory dues applicable to it. Based on audit procedures performed by us, no
undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a

period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b} According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by
us, there are no dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax,
sales-tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess, and other statutory dues that

have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books of
account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year. Accordingly, the

requirement to report on clause 3(viil) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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iX. (a) Based on our audit procedures performed by us and according to the information and explanations given
to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest
thereon to any lender.

{b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or
any government authority.

(c} In our opinion and according te ihe information and explanations given 1o us by the management, term
loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

(d) According te the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us, and con
an overall examination of the financial statements of the company, we report that no funds raised on short-
term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the company.

{(e) The Company does not have any subsidiary or joint veniure and has sold off its’ entire stake in the only
associate company during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company,

(f} The Company does not have any subsidiary or joint venture and has sold off its' entire stake in the only
associate company during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3{ix}(e} of the Order is

not applicable to the Company.

X, (a) The Company has received approval from Securities & Exchange Board of India {'SEBI) on its Draft Red
Herring Frospectus in relation to Initial Public Offer of Equity shares. However, the company has not raised
any money during the year by way of initial public offer / further public offer (including debt instruments)
hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares /ully or partially or
opticnally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the requirement to report on clause
3(x)(b) of the Crder is not applicabie to the Company.

Xi. (a) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the frue and fair view of the
financial statements and according to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come
across any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company which has beesn noticed or
reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the Management.

(b) Accerding to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12} of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by the cost auditor/ secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT-4 as
prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government during
the year.

(c} As represented to us by the management, there are ne whislle blower compiaints received by the
Company during the year.

xii. {a)(b)(c} The Company is not a Nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Ack, 2013. Therefore,
the requirement to report on clause 3(xii){a), (b} & (c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xiii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, transactions with tha related
parlies are in compliance with secticns 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the
details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting

standards.

Xiv. (a} In our opinion and based on our examination, the company has an internal audit system commensurale
with the size and nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the interna! audit reports of the company issued {ill the date of audit report, for the
period under audit.
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The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its
directors and hence requirement {¢ repart on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The provisions of section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1834) are not applicable to
the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(b} The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without
obtained a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934.

(e) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by Reserve Bank of
ndia. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable o the
Company.

(d) According to the information and explanations provided to us during the course of audit, the Group does
not have more than one Core Investment Company.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year and the immediately preceding
fingncial year.

Thera bas been no resignation of the statutory auditers during the year and accordingly requirement to report
on Clause 3(xviii} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and
expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial fiabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that
company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance
as to the future viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the
date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when

they fall due.

(&) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of other than
ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required to be transferred to a fund specified in
Schedule Vii of the Companies Act (the Act}, in compliance with second provisc to sub section 5 of section
135 of the Act.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no unspent
amounts in respect of ongoeing projects that are required to be transferred to a special account in compliance
of provision of sub section (8) of secticn 135 of Companies Act.

The Company does not have any subsidiary or joint venture and has sold off its’ entire stake in the only
associate company during the year. Accordingly, the requirement te report on clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not

applicable to the Company.
For Singhi & Co.

Charferad Accountants
Firm Reglstration Number: 302049E
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;} {Ankit Dhelia)
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%, J Partner

"f}:i(iﬂﬁfy Membership Number: 069178
- UDIN: 220689178ANUWMS732

Place: Kolkata
Date: May 3, 2022
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ANNEXURE *“B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to
the Members of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause {I) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to standalone financial
statements of GPT Healthcare Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the
Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Board of Directors’ Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the company is responsible for establishing and maintaining intemnal financial controls
based on the internal controt over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operafing effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to respective company's palicies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies

Act, 2013.
Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
standalone financial statements based on our audit, We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note™ issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143{10) of the Companies
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and both issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India, Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internat
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to standalone financial stalements was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respscts.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls aver financial reporting with reference to standalone financial statements and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to standalone financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of interal financial controls over financial reporting with reference fo
standalone financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaiuating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone
Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have oblained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to standalone financial

statements.
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Meaning of [nternal Financial Gontrols over financial reporting with reference to sfandalone financial
statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to standalone financial statements is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of Standalone Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference fo standalone financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and faitly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2} provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Standalone Financial
Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the Standalone Financial Statements.

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting with reference to standalone financial
statements

Becausge of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to standaione
finzancial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controlg, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to standalene financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financiat control over financial reporting with reference to standalone financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinlon

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all
material respects, an adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to standalone
financial statements and such internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to standalone
finarcial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control over financial
reperting criteria established by the Company considering the essential compenents of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Infernal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For Singhi & Co,
Chartered Accouriian{s
Firm Registration Number: 302048E

Rty Do,

{Ankit Dhelia)

Partner

Membership Number: 069178
UDIN : 22069178AHUWMET32

Place: Kolkata
Date: May 3, 2022



GPT Healthcare Limited (Formerly known as GPT Healthcare Private Limited}
CIN No : U70101WB1989PLC047402

BALANCE SHEET as at 31st March, 2022

{All amounts are Rs in lakhs, axcept share data or otherwise stated)

As at As at
Neote No. 31st March 2022 315t March 2021
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
{a) Propesty, Plant and Equiprment 4 20.655.87 2118612
{b) Capiial work-in-progress A/ 71.83 29.45
{c) Intangibles Assets 5 4.58 8.04
(d} Righl of Use Assels B 1,358.83 760,20
{e} nvestments 7 - 7131
(f) Financial Assets
[} Inveslments 7A 500.01 -
() Loans 8 5.56 6.44
(i) Other Financial Assets 3 512,97 201.10
{a) Mon Current Tax {Net) 10 164,26 96,69
{h) Deferred Tax Asset (Met) i 371,31 858,55
{i) Other Nan Curreni Assets 12 8.60 72.54
23,753.82 23,088.44
Current Assets
{a} Inveniories 13 72845 642.55
(b) Financiat Assets
{ Investments 7B 539.26 -
{ii) Trade recsivable 14 1,242.5% 1.726.40
{iiiy Cash and cash equivalents 15 B28.80 47781
{iv) Other bank balances (oiher than Note 15 abova) 16 44.38 22.08
{v) Loans 3 3,8565.79 4,863.63
{vl) Olher Financial Assets g 1.054.98 673.83
{c) Other Current Assets 12 166,28 220.85
8,566.54 8,632.93
32,322.36 31,721,37
Equity
{a) Equity Share Capital i7 7.980.43 1,794.10
{h) Instrument entirely Equity in nalure 17A - 4,000.00
{ch Other Equity 1B 7.827 82 7,586.085
15,818.25 13,390,115
Non-Currant Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabildies
{iy Borrowings 19 7.244.20 10,225.20
{i) Lease Liabiilies 20 498,08 214,27
{b} Provisions 2 651,18 56048
{¢) Other Nan Currend Lizbliities 23 1.263.10 1.327.55
9,656.56 12,331.50
Currant Llabilities
(a) Financial liabillias
{I) Borrewings 24 2,307 .67 2,063.40
{li} Lease Liakilties 20 105.81¢| 6215
(iii}) Trade payables 25
-Tolal outstanding dues of creditors to micro entarpnses and small
. 75.85 0.61
lenterpises
~Total uuistsndmg dues of ereditor 10 other than micra enterprises 2816.88 2.586.06
and small enterprises
(iv) Other Financial Liabiities. 21 640,85 ar4.69
(b} Provisions 22 397.34 246.93
(e) Cther Current Liabilitiss 23 454,05 385,77
{dl) Current Tax Liabllities 26 - 308.11
€,847.55 §,939.72
32,322,356 31,721 3;':
Basis of Accounting 2
Sianificant Accounting Policies 3
Significant Judgement & Kay Estimale 324
The accompanying nates are an inlagral pan of the financial stalemems
As per our Report annexed r and on behatf of the Bea

For SINGHI & CO.
Chartered Accountanis
Firm Registration No. 302048E

Bl Khkiar,

ANKIT DHELIA
Pariner
Membership No, 069178

Kanaying Dirgclor
DIN: 00001342

NGHGIS SR L

KRITI TANTLA
CFO

Place: Kolkala £NKUR SHARMA

Date: 3rd May, 2022 " Company Secretary




GPT Healthcare Limited (Formerly known as GPT Healthcare Private Limited)

CIN No : U70101WB1989PLC047402
STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS for the year ended 31st March, 2022
{All amounts are Rs in lakhs, except share data or otherwise stated}

Note For the year ended For the year ended
No. 31st March 2022 3tst March 2021
INCOME
I Revenue from operations 27 33,741.48 24,275.32
Il Other income 28 498.50 611.01
[l Total Income {I+13) 34,240.38 24,886.33
IV Expenses
Cost of materizls consumed 29 8,736.10 5728.91
Employee benafits expense 30 5,378.38 4,168.18
Finance costs 31 1,115.49 1,374,68
Depreciation and amortisation expense 3z 1,359.00 1.247.11
Other expenses 33 12,241.58 9,483.00
Total Expensas {IV) 28,832.55 21,997.88
V Profit before Exceptional items & Tax {lli-1V) 5,407.83 2,888.45
V] Exceptional tems - -
Vil Profiti{Loss} Before Tax (V-VI) 5,407.83 2,888.45
VIl Tax expense 34
a) Current tax 942.00 503.00
b) Deferred tax {including MAT Cradit entilement) 290.28 283.22
¢} Income tax for earlier years €.30 (7.17)
IX Profit for the year {VIl- VII) 4,166.25 2109.40
X Other Comprehansive Income
A._ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
a} Remeasurement of defined benefit plan {17.32) 2.85
b) Income tax relating to above 5.04 (0.83)
B. ltems that will be reclassified to profit or los - -
X| Other Comprehensive [ncome for the year (12.28) 2.02
pdil 4,153.97 2,111.42
Xllt Earnings per equity share 35
Basic earnings per share (%) 5.21 2.64
Diluted earnings per share (3) 5.21 2.64
Basis of Accounting 2
Significant Accounting Policies 3
Significant Judgement & Key Estimate 3.21

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our Report annexed Fpr and on behalf of the Bua;a of [igtoz
For SINGHI & GO, . : . TANTIA p

Chartered Accountanis Managing Rirector

Firm Registration No, 302048E DIN: 00001342
. . R s .
Dan Plakiss, RIS VAT S
ANKIT DHELIA ANURMTIA KRITI TANTIA
Partner Exacutive Director CFO

Membership No. 089178 DIN; 03118844

Place: Kolkata ANKUR SHARMA -

Date: 3rd May, 2022 Company Secretary




GPT Healthcare Limited (Formerly known as GPT Healthcare Private Limited)

CIN No : U70101WB1989PLC047402
CASH FLOW STATEMENT for the year ended 34st March, 2022
{All amounts are Rs in lakhs, except share data or otherwice stated)

For the year ended For the year ended
Farticulars 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021

A, CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit Bafore Tax 5,407.83 2,888.45
Adjustment to reconcile profit bafore tax to net cash flows
(a} Depreciatlon and Amortisation -~ 359,00 1,247 41
{b) Finance Costs 4,115,49 1,374,658
{c) Profit on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment [9.15) {64.77)
{d) Prafit on Sale of lnvestments (17.98) -
{e) Bad dubts / Advances & Claims written off - 33.08
{f} Sundry Balances written off 6,60 -
{g) Unspent liabliitles written back (24.78) (108.52)
{h) Provision for Boubtiul Trade Receivables / (writlen back) 19.62 32.08
(1} Gain on retirement of Right of Use Assels {11.33) -
() Deferred Revenue on Government Grant (64.45) {64.45)
{k) Loss on saleddiscard of Property, plant & equipment 20.62 -
{I} Galn on Fair Vaivation of invesimenls measured at FVPTL wil.32) -
{m} Interest Income 397.485) 1094 86 (B83.85) 2055.38
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 7,402,890 i 4,943.83
Changes in WorkIng capital
(&) (increase)/ decrease in Invenlories 8580 A12.47)
b} {Increase)f decrease in Trade Recoivables 364,19 AB1.07)
{©) {Increase) decrease in Other Financial Agsets B72.25) wi169.24)
{d} {Increase)f decrease in Non-Financial Assets B 63 2,52
{e} Increase! (decrease) in Trade Fayables 32894 {876.02)
{f} Increased (decrease) in Cther Financial Llabilities 00.04. wA270.57)
{q} Increase! (decrease) in Provisions 22379 115,94

138,29 545.73 w177 (909.11)
Cash Generated from Operations 7.948.42 4,034.72
Direct Taxes Paid (1,349.24) 264.76
Net Cash fram f {used in} Operating Activitles 6850918 4,299.48
B.CASH ELOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES i
(a) Purchase of Investments «(3,387.99) -
{b) Purchase of Praperty, Plant & Equipment - (729.64) w (B0, 64}
{c) Sale/ Dispogal of Propearty, Plant & Equipment A7.92 .~ 8599
{dY Sale of Investments ~2,439.29 -
{2) Paymeni towards acquisition of ROU Assels (327 .64} -
{f {(Investmenl)/ Redemption of Fixed Depasils {net) (3248} wi{1.10)
{g) Loan Refund recaived from Body Corporates SB314.9% 1,824.58
{h} Loans Given 1o Body Corporates .- [5,300.28) ~(3,299.23)
{1} Interest Recalved L. 471.93 . 346.36
Net Cash from { {used in} Investing Activities {533.24) (1,645,068}
C.CASH FLOW FORM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
{a} Dividend and Tax paid thereon {1,725.87) [1,343.78)
(b} interes! Paid (1,099.82) {1,381.41)
{c} Praceeds from Long Term Bomowings (Bank, FI's and Gthers) - 1.842.54
{d) Repayment of Long Term Bomowings (Bank, FI's and Other) (2,688.15) (F04.94)
{e) Proceeds /{Repayment) of Short Term Borrowings from Banks (Net} 140.27 (233.13)
{f) Proceeds fram Inter Corporate Eoans - -
{g) Repayment of Inter Corporate Loans - (300,00}
{h) Repayment of | zase Liabilities {143 68) (90,73}
Hat Cash from f {used in) Financing Activities [5.716.05) (2,211.45)
Met increasef{decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalent (A+B+C) 34919 A442.97
Cash & Cash Equivalents at he beginning of the ysar 477 61 34.64
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the end of the year {Refer Note 15) 826,20 477614




GPT Healthcare Limited {Formerly known as GPT Healthcare Private Limited)
CIN No : UT0101WB1989PLCO4T402
CASH FLOW STATEMENT for the year ended J1st March, 2022

Motes:
(1) The above statement of cash flows has baen prepared under the "Indirect Mathod" as set ouf in IND AS « 7 "Statement of Cash Flows",

{2) Closing Cash and Cash Equivalents represent balances of cash and cash equivalents as Indicated in Mote 15 to the financial statements
{8) Direct taxes paid are treated as arising from operating activilies and are not bifurcated betwaen investing and financing activities.

{4) Statement of Reconciliation of financing activities :

Particulars Non-Current Current

Borrowlngs Borrowings |
Ralance as at Aprit 01, 2021 (including interest accruad) 12,167.57 203.76
Cash Flow {Met) (2,888.18) 140.78
MNan Cash Changes
- Amortizatian of processing fees relating to Term Loan 19.60 -
Interes] Expense 940.68 2.12
Intaresi Paid {1,001.53) {2.12)
Balance as at March 31, 2022 {including interest accrued) 9,238.17 344.04
{8} Previgus years figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary,!
As per our Report annexed For and on hehalf of Boarilgnre
For SINGHI & GO, . A Tﬂ
Chartered Ascountants Managing Direclor
Firm Registration No, 302043E r Qa001341 DiN: 00001342

. . - - T -
Aot Dbz, AN N S
ANKIT DHELIA ANURAG TADFHA KRITI TANTIA
Pariner ExecutiveDirector CFO
Membership No. 068178 DIN: 03118844
ﬁKUR SHARMA N

Place; Kolkata

Date: 3rd May, 2022 Company Secretary



GPT Healthcare Limited {Formerly known as GPT Healthcare Private Limited)
CIN No : U7010WB1989PLCD47402

ETATEMENT OF CHAHGES IN EQUITY for the year anded 31st March, 2022
{All amaunts are Rs in lakhs, except share dala or olberwise stated}

a) Equity Share Capital

Equity Shares oFINR 10 pach issupd, subscrived and fully paid Number Ampunis
Balance as al 31sl March, 2020 17,941,000 1,724.10
Addi{L.ess): Changes in Equity Shere Capital during the year - -
Balance as &t 31st March, 2021 17,941,000 1,794,110
Add: Shares issued during the yesar [Refer note 17(2)] 35,582,000 3.588.20
Add: Equily Shares issued on conversion of 0.001% CCPS [Refer note 17(h}) 26,081,286 2.608.13
Bal as at ¥ist March, 2022 79,904,256 7,990.43
b} fpstrument ontirely Equity in nature
0.001% Campulseorily Convertible Preference Shaves (CCPS] of INR 10 each HNumber Amounts
Balance as ai 31st March, 2020 46,000,000 4,000.00
AddALess); Changes during the yeas - -
Balance as at 31st March, 2021 40,000,000 4,000.00
Addf(Less]: Changes during the year {40.000.000) (4,000.00}
Balance as at 3ist March, 2022 - -
t] Other Equity
Reserves & Surplus oCl
Capital Securlties General Retalned Remeasurement
Particulars Reserve Premium Reserve Barnings GalnfLoss on Total
Account Defined Beneht
Blan Net OFf Tax!
Balance as at ist April, 2020 122,47 3,172.56 3,069.37 527.03 0.00 6,891,423
Prafil for the Year - - - 2.109.40 - 2,109.40
Remeasurement of definad benefil pians {Met of Taxes) - - - - 2.02 2.02
Total Comprehensive Income . - . 2,169.40 202 2,111.42
Dividend Paid - - . {1.406.80) . {1,405.580)
Transter from OCI To Retained Earning - - - 2.02 (2.02) -
Balance as at 34st March, 2021 12247 3,172.56 3,069.37 1,231.65 0.00 7,596.06
Roserves & Surplus n]s]]
Capital Securities General Rotained Remeasurement
Particulars Reserve Premiam Reserve Eamings Gain ! Loss on Total
Account Dafined Baneht
Blaa {Net Of Tax)

Balance as at 31st March, 2021 122,47 3,172,56 306937 1,231,885 4.00 7,596,085
Profit for the year . - - 4,168.25 - 4 166.25
Remeasurement of defined benelil plans (Met of Texes) - - - - {12.28) {12.28)
Totzl Comprehensive Income . - - 4,166.25 {12.28) 4,183.97
Grenerated from conversion of preference shares - 1,391.587 - - - 1.381.87
Utitisation lowards tssue of Bonus Shares [Refer nole 17{e)| - {3,172.56) {415.64) - - (3,566.20)
Dividends Pald - - - {1,725.87) - {1.725.87)
Transler from QCI To Retained Earning - - - {12.28) 12.28 -
Balance as at 31st March, 2022 122.47 1,391.87 2.653.73 3,659.78 0.00 1,827.82

The accompanying notes ere an integral par of the financial stalemenls

As per our Report annexed
For and on behalf of the Bo

of Diwf
For SINGHI & GO, D.F. T.:\ ) R. é’fa

Chartered Accountants Managing Dlrectar
Firm Registration Mo, 302048E DIN: aogms.s,
&{\'Mr BL-&'F- \ - AJ iu._-jﬁ
ANKIT DHELIA RAG TANTI KRITI TANTIA
Pariner Executive Diréctor CFC
htembership No. 069178 DIN: 03118844
Place: Kalkala ANKUR SHARMA

Date: 3rd May, 2022 Company Secretary
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2.4

GPT Healthcare Limited {formerly known as GPT Healthcare Private Limited)
CIN U70101WB1989PLC0O47402

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31% March, 2022

. CORPORATE AND GENERAL INFORMATION

GPT Healthcare Limited (formerly known as GPT Healthcare Private Limited) (the Company} was incorporated in
India on 17th August, 1989 in the name of Jibansatya Printing House Private Limited under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956 and is domiciled in India. The Company has changed its name to GPT Healthcare Private
Limited consequent upon change of name vide fresh cerlificate of incorporation dated 31st March 2005 and
having its registered office in GPT Centre, JC-25, Sector lil, Sait Lake, Kolkata - 700098.

The Principal activities of the company include operation of multidisciplinary private hospitals, clinics and
pharmacies. The company is having four Multispecialty hospitals. Two of them are in Kolkata, at Salt Lake and
Dumdum, one in Agartala (Tripura) and fourth hospital in Howrah, West Bengal. Besides, the company is also
engaged in Wind Mill Power Generation in Maharashtra and has one Nursing Institute in Agartala.

The company has been converted into a public limited company under the Companies Act, 2013 and
consequently the name was changed to “GPT Healthcare Limited” as per Certificate of Incorporation dated 15th

September, 2021.

. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

Statement of Compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (*Ind AS")
as prescribed by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 {“the Act"),
read with the Companies (indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 {as amended), other relevant provisions of
the Act and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.

These financial statements for the year ended 31* March 2022 has been prepared and has been approved by the
Company's Board of Directors in their meeting held on 03" May, 2022.

Basis of Measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for following:

Financial assets and liabilities that is measured at Fair value/ Amortised cost;
Defined benefit plans — plan assets measured at fair value;

Functional and Presentation Currency

The Financial Statements have been presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s functional
currency. All financial information presented in INR has been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the
requiremenis of Schedule I, uniess ctherwise stated.

Use of Estimates and Judgements

The preparation of Financial Statements requires the management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the management’s
best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could resuit in
the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.




GPT Healthcare Limited (formerly known as GPT Healthcare Private Limited)
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2022

2.5 Current Vs Non-Current classification
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2.6

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An
asset is classified as current when it is:

Expected to be reaiized or intended to sold or consumed 'n normal operating cycle,

Held primarily for the purpese of trading;

Expected to be realized within twelve maonths after the reporting period; or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

All the other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:

It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

itis held primarily for the purpese of trading;

It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting pericd; or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve menths after the reporting
period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities are classified as
non-current assets and liabilities respectively.

Adoption of new accounting standards

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") issued notifications dated 24th March, 2021 to amend Schedule Ili to the
Companies Act, 2013 to enhance the disclosures required to be made by the company in its financial
statements. These amendments are applicable to the company for the period starting 1st April, 2021.

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under
Companies (indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 23, 2022, MCA amended
the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, applicable from April 1st, 2022, as below:

tnd AS 103 - Reference to Conceptual Framework - The amendments specify that to qualify for recognition as
part of applying the acquisition method, the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the
definitions of assets and liabilities in the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting under Indian Accounting
Standards (Conceptual Framework) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India at the acquisition
date. These changes do not significantly change the requirements of Ind AS 103,

ind AS 16 — Proceeds before intended use - The amendments mainly prohibit an entity from deducting from the
cost of property, plant and equipment amounts received from selling items produced while the company is
preparing the asset for its intended use. Instead, an entity will recognise such sales proceeds and related cost in
profit or loss.

Ind AS 37 — Onerous Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling a Contract - The amendments specify that the ‘cost of
fulfilling’ & contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract
can either be incremental costs of fulfiling that contract {examples would be direct labour, materials) or an
allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts.

Ind AS 109 — Annual Improvements to ind AS (2021) - The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes
when it applies the 10 percent’ test of Ind AS 109 in assessing whether to derecognise a financial liability.

Ind AS 106 — Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021) - The amendments remove the illustration of the
reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the lessor in order to resolve any potential confusion regarding
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the treatment of lease incentives that might arlse because of how lease incentives were described in that
illustration.

Based on preliminary assessment, the Company does not expect the amendments listed above to have any
significant impact in its financial statements.

3.1

3.2

33

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A summary of the significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial statements are as
given below. These accounting policies have been applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial
statements except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing
accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

Inventories

» The inventories of all Medicines and other Medical care items traded and dealt with by the Company are
valued at cost, In the absence of any further estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to
make the sale, the Net Realisable Value is not applicable. Cost of these inventories comprises of all costs of
purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present iocation wherever applicable
applying the First in First Out (FtFQ) method.

» Stock of provisions, stores (including lab materials and other consumables) items is stated at cost. The net
realisable value is not applicable in the absence of any further madification/alteration before being consumed
in-house only. Cost of these inventories comprises of all costs of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location applying FIFO method.

> Linen are valued at cost. The net realisable value is not applicable in the absence of any further

modification/alteration before being consumed in-house. Cost of these inventories comprises of all costs of
purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location wherever applicable
applying the First in First Out (FIFO) method.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash eguivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand, cheques in hand and short
term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of change
in vatue.

Income Tax

income Tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss except to the
extent that it relates to an item recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current Tax

Current tax liabilities (or assets) for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be paid
to {recovered from) the taxaticn authorities using the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted, at the end of the reporting period.

Deferred Tax

Deferred Tax assets and liabilities shall be measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is realized or the liability is settled based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes {i.e., tax
base). Deferred tax is also recognized for carry forward of unused tax losses and unused tax credits.
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3.4.1.

3.4.2.

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses
can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period. The Company
reduces the carrying amount of a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow the benefit of part or that entire deferred tax asset to be utilized. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside the Statement of Profit and Loss is recognized either in other
comprehensive income or in equity. Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction
either in OC| or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legaily enforceable right to set off current tax assels
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the
Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT)is recognized as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing
evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. In the year in which the MAT
credit becomes eligible to be recognized as an asset, the said asset is created by way of credit to the statement
of profit and loss and included in deferred tax assets. The Company reviews the same at each balance sheet date
and writes down the carrying amount of MAT entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to
the effect that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Recognition and Measurement.

Property, plant and equipment held for use in the production orfand supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes, are stated in the balance sheet at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses (if any).

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment acquired comprises its purchase price including import duties
and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting any trade discounts and rebates, barrowing cost, if
capltalization criteria is met, any directly attributable costs of bringing the assets to its working condition and
{ocation for its intended use and present value of any estimated cost of dismantling and removing the item and

restoring the site on which it is located.

In case of self-constructed assets, cost includes the costs of all materials used in construction, direct labour,
allocation of directly attributable overheads, directly attributable borrowing costs incurred in bringing the item to
working condition for its intended use, and estimated cost of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the
site on which it is located. The costs of testing whether the asset is functioning properly, after deducting the net
nroceeds from selling items produced while bringing the asset to that location and condition are also added to the

cost of self-constructed assets.

I significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted
for as separate items (major components}) of property, plant and equipment.

Profit or loss arising on the disposal of property, plant and equipment are recognized in the Statement of Profit
and Loss. .

Subsequent Expendifure

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the cost incurred will flow to the Company and the cost of the item ¢an be measured




GPT Healthcare Limited (formerly known as GPT Healthcare Private Limited)
CIN U70101WB1989P1C047402
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31°° March, 2022

3.4.3.

h)

3.4.4.

3.4.5.

3.4.6.

reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when
replaced.

Major Inspection/ Repairs/ Overhauling expenses are recognized in the carrying amount of the item of property,
plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. Any Unamertized part of the
previously recognized expenses of similar nature Is derecognized.

Depreciation and Amortization

» Depreciation on tangible assets other than land is provided on straight line method except in Windmill division,

- where the company charges depreciation on writen down value method, at the rates determined based on the

useful lives of the respective assets as prescribed in the Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013 & in some
cases life as par technical certification has been considered below.

Class of Property Plant & Equipment Useful Lives (Years)
Building 60

Plant and Equipment’s 15

Plant & Equipment (Windmikf) 22
Furniture and Fixtures 3to 10
Vehicles 8-10
Computer and Office Equipment's 3toB

Books 5

Surgical Instruments 41013

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the fotal cost of
the item is depreciated separately. This applies mainly to components for machinery. When significant parts of
fixed assets are required to be replaced at intervals, the company recognizes such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation on additions (disposals) during the year is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e., from (up to) the date on
which asset is ready for use (disposed of}.

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if
appropriate.

Disposal of Assets
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are

expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Reclassification to Investment Property

When the use of a property changes from owner-occupied to investment property, the property is reclassified as
investmeant property at its carrying amount on the date of reclassification.

Capifal Work in Progress
Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost which includes expenses incurred during construction period, interest on

amount borrowed for acquisition of qualifying assets and other expenses Incurred in connection with project
implementation in so far as such expenses relate to the period prior to the commencement of commercial
production. Advances given towards acquisition or construction of PPE outstanding at each reporting date are
disclosed as Capital Advances under "Other Non-Current Assets”,
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3.5

3.5.1.

3.5.2.

v

Leases

Company as lessor
Leases for which the Company is lessor are classified as finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the

jease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as
finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of
the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Company as Lessee
The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of the contract. The Company

recognizes a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease arrangements in which
it is the lessee, except for short-term leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases
of low value assets. For these leases, the Company recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term, unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic bengfits from the leased assets are cansumed. Contingent and variable rentals are
recognized as expense in the periods in which they are incurred.

Right-of-use Assets (ROU Asgsets)

The Company recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease {i.e., the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-
use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognized, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the
exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. The right-of-
use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in Note 3.12 Impairment of non-

financizl assets.

Extension and termination options are included in many of the leases. In determining the lease term the
management considers all facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive to exercise an extension

option, or not exercise a termination option.

Lease Liabilifies
At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognizes lease liabiiities measured at the present value
of lease payments to be made over the lease term. Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease

liability comprise:

. Fixed lease payments {including in-substance fixed payments) payable during the lease term and under
reasonably certain extension options, less any lease incentives,

< Variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the
commencement date;

«  The amount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees,

»  The exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the options; and

+  Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an option fo

terminate the lease.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
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3.6

3.6.1.

3.6.2,

3.6.3.

for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is re-measured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate used fo determine such lease payments) or a change in the
assessment of an option tc purchase the underlying asset.

Lease liability and ROU assets have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have
been classified as financing cash flows.

Shori-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of Property, Plant &
Equipment (i.e. those leases that have a lease ferm of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do
not contain a purchase option). Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are
recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Revenue Recognition

The Company generates revenue from rendering of medical and healthcare services, sale of medicines and other
related activities. Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, establishes a comprehensive framework
for determining whether, how much and when revenue is recognised.

Contract balances: The Company classifies the right to consideration in exchange for sale of services as trade
receivables and advance consideration as advance from customers. Unbilled revenue is recorded for the service
where the patients are not discharged and inveice is not raised for the service as at reporting date.

Rendering of Services:

Revenue from Healthcare Services:

Revenue primarily comprises fees charged for inpatient and outpatient hospital services. Services include
charges for accommodation, theatre, medical professional services, equipment, radiology, laboratory and
pharmaceutical gocods used. Revenue is recorded and recognised during the period in which the hospital service
is rendered, based upon the estimated amounts due from patients and/or medical funding entities, Revenue is
also recognised in relation to the services rendered to the patients who are undergoing treatment/ observation on
the balance sheet date to the extent of the services rendered. Revenue is recognised net of discounts and
concessions given to the patients.

Revenue from Academic Senvices:

Revenue is recognized on pro-rata basis on the completion of such services over the duration of the program.
Revenue from Diagnostic Services:

Revenue is recognised at the time of generation and release of test reports, which coincides with completion of
service fo the customer.

Sale of Goods (Pharmacy Sale)

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized at the point in time when contro] of the goods is transferred to the
customer. The revenue is measured on the basis of the consideration defined in the contract with a customer,
including variable consideration, such as discounts, rebates, or other contractual reductions. As the period
between the date on which the Company transfers the promised goods fo the customer and the date on which the
customer pays for these goods is generally one year or less, ne financing components are taken inte account.

Sale of Power

Revenue from sale of Energy (Power) is recognised on the basis of Electrical Units generated net of transmission
loss as applicable when no significant uncertainty as to measurability & collectability exists.
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3.6.4. Interest Income

3.6.5.

3.6.6.

3.7

3.7.1.

interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference fo the principa! outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend Income
Dividend Income from investmenis is recognized when the Company’s right to receive payment has been

established

Ofher Operating Revenue

Incentive and subsidies are recognized when there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with
the conditions and the incentive will be received. Insurance & other claims, where quantum of accruals cannot be
ascertained with reasonable certainty are recognized as income only when revenue is virtually certain which
generally coincides with receipt / acceptance.

Employee Benefits

Short Term Benefits

Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related
services are provided. Liabilities for wages and salaries, including nen-monetary benefits that are expected to be
settled wholly within twelve months after the end of the péricd in which the employees render the related service
are recognized in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period.

3.7.2. Post-Employment Benefits

The Company operates the following post-employment schemes:
Defined Benefit Plans (Gratuity &long-term compensated absences)

The liability or asset recognized in the Balance Sheet in respect of defined benefit plans is the present value of
the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The Company’s
net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount
of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods. The defined benefit obligation is
calculated annually by Actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

The liability recognized for defined benefit plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the
reporting date less the fair value of plan assets, together with adjustments for unrecognized actuarial gains or
Josses and past service costs. The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance
of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of_plan assets. The benefits are discounted using the
government securities (G-Sec) at the end of the reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of

related obligation.

Re-measurement of the net defined benefit obligation, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on
plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling, are recognized in other comprehensive income.
Re-measurement recognized in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and
will not be reclassified to the statement of profit and loss.

Cefined Confribution Plan

Retirement benefits in the form of Provident and Pension Funds are defined coniribution schemes and are
charged to the statement of profit and loss of the period when the confributions to the respective funds are due.
The Company has no obligation other than contributions to the respective funds. The Company recognizes
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3.8

3.9

contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as expenditure, when an employee renders the selected
service,”

Government Grants

Government grants are recognized at their fair values when there is reasonable assurance that the grants will be
received and the Company will comply with all the attached conditions. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognized as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed. Grants related to purchase of property, plant and equipment are included
in non-current liabilities as deferred income and are credited to statement of profit or loss on a straight fine basis
over the expected useful life of the related asset and presented within other operating revenue or netted off
agzinst the related expenses.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the spot rates of exchanges at the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency spot rate of exchanges at the reporting date.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of
monetary assets and liabilities are generally recognized in profit or loss in the year in which they arise except for
exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under construction for future productive
use, which are included in the cost of those qualifying assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to interest
costs on those foreign currency borrowings, the balance is presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss within

finance costs.

Non-monetary items are not retranslated at period end and are measured at historical cost (translated using the
exchange rate af the transaction date}.

3.10 Borrowing Cost

>

Borrowing cost includes interest, amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of
borrowings and exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as
an adjustment to the interest cost.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or preduction of an asgset that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the
respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur. The Company considers a
period of twelve months or more as a substantial period of‘time.

Transaction costs in respect of long term borrowing are amortized over the tenure of respective loans using
Effective Interest Rate (EIR} method. All other borrowing costs are recognized in the statement of profit and loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

3.11 Interest in Associate

Investments in associate are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Where an indication of
impairment exists, the carrying amount of the investment is assessed and written down immediately to its
recoverable amount. On disposal of investments in associates, the difference between net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amounts are recognized in the statement of profit and Joss.

3.12 Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.
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Classification as debt or equity
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

3.12.1, Financial Assets

P

o o Qo

Recognition and Initial Measurement:

AII financial assets are initially recognized when the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments. A financial asset is initially measured at fair value pius, in the case of financial assets not recorded at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Classification and Subseguent Measurement:

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
Measured at Amortized Cost;

Measured at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI);

Measured at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL); and

Equity Instruments measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI).

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the
Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

Measured at Amortized Cost A debt instrument is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions
are met.

The asset is held within @ business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows;
and

The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPP1) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) methad.

Measured at FVTOCI: A debt instrument is measured at the FVTOCI if both the following conditions are met:

The objective of the business model is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial
assets; and

The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments meeting these criteria are measured initially at fair value plus transaction costs. They are
subsequently measured at fair value with any gains or losses arising on re-measurement recognized in other
comprehensive income, except for impairment gains or 'losses and foreign exchange gains or losses. Interest
calculated using the effective interest method is recognized in the statement of profit and loss in investment

income,

Measured at FVTPL: FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not
meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as FVTPL. In addition, the
company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FYTOCI criteria, as
at FVTPL. Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with ail changes
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Equity Instruments measured af FVTOCI: All equity investments in scope of ind AS — 102 are measured at fair
value. Equity instruments which are, held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments,
the company may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes
in the fair value. The company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument hasis. The classification is
made on initial recognition and is irrevocable. In case the company decides to classify an equity instrument as at
FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI, There is
no recycling of the amounts from OCI to P&L, even on sale of invesiment.




GPT Healthcare Limited (formerly known as GPT Healthcare Private Limited)
CIN U70101WB1989PLC047402
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31* March, 2022

» De-recognition

The Company derecognizes a financial asset on trade date only when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Company assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. Ind AS — 109 requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance. The company
recognizes lifetime expected losses for all contract assets and/ or all trade receivables that do not constitute a
financing transaction. For alt other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to
the 12 month expected credit losses or at an amount equal to the life time expected credit losses if the credit risk
on the financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition.

3.12.2.Financial Liabilities

>

Recognition and Initial Measurement:

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as at fair vaiue through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables or as derivatives, as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent Measurement:

Financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as
FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition.
Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense,
are recognized in profit or loss, Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in profit or
loss. Any gain or loss on de-recognition is also recognized in profit or loss.

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelied or expires.

.-

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realize the
asset and seltle the liability simultanecusly. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normai course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of

the counterparty.

3.13 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

>

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. An
asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of the asset exceeds its recoverable value being higher of
value in use and net selling price. Value in use is computed at net present value of cash flow expected over the
balance useful lives of the assets. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows
from other assets or group of assets (Cash Generating Units — CGU).

An impairment loss is recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which an asset
is identified as impaired. The impairment loss recognized in earfier accounting period is reversed if there has

been an improvement in recoverable amount.
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3.14 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assefs

3.14.1.

3.18.2.

3.18.3.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a resuit of a past event and
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required te settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting
the expected future cash flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognized as finance cost.

Contingent Liabilities

Contingent liability is a possible obligaticn arising from past events and the existence of which will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more-uncertain future events not wholly within the control of
the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because it is not possible
that an outflow of rescurces embodying economic benefit will be required to seftle the obligations or reliable
estimate of the amount of the obligations cannot be made. The Company discloses the existence of contingent
liabilities in Other Notes to Financial Statements,

Confingent Assets

Contingent assets usually arise from unplanned or other unexpected events that give rise to the possibility of an
inflow of economic benefits. Contingent Assets are not recognized though are disclosed, where an inflow of
economic benefits is probable.

3.15 intangible Assets

Recognition and Measurement

Intangible Assets are stated at acquisition cost, net of accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Subsequent Expendifure

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the cost incurred will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other expenditure is recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

Amortization
The useful lives over which intangible assets are amortized over useful lives over WDV method are as under:
Assets Useful Life {in Years)
Computer software 3

Disposal
Gains or losses arising from the refirement or disposal of an intangible asset are determined as the difference

between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and recognised as income or expense in
the Statement of Profit & Loss.
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Intangibie Assets under Development

Intangible Assets under development is stated at cost which includes expenses incurred in connection with
development of Intangible Assets in so far as such expenses relate to the period prior to the getting the assets
ready for use.

3.16 Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held for sale and discontinued operations

» Non-current assets {or disposal groups) are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use and a sale is considered
highly probable, They are measured at the Jower of the carrying amount and the fair value less cost to sell.

> An impairment ioss is recognized for any initial or subsequent write-down of the asset (or disposal group) to
fair value less costs to sell, A gain is recognized for any subsequent increases in fair value less costs to sell
of an asset (or disposal group), but not in excess of any cumulative impairment loss previously recognized. A
gain or loss not previously recognized by the date of the sale of the non-current asset (or disposal group) is
recognized at the date of de-recognition.

» Non-current assets (including those that are part of a disposal group) are not depreciated or amortized while
they are classified as held for sale. Non-current assets (or disposal group) classified as held for sale are
presented separately in the balance sheet. Any profit or loss arising from the sale or re-measurement of
discontinued operations is presented as part of a single line item in statement of profit and loss.

3,17 Operating Segment

The identification of operating segment is consistent with perfarmance assessment and resource allocation by
the chief operating decision maker (CODM). An operating segment is a component of the Company that
engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses including revenues and
expenses that relate fo transactions with any of the other components of the Company and for which discrete
financial information is available. Based on assessment of CODM in terms of Indian Accounting Standard — 108,
the Company is predominantly engaged in Medical Healthcare Services. income from Windmill & nursing
institute forms a very insignificant part and is not considered as segment by CODM for reporting purpose. The
company is primarily operating in India which is considered as single geographical segment.

3.18 Earnings per Share

Basic earning per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.,

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the pericd are adjusted for the

effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

3.19 Cash Dividend Distribution to Shareholders

The Company recognises a liability to make cash distributions to shareholders of the Company when the
distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. Final dividends on
shares are recorded as a liability on the date of approval by the shareholders and interim dividends are recorded
as a liability on the date of declaration by the Company's Board of Directors.

3.20 Measurement of Fair Values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both
financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.
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Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a Hability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either;

¥ In the principal market for the asset or [iakility, or
¥ Inthe absence of 2 principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an asset or
a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. A fair value measurement of & non-financial
asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its
highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best
use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of

unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

> Level 1 — Quoted {unadjusted} market prices in active markels for identical assets or liabilities
» Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or

liabifity, either directly or indirectly; and
» Level 3 — Inputs which are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets & liabilities. Involvement of external valuers is
decided by the management of the company considering the requirements of Ind AS and selection criteria include
market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained.

Significant Judgements and Key sources of Estimation in applying Accounting Policies

Information about Significant judgements and Key sources of estimation made in applying accounting policies that
have the most significant effects on the amounts recognized in the financial statements is included in the following

notes:

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets: The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on an
assessment of the probability of the Company's future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can

be utilized. In addition, significant judgement is required in assessing the impact of any legal or economic limits.

Useful lives of depreciable/ amortisable assets (tangible and intangible): Management reviews its estimate

of the useful lives of depreciable/ amortisable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected ufility of the
assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to actual normal wear and tear that may change the ulility of plant

and equipment.

Extension and termination option in leases; Extension and termination options are included in many of the
leases. In determining the lease term, the Management considers all facts and circumstances that create an

economic incentive to exercise an extension option, or not exercise a termination option. This assessment is
reviewed If a significant event or a significant change in circumstances occurs which affects this assessment and

that is within the control of the Company.

Defined Benefit Obligation (DBQ): Employee benefit obligations are measured on the basis of actuarial
assumptions which include mortality and withdrawal rates as well as assumptions concerning future

developments in discount rates, medical cost trends, anticipation of future salary increases and the inflation rate.
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A

The Company considers that the assumptions used to measure its obligations are appropriate. However, any
changes in these assumptions may have & material impact on the resulting calculations.

Provisions and Contingencies; The assessments undertaken in recognising provisions and contingencies have
been made in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 37, 'Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets'. The evaluation of the likelihood of the contingent events is applied best judgement by
management regarding the probability of exposure to potential loss.

Impairment of Financial Assets: The Company reviews its carrying value of investments carried at amortized
cost annually, or more frequently when there is indication of impairment. If recoverable amount is less than its
carrying amount, the impairment loss is accounted for.

Allowances for Doubtful Debts: The Company makes allowances for doubtful debts through appropriate
estimations of irrecoverable amount. The identification of doubtful debts requires use of judgment and estimatas.
Where the expectation is different from the original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value of the
trade and other receivables and doubiful debts expenses in the period in which such estimate has been changed.

Fair value measurement of financial Instruments: When the fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair
value is measured using valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow model. The input fo these
maodels are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this not feasible, a degree of judgement is
required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk

and volatility.

Estimation uncertainty relating to the glohal health pandemic on COVID-19: The Company has considered
internal and certain external sources of information up to the date of approval of these interim financial statements
in determining the impact of COVID-18 pandemic on various elements of its financial statements. The
management has used the principles of prudence in applying judgments, estimates and assumptions and based
on the current estimates, the management expects to fully recover the carrying amount of inventories, trade
receivables and other assets. However, the eventual outcome of the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic may be
different from those estimated as on the date of approval of these interim financial statements owing to the nature

and duration of COVID-19 pandemic.

R —
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4, Property, Plant and Equipment

Land . Computar &
Particulars Buildings Plar}t & Furr.uture and Vehicles Office Books Total
Freehold Machinery Fixtures
Equipments
Cost
As at March 31, 2020 1.6815.77 13,506.48 9,041.29 4856.75 142.31 215.98 038 2500797
Additlons - 47.82 33065 65.22 104.87 48.28 - 597.84
On Disposals/ Withdrawals {21.22) - - - - - - (21.22)
As at March 31, 2021 1,584.55 13,554.30 9,371.94 550.97 247.18 265.27 0.38 25,584 59
Additions - 14.34 499.57 49.07 75.87 85.77 - 694,62
On Disposals/ Withdrawals (2.50) - {112.88) - {11.62) - - (127.10)
As at 31st March , 2022 1,582.05 13,568.64 9,758.53 500.04 311.43 321.04 0.38 1 2615211
Depreciation
As at March 31, 2020 - G61.53 2277.30 172.22 23.87 85,37 0.38 3,230.68
Charge for the year - 228.92 808.60 64,18 21.67 44,43 - 1,167.80
On Disposals/ Withdrawals - - - - - - - -
Ag at March 31, 2021 - 830.45 3,085.80 236.40 45.54 138.80 0.38 4.398.47
Charge for the year - 230386 817.94 57.88 33.00 56.34 - 1,195,582
On Disposals/ Withdrawals - - {86.71) - (11.04) - - (97.75)
As at 31st March , 2022 - 1,120.84 3.817.13 294.28 67.50 19€.14 0.38 5.496.24
Net Block
As al March 31, 2020 1,615.77 12.844.95 6,763.98 313.53 118.44 12082 (D03 21.777.28
As al March 31, 2021 1,594.55 12,663.85 6,286.04 314.57 201.64 125.47 (0.009] 21.186.12
Az at 31st March , 2022 1,592.05 1244783 5.941.40 305.76 243.93 124.90 {0.00]| 20.655.87
Notes:
4.1 Refer note no.19 & 24 for information on property, plant and equipment pledged as securities by the company.
4.2 Refer note no.37(b) for disclosure of contractual commitment for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment.
4.3 Title deads of Inmovable Properties not held in namg of the Company:
As at Asat
31st March, 2022 st March, 2021
Titte deeds held in the nams of GPT Healthcare Private Limited
Whether titte deed holder is a promoter, director or relative of promater/ director Not Applicable
or amployee of premoter/ director
Reason for not being held in the name of Company Not Applicable
44, Capital work-in-progress
As at As at
Descriptions 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Balance at the beginning of the yzar 28.45 176.64
Additions during the year 71.83 38.70
Less: Capitalisations during the year {28.45) {92.33)
Laess: CWIP Written off during the year - {93.56)
Balance at the end of the period! year 71.83 29.45

4A.1 Additional disclosures as per Scheduis -1l requirement.:

As at March 31, 2022

As at March 31, 2021

. R Projects Projects Projects
Amount in CWIP for a period of in tamporaily Projects In temporaily
prograss
progress suspendad suspended
L ass than 1 Year 71.83 - 29.485 -
1-2 Years - - - -
2-3 Years - - - -
More than 3 Years - - - -
Total 71.83 - 29.45 -

There are no projects as on each reporting period where aclivity had been suspended. Also there are no projects as on the reporting period which has

exceeded coslt as compared ta its original pian or where completion is overdue.
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5. Intangible Assets

Particulars Computer
Software
Cost
As at March 31, 2020 123.69
Additions -
On Disposals/ Withdrawals -
As at March 31, 2021 123.69
Additions 2.42
On Disposals/ Withdrawals -
As at 3t1st March, 2022 126.11
Depreciation
As at March 31, 2020 108.12
Charge for the year 7.53
On Disposals/ Withdrawals -
As at March 31, 2021 115.65
Charge for the year b.88
On Disposals/ Withdrawals .
As at 31st March, 2022 121.83
Net Block
As at March 31, 2020 15,57
As at March 31, 2021 8.04
4.53
8 Right of Use Assets
Particutars Leizf]};"’d Buildings M:S;‘::w Total
Cost
As at 31st March, 2020 3.68 695.46 192.78 891.92
Additions - - - -
Disposals/ Withdrawals - - - -
As at 31st March, 2021 3.68 595.46 192,78 891.92
Additions - 712,64 147.28 859,92
Disposals/ Withdrawals - {155.54) - {155.54)
As at 31st March, 2022 3.68 1,252.56 340.06 1,596.30
Depreciation =
As at 31st March, 2020 - 34.59 25.35 59.94
Charge for the year - 37.36 34.42 71.78
On Disposals/ Withdrawals / . ) ) .
adiustments/Transfer
As at March 31, 2021 - 71.95 59.77 131.72
Charge for the year - 111.28 46.32 167.60
On Disposals! Withdrawals / - {51.85) - {51.85)
adjustments/Transfer
As at 31st March, 2022 . 131.38 106.09 23747
Net Block -
As at March 31, 2020 3.68 660.87 167.43 831.98
As at March 31, 2021 3.68 623.51 133.01 760.20
As at 31st March , 2022 3.68 1,121.18 233.97 1,358.83

6.1 Refer Note-41 for disclosure on IND AS -118 "Leases".
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¥. Non-Current [nwasiments Mumber of sharos Amoaunt
As at Asal As at As at

315t Wareh, 2022 Atst Marchs, 2021 318t March, 2022 351 March, 202§

Invastments In Aszodlatas
Eouity instnamonts (af cost unlaas othoryise staled)

{Ungusied)
T Mndicars Private Eimitad,
{Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each } h 13125 - .31
Total [A) S 7i3
Provision for impeinnent kn value for investments (B1} - -
Nat rvasiment (A-B) - 1.3
Aggragate Carrying value of Unquelad Investmonls - 71,51

Aggrenate ameunt of Impaiment in value of invesiments -

7.4 As required under sectian 186(4) of the Companles Act, 2013 the invesimant made in TW Madicare Private Limited is Tor genaral business purpase,
7.2 The Board of Directors al its ing had app. { 53lp of Elake in il's ossaciate, M T Medicara FPrivaie Uimited (TWMMPL). Accardingly, the company sald iis

antire stake in M THMMPL and the said cempany cegsed to bo an assacialn eompany w.o.f. st July, 2021,

TA. Non-Cumunt Flnancial lnvesimaonts Numbar of urits Amount

As ot As at As at As at

A1st March, 2022 st Mareh, 2089
I | at stised cosl
ent [ bentures
8,75% Edehreiss Financiat Sesvices Limited (Maturily:Qac, 2023} Face 50,000 - 500.0G -
Walue: Ra, 4,000 parunit
9.85% ECL Financa Limiled (Maturily: Aug, 2028} 1 - 0.01 -
Face Valua: Rs,1,000 par unit
50001 :

Book Value of Quoted investmenis 500,04 -
Markot Value of Quoled [nvastmants A75.04 -
TH. Current Invosiments Numbar of units Amount

As at As at As at Asat

35t Warch, 2022 3151 March, 2021 J1st Mareh, 2022 315t March, 2021

Imvestments measured at falr value {hrough profit and loss IFVTRLY

Invastment i
8.85% HOFC Bank Limiled Porpotual Bonds 50 - 538.208 -
Face Valuea; Rs.10,00,000 por unil
H30.26 -
Markal Yalue of Quotad Invastmanl 539,26 .
8. Loans Non- Current Cugonl
As at Ax at As at As at
313t Wareh, 2022 31t Mareh, 2029
{Unsecurod, considersd good unless athorwise stated)
Advancs given to employens against Salery & Others 5,38 6,44 16,78 5,00
Loen to Body Corporates [Refer Halo 8.2) - - 3,850.00 -
Loan b Relaled Parties {Relar Note 45) - - - 4.864.63
5,56 6.44 386578 4,869.63
Additional ¢|sclasures ag por Schedule -l requirement:
Amaunt of lean or advancs in the nalure of Parcontage of the tolal Leans and
Inan sutstanding Advancos |n tha nature of Leans
Typa of Barrowar A5 ot A= As at As at
st Margh, 2022 | st March, 2021 | 31stMarch 2028 | 13t March, 2031
- 4,428,713 | : 91.04%
- 435.82 . 8.95%
2,850.00 - 100.00% -
3,850,00 4,864,635 104.00% 100.00%
8.1 Advancas given to directors ardd ils eificers of the eompany amounts b ¥ £.39 In currant year (FY 20-2120.29)
8.2 Loan glven lo body corporales comes interest @ 8.75%, and tha ropayment schodula is stipulated in the agrooment
B.3 As requird undar saction 186(4) of tha Campanies Act, 2013 loan given In bedy carporaloes! refated parias arg for goneral business puwpose,
9. Other Financial Asset Mot Surrent Curront
As at Asal As at A= at
313t Mareh, 2022 aistMarch, 2691, . YistMareh, 2022 39wt March, 203t
Sacurity Dopasils (Refar Nota 9.1) 802 .81 201.1% - -
Inlorost acerued on Loan to Bady Corporales - - 186.00 -
Inferest acerued on Loan to Rolalod Parlies - - - 315.38
fnlerest accrued on nvesimenls 14,03 -
Othwr receivablos + - 2651 13
PO Expensas Recoverabla (Refer Note €.2) - - 476,75 -
Uinbilied Revenue - - 354,39 327,14
Fixgd doposit accounl wilh bank - maturity over 12 months (Reter Nola 10.16 _ _ .
8.5 :
612,97 20110, 1,054.98 573,83

©.1 During the year, the Gompany has ontered inte an long rm lease ogrecement with ihe tand owners ang develapers lor sotling up @ hosplial at Ranchi The lzase
1arm shald cammenca irom ihe dule of o iom of Iha demised Hespltal builtfing, As per the lgrms and condilions ef the afaresaid agreament, a0 amount o Rs.

«£7.60 |akhs has beon paid to the land ownors pa Seourity Dopoait.

9.2 burng the yaar, the Company has ir 1 oxf aggroguling to Rs. 476.75 Lokhs 1owords various servicos received in connaction with proposed Initial public
affer of its equily shares which Inclutios an offer far salie by exdsting shareholdors. As per the Offor A bt the Sompany and the selling sharehoklers,
ihe seling shareholdors ahall fei the afs Id oxp on pragori Lasis on fisling of the Company's equity sharas on stock exchanges in India,
Pencing such listing of the Company's sharos. lha aforesald amaunt has been congiderad Bs recoiwable from lhoso exisl hoders and reporied under “PO
expansas racoveratle”.

2.3 The amounl inciudes ¥ 1016 (F.Y. 2020-21 THil } pladged as security sgainst Gunk Guaranlee and Borrowings.

S e £

¥ Rl
Frag pouts
“dAcCy

-~



GPT Haalthcare Limited {Formerdy known as GPT Healthcare Private Limilgd)
CIN No : Urod 01WB1923PLO047402

Notes to He Standalone Fi in! Stat s for tho yoear endod 315t March, 2022
[All amownts are Rs In dakhs, except sharo data or elhorwiso slated)
10. Ron-Gurrent Tax Assols Az at As at
a) {17 t
Advance Income-Tax & TDS receivablo
[TDS net of provision - € 199209 { F.Y. 2020-2% . € 537.76)] e 28 i
164.26 95,69
11. Deferred Tax Asseis (Net) A3 at Asat

st March, 2022 31st March, 2021

Doforred Tax Assabs arising on account of ;

Section 438 of the lncome Tax Act 21797 $87.45
Unabsorbed Oeprociation 822.80 i.212.50
Carry forward Business & Capital lossas 28B.02 4,712.42
MAT Cradit Enlitiment 1,766.59 80543
Cthers 33.37, 34.41
Sub-Tatal (A} 3,228.64 345T.21
Defarrod Tax Liabilities arising on account of ©
Depraciabla Assels (PPE, Intangiale and ROU Assats) 2,856.95 2,800.66
Fair valualion of fi iaf insb I 0,28 -
Sub-Total {&) 2,857.23 2.800.66
Daforred Tax Assals lmtt !A-El! a71.31 GA6.55

1.1, Movement n delarred tax assets and Babllities during the year ended 31st March, 2021 and year ended 315t March, 2623
Rocopnized in Recagrized in Olhar

As at As at
Particulars Statement of Profit Comprehensive
1st April, 2020 apd.Los - 3tst March, 2021
Deferrad Tex Assols arlsing on =egount of @

Saction 428 of he Incoma Tax Act 146.42 41.80 {0.83) 18745
Unabsarbed Doprociatlan 1,213,580 v - 1,213.50
Carry forward Businass & Capital lossos 1.72587 {513.25) - 1212.42
MAT Cradit Entilmont §28.76 2B0.6F £08.43
Qlhers 3407 33,34 - 3441
3,615.48 (157.44] {0.83) 345721

Defarrad Tax Liakililies ansing or account of @
Depraciable Assais (PPE, Intangfake and ROU Assais) 2.B874.688 12578 - 2.800.68
2,674.80 125.78 - 2,800,686

940,60 {283.22) 0.8 BSB.SS.
Rocognized in R med in Olher
Parliculars 1at a':fif 14 StlomontofProfit  Comprehensive o, M'::c‘:. 2022
and Loss Income
Deforred Tax Assats arlebng on account of X

Sacition 430 of the Incamea Tax Act 18745 25.48 504 217.97
Unahsarbed Depreciation 1.213.50 (200.81) - F22.60
Cavry forward Business & Capital lossos 1,212.42 (924.40) - 288.02
MAT Cradil Entitlment BODA3 957,17 1,7688.5¢
Gilhers 34.41 {1.04) - 3327
3,457.21 (233.80) 5.04 3,238.64

Deforrad Tax Liabililies arising on accaunt of @
Dopratlable Assets {PPE, Inlanglble and ROU Assols) 2, BUD.G& 5E.30 - 2.856.95
Fair valuation of finandial mstruments - 038 - 038
Z.800.66 G660 - 2 BET.33
BEAR.55 {29028 5.04 371,38

11,2 Detared tax gssaty and Dafered 9 liabilifes have bosn gifset wharever tha Company has a legally enforeaable nght o Sel off currend tax assets against
aument 1ax Eablitins and where the doforrad lax assats and dofarred tax Babilities refate to incoma tax levied by tha samo taxation authorily.

1%. Othver Assots Hon Curmnt Current
As at Az at As at As at
3ist March, 2022 315t Morch, 2421 st March, 2022 315t March, 204
Copital advances 5.00 GB.27 - .
Advance againsl supply of gaods & services - - Y218 B4.11
Balanee with Governmend authoritles - - 2305 5826
Prepald Exponse 350 427 7048 8548
4,60 12.54 166.29 220.8%
14, Inventorios As at Asat
¥t March, 2022 34t March, 2031
{Walued at lower of cosl and ral realizable vaiua)
Wedicinas & Other C b 60713 §34.94
Stores & spares 121,32 107.61
128.48 842,55

3.1 Moda af Waluatian - Reler note no. 3.1 of significant accounting policy.
3.2 Rofer Hota - 12 & 24 far Inf fon on h f ior ol !

Y.




GPT Healthcare Limited (Fermerly known as GPT Hezlthcare Private Limited)

CIN No : UT0101WB19BIPLC047402

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statemments for the year ended 31st March, 2022
(All amounts are Rs in lakhs, except share data or otherwise stated)

14. Trade receivable As at As at
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Trade Recevables considered good - Sacured - -
Trade Receivables considered good - Unsecured 1,342.59 1,726.40
Trade Receivabies which have significant increase in credit risk . -
Trade Receivablas - credit impaired 122,79 103.17
1,465,328 1,828.57
Less: Aliowance for doubtful receivables
Trade Receivablzas . credit impaired (122,79} £103.17)
1!342.59 1.726.40
Additional disclosures as par Scheduls -|ll requirement:
For the year ended 31st March, 2022
Ouistanding for following periods from due date of Payment
Particulars Less than 6 | 6 Months-1 | .
Months Year i 1-2 Years 2.3 Years Mcra than 3 Vears Total
{i) Undispuled Trade Recaivables - Considerad 562.12 338,87 H 330.44 8761 27 585 1342 59
Good i ) ‘ ) ' M
{if) Undispuled Trade Recuivables - which have . - . . - .
significant increass in Credit sk
. . . . , 1147 .3 *¥.39 i 2.8 279
{ifi} Unrisputed Trude Receivebles - credil impaired 5.34 4.3 8284 12
(iv) Disputed Trede Receivables - Considered Good ] ] ) ) )
{v) Dispbued Trade Receivables - which have . i} N . B
significant increase in Credil risk
{vi) Disputed Trade Recaivables - credit impaired
For the vear ended 21t March, 2024
Quistanding for following periods from due date of Payment
Particulars Less than6 , & Months- 3 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years TFotal
Months Yoar
{I} Undispuled Trude Receivables - Considered 85.07 1.063.87 487.83 72.99 1874 4 796.40
Goad i T ) ) ' T
{if} Undisputed Trade Recewables - which have
significant incrsase 10 Credit rigk ) - ) B "
Tiﬁj_Ungispu:ed Trade Recsivables - crsdil impaived 174 2171 o361 | 550 50.91 10517

{iv) Disputed Trace Recsivables - Consicared Goed

{v} Dispuled Trade Receivables - which have
significant incress in Credit risk

{vi) Disputed Trade Reczivables - credif impaired

14.1 Receivables due by directors and its officers of the company is T Nil (FY 2020-21 T Nil)
14.2 In delermining the allowances for credit fosses of Irade receivablas, the Company has used 2 practical expedient oy computing the sxpocted credil ioss

allowance for traide receivabies based on 3 provision matrix, Yhe provision ma

iix lakes into account historical credit loss experience and is adjusted for forward

looking Information, The expected credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the receivables that are due and rates used in the prevision matsix, {Pedor note no -

43c()

14.3 Refar Note - 19 & 24 for information on bypothecation of trada receivables.

15. Cash and cash equivalenis

As et
J4st Marels, 2022

Halances wilh banks

Ag at
st Margh, 2021

Current accounts 792.86 4572.49
Cash in hand 33264 25.00
Chegue In Hard .30 0.12

826,80 471,61
current
16. Gther bank balances {Other than note - 15} As at As at
315t March, 2022 st March, 2021
Fixed deposits with Barks (malurity for more ihan 8 months but less than 12 meaths) 44,38 22.06
fxi posi 1 [aniks {n ¥ h 1 T 2%

16.1 The above amount includes ¥ 44,38 (F.Y 2020-21 ¥ 22.06 ) pledged as sacylii sgainst Bank Guarantes and Borrow:ngs.

.
et b arsi
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GPT Healthcare Limited {Formarly known as GPT Healthcare Private Limited)
CIN No ; U70101WE1989PLC04T402

Natos to the Standalane Financinl Statements for the year ended 313t March, 2032
(Al amournts are Rs i lakhs, exeept share data or atherwise stated)

17, Equity Sharo Caplta) As at As at
334t March, 2002 31st March, 2021
ot No. of Shares Amnint M. of Shares Amount
u
COrdinary sheres of 2 10 sach 85,000,000 B,500.00 18,000,000 1,800.00
Compulsorily Convarlibla Preferance Shares of 10 each 40,000,000 4,000.00 40,000,000 4,000 00
L Tzsoua0 _saves0
Izsued and subscribed Shara capital
Qrdinary shares of 2 10 sach [Equity Shares) 79,904,286 788043 17,941,000 1,794,940
Compulserily Corvertible Preference Shares of ¥ 10 each [ - 40,000,000 4,400,040
| 788043 5.784.10
Less : Instrument Classified as Equity
(Refer Note Na.17ih) & 174) . : 40,000,600 4,000.00
— 150043 SUU :TX 1}
a} Reconciliallon of the numbor of ordinary & preference shares 4t the beginning and at the end of the year,
Particulars Mo. of Sharas Amount Mo. of Shares Amount
(Opening Balance 17,941,000 1,794.10 17,841,000 1,784,910
Adtt: Shares issued during the year [Refer nola 17(el] 35,882,000 3,588.20 - -
Add; Equily Shaves issuad an canversion of 0.601% CCPS [Refer nols 17(h}] 28,081,286 2.608.13 - -
Clesing BaYance 78,604 288 7,980:43 17,941,000 1,794.10

Pursuant to a resolulion passed by the shareholders at the 32nd Annual Genaral Meating held on September 3, 2021, the Authorized Share Capital of the Company has bean increased from k4
580,000,000 {Rupess Five hundred and eighly millisn only) te ¥ 1,000,000,000 (Rupees One thausand million anly) cemprising of 60,000,000 number of Equity Share of Face value of ¥10 sach
and 40,000,000 number of 0.001% Compulsanily Canvertible Preference Shares of % 10 each ranking pari passu with 1he existing shares of the Company.
Subsequently al the Exlra Croinary General Meeling of the shaceholders held on October 1, 2021, the Authorized Share Capilal of the Company has been further increased from ¥ 1,000,00D.000
{Rugpees Dne thousand million only ) lo 2 1,250,000,000 (Rupses One thowsand two hundred and fifly millien only) comprising of 85,000,000 number of Equity Share of Face value of ¥10 each
and 40,000,000 number of 0.001% Computsorily Converticle Preference Sharas of € 10 each ranking pari passu with the existing sheres of the Company.

b) Terms! Rights atiached to Shares :
{i) The Comgany has cnly one dass of equity shares having a par value of T 10/- per share. Each holder of equily shares is entited to one vote per share, The Company declares and pays

dividend in Indian Rupee, in the event of liquidation of the Company, Ihe holders of equity shares will ba antitied to receive ramaining assels of the Company. The distribution wil be in proportion
1o e numiber of equity shares held by the shareholders.

{iiy All tha Preferance Shares shall carry a preferential fght over tha Equity Shares of the Company as regards o paymenl of dividend and repayment of capital, in ihe evant of winding of the
Campany. The dividend proposed, ¥ any, by the Baard of Directors [5 subject (o the approval of the shareholders in the Annual General Meeling.

c} Details of shareholders holding more than $% shares in the Compan
| As at 31st March, 2022 As at 31at March, 2021
Particutars Typo HNa. of Shates % Holding No. of Shares % Huolding
Sharos of T 10/~ aach, fully pald up
GPT Sons Private Limiled {Holding Company un lhe basis of| Equily 53,604,700 67.34% 17,840,500 93,997%
voling power)
- [Equily 35,082,765 30 B4% - |
Banyan Trae Growth Cagilal Il L.L.C. Preieronce Share e - 7,000,000 306507
d} Dotalis of P areholdin Compan
As at 315t March, 2022 As at 31st March, 2021
Promoter Name %age change during the year No of Shares % of Tatal Shores No. of Shares % of Total Shares
CPT SONS PRIVATE LIMITED F266% 53,804,700 67,34% 17,540,500 €0.097%
DWARIICA PRASAD TAMTIA Megligible 00 agligitle - -
OM TANTIA TANTIA Nagligible 1[4} agligible . -
SHREE GOPAL TANTIA Negligible 0% agligible . -

As per records of the Company, including is reglster of sharoholders / members as on 31st March, 2022, the above sharehnlding represents legal ownarship of shares.

) The Company has neilher gllolled any equily shares againsl consideration other than cash nor has bought back any shares during the perlod of five years praceding lhe dals at which the
Balance Sheel is propared except 358,62,000 bonus equily shares alotied in the ratio of 2 (two} Jully paid-up borug share of the face value of T 10 aach for every exisling 1 {ona) fully paid-up
enuity share af tha face value of Rs $0 sach as approved by the members at the Anrual General Meeling held on 3-d September, 2021. Thesa banus shares has been issued by capitatizing the
sum af 7 3588.20 Lakhs fram end aut of Securities Premium Reserve and balanca rmaunt from Genaral Reserve of the Company.

f) Na ordinary shares have been raserved for issue under options and cantracts/ commitments for the sale of shares! disinvastment as al the Balance Sheet dale,

1) No securities convartizle into Equityf Praferance shares have baen issuad by the Compary duriﬁ'g e year ended 31t March 2022

h} 0.00%% Compulsorily Convertible Preferenca Shaves (CCPS) of T 10 sach amounling 1o Rs. 4000 Lakhs [ 400,00,000 sharas hatd by Hanyan Tree Growih Capital # LL.C.). Each
Compulsorily Converliblz Prefersnce Sharas {CCPS) shall be convertible inta one equity share of T 10 each at a premium of T 35,01 per share at earliest of followlng: i) auction of invastor. i)
immediataly priar te liling of prospectus with respect Lo Initial public offering & iii) end of 19 years from the dala of subseription. The Board of Dirsclars at its meeling held on Januray 3, 2022 upon
raceipt of conversion natica from BanyanTree Grawth Capital It LLG, have approved the conversion af 40 millien 6.004% Compulsority Convertibla Preferenca Shares{CCPS) of T10 each face
value held by BanyanTrap Growih Capitel || LLC into 26,081,286 Equity 3hares of lhe Company of face value ¥ 10 each. Lipon conversion, the CGPS has bean extinguisted and accordingly, the
armount of # 13918 million has been fransferred to Share Premium aceaun.

i) Mo calls are unpaid by any Director or Oificer of tha Campany during the year.

H As at As at
17A Instrument entirely Equity in nature 14at March, 202 t Ma
Insirument classified as Equity
£.001% Cowpulsurily Convertibte Freference Shares of INR 10 each
Al Ine haginning of tha year 4,000.00 4,000.00
L.ess: Mandalory Equity Shares issuad on conversian of 0.001% CCPS {Refer Note 17 {h}] (4.000.00) I - 5
- 0000

At the end of the year




GPT Healthcare Limited (Formerly known as GPT Healthcare Private Limited}

CIN No : U701 01WB1489PLCD4T402
Notes io the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022
{All amounts are Rs in lakhs, except share data or otherwlse statad)

. Refer As at As at
18. Other Equity Note No. 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Capital Reserve 18.1 122.47 122.47
Securities premium reserve . 18.2 1,391.87 3,172.56
General reseive 18.3 2,653.73 3,069.37
Retained Earnings 18.4 3,658.75 1,231.65
QOther Comprehensive Income 18.5 - -
7.,827.82 7,596.05
5 As at As at
Particulars 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
18.1 Capital Reserve
Opening balance 122.47 12247
Changes during the year - -
Closing Balance 122.47 122.47
18.2 Securities premium reserve
Opening balance 3,172.56 3,172.56
Less: Utilisation iowards Issue of Bonus Shares [Refer note 17(e]] {3,172.58} -
Add: Generated from conversion of preference shares 1,391.87
Closing Balance 1,381.87 3,172.56
18.3 General reserve
Opening balance 3,068.37 3,089,237
Less: Utiisation towards Issue of Bonus Shares [Refer note 17(e)] . {415.64) -
Closing Balanca 2,663.73 3.069.37
18.4 Retained Earnings
Qpening balance 1,231.65 527.03
Add: Profit for 1he year 4,166.25 2,109.40
Add : Transfer from QOCI {12.28) 2.02
Less: Appropriations
Dividend Paid (Refer Note 49) 1,725.87 1,406.80
Closing Balance 3,659.75 1,231.65

18.5 Other Comprehensive Income ("OCI")
Remeasurement of Defined Banefit Plans
Opening balance -
Add/ Less: Gain f {Loss) on Remeasurement of Defined benefit plan (Net of Tax} {12.28) 2.02
Less : Transfer 1o Relained Earning 12.28 (2.02)
Closing Balarnce - -

18.6 Natura and purpose of other reserves

Capital Reserve
Capital reserve of T 122,47 Lakhs was created on marger of CG Securilies Private Limited and Matrix Dealcomm Private Limited with the company,

pursuant to scheme of arrangement dated 1st October, 2009

Begpurities premium reserve .-

Securities premium reserve represenis premium received on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013.

General reserve

Under the erstwhile Companies Act 1956, a general reserve was creafed through an annual transfer of net profit at a specified percentage in accordance
with applicable regulations. Consequent to the introduction of the Companies Act 2013, the requirement fo mandatory transfer a spesified percentage of
net profit to general reserve has been withdrawn,

Retained Earnings
This Reserve represents the cumulative profits of the Company and effects of remeasurements of defined benefit obligations. This Reserve can be utilized

in accardance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013

Other GComprehensive Income : Remeasurement of defined benefit plans

Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return on plan assets
{excluding net interest), is reflected immediately in the Balance Sheet with a charge or credif recognised in Other Comprehensive Incame (OC) in the
period in which they oseur. Remeasurements recognised in OCH is reflected immediately in retailed eamings and will not be reclassified to Statement of

Profit and loss.




GPT Healthcare Limited {Farmesly known as GPT Healthcare Private Limited)

CIN No : UTIM01wWB1989PL.C047402

Hotes to tha Standatone Financlal Statements for the year ended 215t March, 2022
(a1l amounts are Bs in Jakhs, except share data or otherwise stated)

19.% Term Loan from Finangial institutions

= As at
19. Non Current Borrowings Refer Note No. 31st March, 2022 — As at 31st March, 2024
Mon - current Current maturities Mogp - currant Current maturities
Securgd L. :
Term Loan from Financial Institutions 1981 224,97 | 20,167 1,816.014 530.30
Term Loan from Banks 19,2 5,993 76 1,905.92 B,14B.59 1.067.41
Other Loans
Equipment / Vehicle Loan 19,3 25.47 37.55 262 B0 261,93
7.244.20 1,963.63 10,229.20 1,859.54
L.ess: Curenl Forion (disclosed under Shon term
borrowings- Refer Nate Mo.24 ) - {1,963.63) . {1.859.84)
7.244.20 - 10,220.20 -

i} Term Loan from HOFC Limited is secured by first charge of 2nd and 3rd fluor of Mursing Hostel logethar with 2 covered car parking spaces on Ground flooe, alongwith all
areas appurienant tharelo building called Euphoria, situaied at J N Mukherjee Road, Dag No - 52, 87, 66, 56, PS- M.P. Ghora, Howrah - 711108. The datails of repayment

10.2

terms and raie of inlerest are as under:

Remnaining Rate of Interest| Closing Balance as | EMI Payable within 1
Loan end Date Instalment (p.a) at 31.03.2022 year
Sep-28 80 §.05% 245.13 20,46

Term Loan from Banks

it Term loan from Stale Bank of Indiz is secured by firs charge by regisiered mongage of hospital building {ILS Dumdurm} having a buill up area of 63,908 5q.it. along with
undivided share of land measuring 18.83 coliah al premises no.1, Khudiram Bose Sarani, Kolkala - 700080, hypelhecalion of all the lixed assets of the company excepl
equiments financed by ather lenders, personal guarantee of some of the directors & corporate guaraniee of GPT Sons Private Limited, Working Capital Tesm Loan from
State Bank Of India ameunling fo ¥660.00 lakhs shall rank second charge wilh the existing credit faciities in respect of underlying secudty already charged fo the exisling
credil faciities as well as cash flows for repayment. The detall of repayment lerms and rate of interest is as under.

Remaining Rate of Intarest; Closing Balance as| EMI Payable within 1
Loan end Date instatment (pa) at 31.03.2022 year
Jul-24 28 B.65% 1.247.87 503.31
Jul-32 124 B.65Y% 843.06 237
Jan-26 48 7.65% 540.48 165.00
2,731.41 720.66}

i) Term Loan from Punjab Natienal Bank (Sanclion Limited Z 4500 lakhs} is secured by equitable martgage over the land of 1654 sqm wilh Hospilal building thereon in the
name of IS Howcah situaled on crossing of 98 Abani Dalta Road, P.S. Golabari, Howrah, hypothecation of Medicat & Non-Medical Equipment, Fursiiure and other assels
purchased oul of ihis Ioan along with first charge of Escrow accotni opened with PNE for touting of all inward cash flows of the company. Warking Capital Term Loan from
Punjab Mational Bank amounting 1o 7883.00 iakbs is secured by exlension of charge on the exisling underlying secusity already charged 1o ihe Bank. The details of
repayment terms and rale of inlerest are as under:

Loan and Date Remaining Rate of Interest] Closing Balance as | EMI Payable within 1
Instalment ip.a.} at31.03.2022 year

Mar-29 85 8.25% 3.741.86 405.31

Jan-26 48 7 80% 855.62 223.56

_4,597.48 528.87

jiiy Loan from LIC Housing Finance Limited of Rs. 185,698,465/ has been \aken over by HDFC Bank on 01-09-2021, The loan is secured by equilable mortgage of Hospital
building situated at Hokling No.00009/Nz, House No.0300407, Rs Plat No.2145/4448, Cs Plal Ne.1774 {P). Mouza Kunjaban, Tahsil Indira Nagar, Ps Agartala Easl, New
Secrelariat, Capital Complex Road, lls Hospitals, Agartata, first charge by way of hypolhecalion of entire movable fixed assets of ILS Agariala Mospilal {excepl specifically
charged ko Sundaram Finance, Kotak Mahindra Prime, Siemens Financisl Services, Aiahabad Bank) and current assets of the company, personat guarantee of Dr Om
Tantia and Mr Anurag Tanlia and Corporate Guarantee of GPT Sons Pyt. Ltd. The details of repayment terms and rate of inlerest are as under:

19.3

Lgan end Date Remalning Rate of Interest] Closing Balance as| EMI Payable within 1
instalment ip.a.} at 31.03.2022 year
Nove24 3z 7.10% 1,570.79 556 37
Equipment! Vehicle Loans are secured by first charge of equipmentsf vehicles procured fram such Joans. The delails are as under:
Loan Loan end Date Remalning Rate of Interest Clnsing Balance as | EMI Payable within
en Instalment [p.a) 81 31.03.2022 i year

Siemens Financial Services L1d. 28-Jun-22 3 10.00% 2.16 2.76
Sundaram Finance Ltd 03-Dec-22 9 9.50% 214 213
Sundaram Finance Ltd 10-Feb-23 114 10.75% 5.39 5.39
Sundaram Finance Ltd 10-Cet-24 3 9.50% 15.73 5684
Kolak Mahindra Prime Lid. B3-Nov-23 20 B.03% 29,5 17.28
Bank of Baroda 12-Now-23 20 7.45% TA2 435
53.02 37.55

19,4 Term Loans fram Stale Bank of India, Punjak Nationat Bank & HDOFC Bank and Qverdsafl facilily (including non-lund based faciliies) availed from HDFC Bank ase alse
secured by Corporate guaraniee given by Holding Company, Mis GPT Sons Private Limiled. Tolal Fund and Non-Fund based outsianding at the year ended 31st March,
2022 towards Corporate Guaranlee laken lrom Holding Company amounts o ¥ 7,538.08 lakhs.

19,5 The company has not defaulied on any loaas payable, and lhere has been ne breach of any [oan covenants.
1.6 The company has regislered all the applicable charges wilh Registrar of Companies wilhin ihe sialutory period.
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022
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20, Lease Llabilities

Non- Current

As at As at
3istMarch, 2022  3fst March, 2039
Lease tiabllities (Refer Mote 41} 498.08 214.27
453.08 214.27
21, Other Financlal Liakllities Non- Gurrest
As at Asat

315t March, 2022 31st March, 2021

interast Accrued bul nol due on borrowings
interest payable an income Tax

Employee refated liabilities

Securily deposit

Capital Creditors

22. Pravisions

Nan- Current

As at As at
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021

Provision for Employee Banefits *
- Gratulty {Refer Note 38)

- l.eave encashment

- Bonus, Ex-Gratia & Incentives
Other Provisions

- Preferance Dividend

405.41 342,72
24577 217,76
651.18 560.48

Current
As af As at
21st March, 2032 31st March, 2021
105.81 62.15
105.81 62.15
Current
As at As af
1st March
30.34 FOT3
- 23.00
405.48 102.44
17.48 1048
106.55 160.04
B849.85 374.53
Current
As at As at

31st March, 2022 315t March, 2021

44,49 17.50
23.82 +3.83
320.03 21556
- 0.04
397.3d 245.93

* The classification of provision for employee benefits into currentinon current has been dene by the actuary of the Company based upon estimated amount of cash

oulflow during the next 12 months from the balance sheet date.

23, Other Liabilities Non- Gurrent Current
As at As at As at As at
Jist March, 2022 J1st March, 2021 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021

Advances from customers - - 192.24 101.33
Advances for sale of Land - - 4.12 4,74
Statutary dues payabls - e - 233,07 185.25
Peferred Revenue 1,263.10 4,327.85 84.45 £4.45

1,263.10 132758 494.05 355.77
23.1 Movement of Deferred Revenue
Particulars Amount
Opening Balance (Current + Non Current} 1,382.00
Government Grant recaived during the year -
Less: Deferrad Reavenue on Gavernment Grant recognised |n Profit and Loss Staterment 84.45
Ciosing Dalance 1,327.65
Less: Gurrent poriion of Deferred Revenue Grant carried forward as at year end 64.45
Non-Current portion of Deferred Revenus Grant carrled forward as at year end 1,283.10
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

{AHl amounts are Rs in lakhs, except share data or otherwise stated)

24. Short term Borrowings As al As at
J1st March, 2022 315t March, 2021
Working Capitat borrowings
From banks:
- Owerdraft (Repayable on demand) 344.04 203.78
Currant Maturities of Long lerm barrewings (Refer note no - 1¢} 1,983.63 1,858 .64
2,307.67 2,063.40
The above amount includes : '
Secured Loan 2307.67 2,063.40
Unsaecured Loan - hd
2.307.67 2,063.40

Terms & conditions :

24.1 Overdraft of Nil {P.Y. T 203.76) from Axis bank is secured against equitable morgage on land and building at Mouza Gopalpur, South Narayanpur, Kolkata-
700426 Additional security of pari passu first charge over the inventory, stock, book’ debis and other current assets of the company both present & future, personal
guarantee of four directors and the corporate guarantee of GPT Sons Private Limited. The loan carries an interest at the rate of 9.35% per annum during the current
year, The Overdraft facility has been closed during he year and necessary salisfacilon of charge has been filed with Regisirar of Campanies {(RoC).

24.2 Overdrafl of T 344,04 (P.Y. Nil} from HDFC bank js secured by eguitable morgage of Holding No. Rgm- 3/142, Narayanpur South, Block 1, Rajachat Gopalpur,
Po Rajarhat Gopalpur, Kolkata 700 136, Ps Dum Dum Airpert, Mouza Gapalpur, J No 2, Ward Ho 8, North 24 Parganas, first charge by way of hypothecation of enlire
movable fixed assels of ILS Agarlata Hospital (except specifically charged o Sundaram Finance, Kotak Mahindra Prime, Siemens Financlal Services, Allahabad
Bank) and curreni assets of the company, personal guarantae of Or Om Tantia and Mr Anurag Tantia and Corporate Guarantee of GPT Sona Private Limited, The
loan carries an interest at the rate of 7.10% per annum as at 315t March, 2022,

Pravisitn for Income Tax

As at As at
#5. Trade Payable 31st March, 2022 315t March, 2021
Due o micro, small and medium enterprises {Refer nota 38) 75.95 051
Due ta other than micro, small and medium enterprises 2.816.88 2 088.08
2,892.83 2 588 87
25.1 Includes payabls to director of the company is Nil {FY 2020-21 T 154.50}
Additional disclosures as per Schedule -lll requirement:
For the year ended 315t March 2022
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Unhilfed due Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3years| More than 3 years
{i} MSME - 75.95 - - - 75.95
{iiy Others 82.34 2,566,568 24.54 23.31 - 2,818.88
{iiiy Disputed dues - MGME . - T w - ” -
{iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - - - N
For the year ended 31st March 2021
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Unbilled due Less than 4 year 1-2 yaars 2-3years| More than 3years
(i) MSME - 0.681 - - - 0.1
(ii} Cthers 260.04 2,049.91 278.1% - - 2,588.06
(i) Disputed dues - MSME - - - . - T
(v} Disputed dues - Others - - - - - .
- As at As at
26, Current Tax Liabilities 445t March. 2022 15t March. 2
- 308,11

308.11
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

(Al amounts are Rs in lakhs, except share data or otherwise stated)

27. Revenue from Operations

For the year ended
31st March, 2022

For the year ended
31st March, 2021

Révenue from rendering healthcare services
- Operaling Income from indoor patient

- Qperaling Income from outdear patient
- Ingome from nursing school

Revenue from sale of products
- Wind power
- Pharmacy Sale

Other Operating revenues
Deferrad Revenue Income on Governmeni Grant

27.1 Refer Note 35 for disclosure related to IND AS 115

18,579.67 13,880.45
5,605.9¢ 3,136.91
177.54 142.00
24,563.11 17.159.36
J8.38 27.20
8,075.54 7.024.0
9,113.92 7,051.51
G4.45 B84.45
64.45 64.45
33,741.48 24,275.32

28. Cther income

For {he year ended
31st March, 2022

For the year ended
31st March, 2021

Interest income : Ve

On Bank / Other Deposits 1.93 1.30
On Loans 339.68 317.68
Qn Invesiments $1.03 -
On Others 44.85 74.87
397.46 393.85
Other Non Operating income
Rent received .82 2435
Liabilities f Provisions no longer required written back 24.78 108.52
Profit on Sale of Property, Flant and Equipment 9.15 64,77
Frofit on Sale of Investments 17.98 -
Gain on Fair Vatuation of investments measured at FVPTL 1.32 -
Gain on retirement of ROU Assets 11.33 -
Miscellaneous income 4.98 19.52
101.44 217.16
498.50 511.01
—
For the yearended  For the year ended

29. Cost of material consumed (Medicines & Other Consumables)

31st March, 2022

31st March, 2021

Inventory at the beginning of the year 534.94 496,78
Add: Purchases * 8.810.28 5,765.07

9,345,23 6,261.85
Less: Inventory at the end of the year . 607.13 534.94
Taotal 8,738.10 5,726.91

* Met of Revenue Grant of T 43.75 (P.Y. ¥ 83.98)

30. Employee benefit expense

For the year ended
31st March, 2022

For the year ended
31st March, 2021

Salaries, Wages and Bonus 4,956.13 3.800.69
Contribution 10 Provident and Other Funds 273.31 243,49
Gratuity (Refer Note 39} 04,79 73.04
Staff Welfare Expenses 54.15 48.96
5378.38 4,166,18

30.1 Includes payabie lo director of the company is 56,50 (FY 2020-21 Nil)
For the year ended  For the year ended

31. Finance costs

315t March, 2022

31st March, 2021

interest Expense
- On Term Loan from Financial institwlions
- On Term Loan from Bank
« On Unsecured Laan
« On Equipment / Vehicle Loan
- On Short term Borrowing from Bank
- On Lease Liabilities
«On Income Tax
Other Borrowing Costs

- Other Financial Charges

107.95 566,39
825,52 576.414

- 23.27
26.80 41.71
2.12 9.23
52.90 35.30
4.22 23.00
95.98 98.37
1,115.4% 1,374.68
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Notes to the Standalonz Fii Tal St ts far ihe yoar ended 315t March, 2022
{8l amownts are Ry n lakhs, except share data or olherwise stated)

For the year ended

For the year ended

32, Dopreclation & Amorlisation Expense 315t March, 2022 245t March, 2021
Dapraciation on Pragerty. Mlant & Equipment 1,195.52 1,167.80
Clepredalion on Right of Use Assats 157.80 71.78
Amortisation ef Inlangibte Assels 5.88 753
1,359,00 1.247.11
Forthe year ended For the yoar ended
32. Qther Expenses st March, 2022 315t March, 2021
Power ard fupt T41.74 B7G.73
Rent 30,43 4282
Rates end {axes 88.25 267 80
fristirance 8126 5370
Rapalrs.and. mainle T
- Plant ard machinery 683,71 160,74
- Buddings 251.41 191,72
- Others 28547 206.71
tdachine Hire Charges 130.11 63.51
Prafessionat charges and llancy faes 103.89 412.62
Doclors payout 707203 53,198.24
Printing & stalionary 242,08 105.25
Quilsouread sorvices 132318 1,936.12
Tsaveling and conveyance 12787 329
Aud
- Statutory Audlt fee 10.84 9.25
-in clher capacity 0.50 Q.10
Bad Dabls wrillen off - 33,00
Sundry 2alencas wrillen off 6,60 -
Prowision for Doubtful debls 18.62 32,09
Capital Work-in Prograss wiithen of 0.00 93.58
Loss an saleddi d of Prapedy, plent 3 equif 2062 -
CSR Expanges (Refar Hota 40) 42,38 3240
Director's Sitiing Feas 17,46 -
Seling and distribution expenses
- Adverisement expensas 254.51 2847
- Business promolion expenses 554 024
Cther Miscellaneous expenses 211.05 242,45
12.241.58 k) m
For the year ended For the year cnded
34, TAX EXPENSE 313t March, 2022 315t March, 2021
Current Tax for the year . 942.00 503.00
Deferrad Tax for ihe year {including MAT Credit entillement} 290.28 28322
Tax Exponse for current year 1,232,278 786.22
Incorne Tax far earliar years 8.30 {(#A7}
Tax Expense in S1atement of Profit & Loss 1&41.58 77905
341 lliatlem of estimatad | tax exp at Indlan y | tax rato to ] tax exp reported in stat t of compr '
Income
Incoims before income tavas 5407.83 2,688.45
Indian Stetutory Incame tex Rate* 29.12% 28.12%
Estimeled Income tax expensas 1,574.76 £244.12
Tax effect of adjusiments to reconelle expacted Ingpme $ax oxpense Lo reporded Income lax expenso;
income exsmp! or Nt chargeabla to tax {2.57) {88.18)
Lxpenses Disallowed for tax purpose 13.57 43,25
Oeiarrad Tax assets recognised an Leng-tamm Capital loss [27.55) -
Addifional MAT Gredil enlitfement recognised for earier years (124.01)
Others {201.99) 1.08
(342.48) 54.90
I Tax cxf in the Siat t of Frofit and Loss 1,232.28 796,22

* Includes amount set-off from brought forward business lass on which dafemed tad was nol recognized in eaiar yoars

34.2 Seclion 115844 of the Income Tax Acl, 1961 made effective for finenclal year 2020-21 pursuant to Taxatlon Laws [Amendment) Ordinance, 2019 dated
September 20, 2019 gives a ana fime ireversitie option for payment af income (ax al reduced rate w.a.f financial year sommencing 15t April, 2019 subject lo cerain
conditions. The company has made an assessment of the impact of the above amandment and decided to conlinue with the sxisting tax structure until ttilzalion of

exdsting MAT cradit and brought forwang l2ss from specified business,

For the yosr endod For the year ended

35. Eaming Per Share o Hst March, 2022 31st March, 2021

Frofit as per Statement of Profit & Loss alidbutable 10 Equity Sharahakders 4,188.25 2,108.40
Lass ! Preference Dividend (including Tax) - 0,04
FProfitf Loss atter Tax and Preference Dividend (a) 4,166.25 2,108.36
Faid-up Equity Share Capitat {in number) (Refer hote 35.1} 79,904,286 53,823,400
Add: Mandatary Eqully Shares ta be issued on convarsion of £.001% CCRS (Reler hNote 35.2) - 26 081.286

E

Total Welghted Average numher of Equity Shares (In number] for caleulating Baslc & Biluted EPS |b) 78,904,206 79,904,288
Basic and Diluted Eaminte Per Shace (ath) (Nominal Value - ¥ 10/ per share) 5,21 2.64

35.1 The Gompany Has issuad and allotted 358 82,000 bonus aquily shares in Ihe ralio of 2 {two} fully pald-up banus share af the f2ca valus af Rs, 10 each for every
existing 1 {one) fully paicd-up equity shara of the faca valua of Rs 10 each hald &s approved by the members at the annual ganeral meeting held on 2rd September,
2021, 1n terms of IND AS -33, Eamings per share of current period and previous periods have been adjustad far konus shares lssued durng the year ended st

March, 2022,

35.2 As stated in nate na. 17¢h), the company has fssued 26,081,288 equity shares of the company of face value 310 sach on conversion of Compulscrly Canveriile
Fraference Sharas (CGPS), Further, In terms of Ind AS-33 "Eamings per Share” ihe aforesaid equity shares 1o be issued on conversion of Compulsorily Convartibla

Freference Shares (CCPS) hes been conslderad for Lhe calculation of Basks EPS for the previous year ended 315t March 2021,
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022
(All amounts are Rs in lakhs, except share data or otherwise stated) -

36 Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 115
A. Nature of goods and services
The following is a description of principal activilies separated by reportable segments from which the Company generates its revenue

a) The Company is principally engaged in providing Medical & Haalthcare Services which includes operation of multidisciplinary private
hospitals, clinics and pharmacies. Besides, the company is also engaged in Wind Mill Power Generation in Maharashira and has one Nursing
institude in Agartala.

B. Diszaggregation of revenue
In the following tahla, revenue is disaggregated by primary geographical market, major products lines and {iming of revenue recognition.

Year Ended Yaar Ended
By Primary Geographical Markets March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Within India 33,677.03 24,210.87
Quiside India - -
Total 33,677.03 24,210.87
ii} Major Products & Services
Sale of Services
Healthcare Services .. 24,385.57 17,017.36
Nursing School 177.54 142.00
(A} 24,563.11 17,159.36
Sate of Goods
Pharmacy (Medicines and consumables) 9,075.54 7.024.31
Wind Power 38.38 27.20
{B) 9,113.92 7,051.51
(A+B) 33,677.03 24,210.87

C. Contract balances
The following table provides information about receivables, contract assets and contract lahilities from contracts with customers

As at Asat
- - 2 31-Mar-2021
|. Receivables, which are included in 'Trade receivables’ 1,342.59 1,726.40
II. Conlract assets (Unbilted Revenue - Refer Note 9) 354.39 327.44
WIl. Contract liabilities (Advance from Customers - Refer Note 23) 192.34 101.33
Total (1+1-111} 1,604.64 1,852.21

0. Other Information

l. The Company generates its entire revenue from contracts with customers for the services at a point in time. Revenue pritmarily comprises fees
charged for inpatient and outpatient hospital services. Revenue is recoided and recognised during the pariod in which the hospital service is
rendered, based upon the estimated amounts due from patients and/or medical funding entities.

I Remaining performance cbligations : The Company has applied practicat expedient in Ind AS 115 and has accerdingly not disclosed
information abaut remaining performance obligations which are part of the contracts that have ariginal expected duration of one year or less
and where the Company has a right to consideration from a customer in an amount that corresponds directiy with the velue fo the customer of
the entity’s performance compieted to date,

Il Significant payment tenms ; The amounts receivable from customers become due after expiry of credit period which is basically 30 - 60 days.
There is no significant financing component in any transaction with the customers.
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Notos to 1he St lone Financigl St for the year ended 315t March, 2022
(ALl amounts are K5 in lakhs, oxcept share dala or otherwise stated)

. As at A5 at
37 Contingont Liablifles and Commitm
ingent - ants 31-Mar-2022 M-Mar-2029
37fa] Contingent LiabRlles (to the extent not provided for) :
Bank Guarantaes oustanding 88.46 88.45
37(b) Capital Commitment
Eslimaiat amount of contracts remaining ta be execided and nel pravided for (net of advances Nl far 2021-22 & ? - 9517

G8.27 far 2020-21) #

F7{¢) The Code on Soclal Secwrily, 2020 {Code) related ta various employee benefits recaived Presidential assenl in September, 2024 and has been published In the Gezatte of
india, However, the date on which the Coda wikk come in effect has not pern nolified and the finel rules? Inlerpretallan have nol vel been Bsued. The Company will assess fhe
imgact of the Code when il comes into effect and will record sny retated impact in e period the Code bacomes effactive,

38 Outails of dues to migro and small enterprises as definod under the MSMED Act, 2006 included in Trade payables*
Parlculars

As ai As at
31-Mar-2022 31-Mar-2021
Principal emount remaining unpaid o any supplier al the and of accounting year 76.95 0.61
Imeresi dua on shove - -
Tolal 7595 0.81
Amount of interast paid by the Company io the supplers in terms of section 16 of ihe MSMED Act, 2006 alongwith - -
pald to the suppliers beyond the respective dua date
pmounl of inleres! due and payable for the year of delay in payments (which have been paid but beyond the due date during - -
{he year) bt without adding the interes! specified under the Acl

Amouni of interest acervad and remalning unpaid ! Ihe end of accounling year . .
Amound of funher interest ramaining due and payable aven |n the succeading years, unll such dale when the interesl dues - -
as aboye are actually paid bo 1he smell enterprise, for he purpose of disallwance as a deductible expendilura under saction
23 ol this Act,

* This inf tion has been ined 10 the extent such parties hove Been Identified on the basis of famelion available wilh the Company.

39 Employee Beneflt (Defined Beneflt Plan)
The Company has a Defined Benelit Graluity plan. Every employes who has complsted at least five years ar more of servics is enililed ta Gratuity on lerms as per the
provisions of The Payment of Gratuily Act, 1972, The schemae |s funded.

The folfowing tables summarnze he compenents of nat benefil pxpanse recognized in ha Statement of Profit and Lasa and the fundad siatus and amounts recogaized in the

Balanca Sheel for tha plan. i
3%a} lParticulars 31:-Mar.22 M-Mar-21
iChange In projected benafll obllgations
Ohligalions at beginning of the year 368.38 307.04
Current Sarvice cost £2.85 51.95
Past Senvice cosi - -
Intesast Gost 2642 21449
Benelits Fald (21.97) {11.68)
Actuarial {gain) Hass (through QCI) 18.06 {0.42)]
Oblgations at and of the year 455.84 368.38
39(b} |Particulars 31.Mar.22 31-Mar-21
Change In plan assms -
Plan assets 2 baginning of the year, at feir valug 818 5,96
Intarest Income 0.58 04D
Actuestal galn /lass) (through OCH Q.74 243
Contributions 2243 1145
Benefits Paid {24.57) {11.68)]
Plan asscts at end of the yoar 9.94 8.15 |
34fe] Amount recagnised n 1he Balance sheet conalat of ; -
Particitlars 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Net Dafined Beneflt llablilty f {assei}
Prasent vaiue of defined bensfit cbligation at the end of the year 450.84 360.38
Fair value of plen assets at lhe end of the year 9.94 3,16
Nat |labllityf{asset] rocognisad In the Bal Sheat - 448,80 J6e0.22
Recoqnised - As Cument * 44,49 17.50
“The Company expects fo conkibute T 44,49 % i15 gratuity fund during the next 12 months.
38(d) |Farticulars 31.Mar22 3-Mae-21
Exy gnised |n Stak t of Proflt and Loss
Service cost 80.85 51,88
interest cost {net) 24.84 21.0%
Total Jhlsed In S of Profit and Loss {Rofer Note no.30) 94.7% 73.04
39(e) |Particulars 31:Mar-22 31-Mar.21
Re-measursment (gains} f losses In QC)
Acluarial faain} f loss due To financial assumation changes [3.14} 19141
Aciuarial {aain} f loss due 1o experdence adiusiments 21.20 (12.53)
Return on plan assets (nreater)fless than diacount rate ora (2.43)|
Total expense figain) routed through CCI 1732 [2.B5)]

29(f) The major categaries of plan assets of the fair valua of the tolal plan asseds arg ag foliows:
Achy, ain}{ loss due | gnhce adustments I 31:May-22 | 31-Mar-1 ]
tments with ing ] 100% | 100%)
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1al Stat
; Fi g assumplions used in detaminin

ts for the year onded 318t March, 2022
ratuit t!eneﬁlob! alions for lhe company's plans ara shown below:

The

Paljllm._llars #-Mar-22 31-Mar2]

Discaunt Rate T.10% 6.00%
Salary Escalation Rate £.00% 6.00%
Mortality Rate FALM (2012-14) 1ALM (201214}
Withdrawal Rale e 1% 10 8% 1% to 8%

in tha emplaymen markal

“The estimates of fture salary Incroases conaiderad in actuadal velvation take account of inflation, seniorily, promelien and aihor relavant factors, such as supply and demand

A quanlilative sensilivily analysls for significant assumption as ai March 31, 2022 is as shown helow:
Particulars Sensilvity ItMar.22 3-Mar-21

Increase Cincraase Increase Decroase
Effects un Defined Benefit Obligation duc to changs in
Furihar satary increase 1% 518,87 110,63 A03.35 319,49
Withdrarwal rates 1% 465658 45278 2381.80 352.88
Discount Rale % 41114 §19.08 319.71 403.83

Tha sensilivity analyses above have been delormined based on & method that extrapolates the impacl an dafined benafil obiigation a5 a sesull of seasonable changes in key

assumplions oecurying al iha end of the mperting period.

The e duration of ihe baneflt plan obigation at the end of 1he raporting year Is 5.50 years {March 31, 2021: 5.26 years). The distrbulian of ihe liming of
banefils payment L., the malunly analysis of 1he banefil payments is os fallows ©
Particutars Amoupt
Expocted banefits pay for the year ending on
March 34, 2023 44 4%
March 31, 2024 24,50
March 31, 2025 25,57
March 31, 2026 26.68
March 31, 2027 27.03
March M, 2028 to March 31, 3042 153.78
Defined Conidbuiion Flan -
Particulars Forthe yearended | For the year ended
318t March 2022 3151 March 2021
Canlribution ko Provident f Pension funds (Refer nole 301 184 34 166.27
Dlaclasures of Corporate Soclal Responsiblilty (CSR) expenditure In line with the roquirement of Guidance Note an "Acceunting for Expondituro on Corporate
Sacial Responsibiity Actlvitles”
For the year ended | For tho year ended
Partlcutars 31st Margh 2022 31zt March 2021
{i} Amount of CER expanditure 1o be incurred dunng the year 42,20 20908
(i} CSR expendilure incured during the year 4238 32.00
{iii} Shartfall at ihe and of year A il
{Ivh Tatal of Pravious vears shorifall NLA. WA
{vwy Reason for Shorfall HA WA,
{vi) Refaled parly Iransaclion as per vd AS 24 in relation to CHR expenditure 37.38 11.00
{vii) Whera provision is made with respect 1 a liabilily Incumred hy enterng Into & conlractual bligation, the mavement in the NA NA
provision dunng e year ke ke
{wiif} Mature of SR acilvilies :
ta] Promailng healthcare 14,94 37.00
{b} Promating animal welars 315 -
(<) Promoling education 3,24 .
(<} CHizaster relief 6.16 -
{a} Selfing up old ange homas 5.00 -
if] Ensuweing enviranmental sustainabily. scological balance 875 -
Leases

The Company has enterad inlo agreements far taking on lease cerlain oifices/medical equipmants ele. an lease snd licance basis. Tha lease term is for & period ranging fram
410 7 yaars, on fixed rental basis wilh escatation clauses In the jease agreements. in addilicn to'tha above, lhe Company has certaln leasehold land under finance lease

amangemanls which has been rectassified from groperly, plant and equipment to righl of use assels during the previous year.

{a) Carrylng value of Right-af-use assots

Particulars Leasehold Land Bulldinge Plant & Machinery Totat
Balance ag at 15t Apri!, 2021 3.68 £623.51 133.01 TEn.20
Addition during ihe year - 712.64 147.28 850,92
Disposals! Wilhdrawals - 155.54 - 155.54
Lass: Depreciatian for the yoar - 111.28 45.32 157.60
Less: Dapragiation on Disposals! Withdrawals 51.85 - (51.85)
Balance as at 34st March, 2022 1.88 1,121,418 233.57 1,358.83
?b% Movement In Leags Liabllities
Particulars Amount
Balanca as at 1st April, 2021 278,42
Additions during the year 83227
Finance Cost acerued during the year 52.80
Less. Retirement during {he year 115.02
Less: Payment of Lease Liablities for the year 142.68
Balance as at 315t March, 2022 603.55 |
|Non-0urrent Leasy Liabilitias 498.08 |
Current Leass Llakilllleg 105.51
runl expenses which was earfler recognised under other 6 NGWY rEGOY i as dep

5 I the staternenl of profit and joga far tha cument year,
sssels and inlerest on lease labily Under finance cost.

iation of figh! of use

The adoption of lhis standard did nol have any significant imgact on Lhe profit for the year and eamings par share.

The oparaling cash flaws for the year ended 31st Merch, 2022 has increased by ¥ 142,65 and the financing cash fows have decreased by 142,68 es payment of feade

ligbililies.

d) The weighted sverage incremental borowing rate of 8.00% has been applied 10 lease lighifiles recognised in the batance shest
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{a)

{b)

<)

o Maturity analysis of lease lizbllities =

As per the requirement of Ind As-107 malurity analysis of laase liablily have been shewn under maiurity anatysis of tinancial labilties under tiquidily risk JRefer note 43 (c)
{19)]. Tha Gompany does not face a significant liquitity fisk with regard to its lease fiabilties as the.current assels are sutficiant 1o meot the obligation relaled to tease fiabiildes
a3 and when Ihey fall dua.

1} Renlal sxpensas & Machinery hire chargas for short-lern leases, low value leases or leases which are cancoellable in nature amounts 10 T 30,49 & ¥ 130.71 respeclively for
he vear ended March 31, 2022, (Relar Nolae 33)

Capital Managemant

The Company's obechive to manage its capita! is 1o ensure conlinity of business while at ha same Yime provide ressonable ralums to ils vanous staksholdars but keep
associated costs Lnder contral. In order 1o achieve Mhis, requirement of capltat is reviewed perlodlically with reference fo operating #nd business plans that lake inlo account
capital axpendilure and slrabegic invesiments, Apart from intemal aceruat, sourcing of capltal is done thrugh judiclous combination of equity and bamawing, both shart lerm
and fong temn. Nal debl {letal borrowings) ko equity ratic ia Lsed 1o monitar capital.

Partlculars | 31-Mar-22 i 31:Mar.21 |
Debt Equity Ralio | 0.0 | 0.2 |

Disclesure on Financlal Instrumont

This sectian gives an overview of the significence of financia! instruments for the Company and provides additional information ¢n Balance Sheet fems fhat contain financia!
nstruments

The datails of significant agcounting palicies, including the criterla for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which incume ars! expenses are recognised in
respeci of each dlass of fmancial asset, finangial Kability and equily nstrument are discloged in Nole ne. 3.42 to the financia! slalements.

Financial Asaet and Llabllities {Non Current and Gurrent )
The following tables prasents Ihe camying value and fair value of 2ach calegory of Tinancial assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021

Particutars Balance as at Mareh 31, 2022 Balaney as af March 31, 2021
FUTPL Amortlaed Carrying PYTPL Amaortised Carrying
Cost Value Cast Value

Financlat Azzots
i} Ir 11 in an Convariibl - 500.01 £00.01 - - -
Debeniuras
(i) tnvesiment in Bonds 532.25 - s36.26 - - -
(i) Trade recaivable “ 1.342.59 1,342.59 - 1,726.40 1.726.40
(iv} C23h end cash eguivalents “ 826,80 826,80 - 47781 A77.61
(v) Other bank belances - 44,38 44,38 - 22.08 22.06
(vi} Losns - 307135 3,871.36 - 507747 507717
(wil) tnlerast Acoread on Loans - 197.02 147,02 - 315,38 31539
E‘\gﬂmfhzsnswh malurity of mora than ) 1015 1016 ) ) )
() Qthar fMirancial assets - 1,460.76 JAB076 - 358.45 35845

538,28 5, 253,07 §,792.33 - FOTT.OT 7.977.07
Financial Llabilities
(i} Borowings - 9.551.87 9,551.87 - 12,292 80 12,292,860
(i} Leasa Lisbililes - 603.89 503.69 " 276.42 276,42
(i) Trade payables - 2859283 2,852.83 - 258867 2.5BB.87
{iv} Interast Acerued but nok dua - 30,34 30,34 - T8.73 7872
(v) Capital Creditors - 106,85 106.55 - 160.04 160.04
(vi} Payable 10 ernployees - 495.48 495.48 - 102.44 102.44
{vil] Olhers financlal labllifies - 17.46 17.48 - 32.48 33.48

- 13,698.44 13,608.44 - 15 532.38 15,532.28

Since (here & no Financial Asset/Financlal Liabilily which is measured al Fair value Through other Comprehensive Incame, no separate disclosure has been made for the
same in fhe atove table.

Fair Value hierarchy

Partlculars [ Asat31.03.2022 | As at31-03-2029
trvastment in Bonds (Quoted Price in Active Markets) Leysl -1 | 530,265 | -

There as r Iransfer bebween levels during ihe year.
The carying value of irada receivablas, trade payables, cash and cash equivalents, loans, bomowings and other cusrent financial 435818 and labiililes approximate thelr fak

values largely due tz the short-term malurilies, T
Since none of tha financial assatsfiabilifies has been Fair Valued gh Othar Comprehensive Income, no soparate disclasure has been given far Level 1, Leve! 2 and

Lavel 3,
The tair valua of the fnantial assela and Nablitles is included at the amount at which the Instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction bobween willing partios, ofher

than in a forced oF |lquidation sake.

Fl fal RIsk Manag t
The Company has & Risk Management Policy which covers risk assotialed with the financial assels and fiahililies. The Risk Menagemenl Policy s approvad by the Direclors,
The ditfavent types of risk impacting the feir velun of fingncial instruments ang as below

L Crodit risk
The credil risk refors to the risk that a counterparly will defeult on ks contraclual cbligations rasulting in financiel loss to the company. Majority of the Company's transaction

are esmed in cash or ¢ash equivalenls. The trade receivable comprise of mainly of raceivables from Insurance Companias, Corporale Companies, Sovernment Undertakings

Cuslomer credit risk is managed by Ine Company subjecl 1o the Company's established policy, procedures and contrad relating fo cust aradil sk ls]
Ouistanding customer raceivables are requlary monitored, The maximum exposure te cradit risk al the reporting date is the carrying value of trade saceivable disclosed in

nota no. 14

Mare (han 1 Yoar &

As at 39st March, 1022 Less than 1 Yn:‘r—_ tess than 3 Year More than 3 Yoar
Gruss &3 amount 020.40 434,78 110.19
cled loss rate (A 4} 2% 5% 75%
Expeciad credit sses {Lass alavmance piovision) 18.4% 21.74 82,64
Camying amount of trade recelvables {nel of loss allovance 901,88 413.05 27.55

o /
g aoet
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As at sl Mar\:‘h, 2021 Less than 4 \-'_ear Mora than 13*“;;& Mgare than 3 Year
137298 i 550.23 66,85
Fox) 2% % 735
Expecied credit losses (Loss allowancs provision) 2345 285 50,21|
ng amount of irade recelvebles (net of iass allowance) 1,148,894 560,772 16.74

Reconciliation of 1065 allowanco provislon - Trade Rocaivahioe
Loss sllewance on 31 March 2020 TLO0R

cnanges in losy ellevweence {Nety 32.09
Lo#s allowance on 31 March 204 103.17
cnanggs In 1059 allcweanca ‘NBII 19.62

122.73

Lose ajtowance on 31 Maret 2032

H. Liquidity rizk

The Campany delemines its fiquidity requirernent in the shart term and lony 1emm. The Company menags 15 iquidity risk in & manner so as {o meet Iis finandal obligalions
vithout any significant delay or stress. Such risk is managed throuph enswring qperational cash flaw while al he same lime mairtaining adequale cash and cash equivalant
posilier. The management has armanged for diversified funding sources and adopted a policy of managing assals with liquidity manifering future cash flow and liquidily on a
reguiar basls. Besides, i generally has cerlain undrawn credit faciities which can be assessed as and when required; such credit facilities are reviewed al regular basis

{it  BSaturity Analysis for inanclal liabilif vs
The folkewing are tha remaining sontraclual maturilies of financiat liabifiios as at Mareh 31, 2022,

Particulars On Demand 0-6 Monthe Upto 1 ¥r ¥ - 3%y Mare than 3 Yr
Non.dorivative
Trade payahles - 2.802.83 . - -
Borrowings 344.04 971.24 992,49 3.634.58 3.609.60
Laase Lisbiles - 5185 §4.16 200,11 207.97
Other financlak Ifabilles
Inleragl Accoued but not due on borrowings - 30.34 - - -
Gaplte! Craditors - 108,55 - - -
Payable {» employaes - 495.48 - - -
Othars finangisl ablliles - i7.48 - - -
Total 344,04 4 565,57 1,046,57 3,834.6% 3.807.57
Tha following are 1he remaining contracluat malurilies of financial izblilies a5 at March 31, 2021,
Partleulars On Demand 0-€ Months Upie 1Yr A¥r - 3¥r More than 3 ¥r
Non-derivative
Trade payables - 2,588,67 - - -
Baorrawings 203.76 808,88 97076 4,457.53 & 77167
Leass Lisbilities - 3019 31.96 139.72 74,55
Qther financat dlabilltes
Interest Accrued but not due on harowings - 7873 - - -
Cepital Cradilors - 160,04 - - -
Fayablae 1o employees - 102.44 - - -
Others financlal flabilities - 3348 - = .
Total 203.76 348243 1,002.72 4,597.25 5846272
1. Market risk

NMarket sk is the dsk that the falr value of future cash flows of a inanciat insleument will flucluate because of changes in market prices, Markel risk comprises wo typas of
risk; Inleras rata risk and forsion currency risk. Financial instnaments afected by market sk inchide borawings, trade recelvable and trade payatbl

{1 Interest rate sk [nterest sats rsk |s Lhe risk that tha fair vatue or fulure cash flows of the Company's financiat instruments will fuctuate because of changes in merket
interast rates,
a) Exposure to interest rate rsk

Fariicuiars P Ji-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Fixed Rate Instruments

Financlat Assets 4,090.54 5,202.07
Financ/at Liabiltizs 8302 524 53
Variable Rate Instr t:

Financial Assels - -
Financial Liabilities 9,488.85 11,768.07

(b} Internst rale Sunsitivity: A change in 50 basis points in tha Intarest rate would nave feliowing impact on profit before tex and other equily

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
1 Analuel Impacton Impact on
Particulars Sonaitivity Analy Profit before Other Equily Frofit hefare Tax Olher Equity
Tax
Interast rate incraase by 0.50% {47.44) {33.63) (56.84) 1.7}
Interast rate decrease by 0.50% 47.44 3363 58.84 41.71

[¢) Foreign Ciurency risk
Foraign cumency risk is the risk that tha fair value or future cash flows of an exposture wi flucluale b of chang
have slgnificant fareign curmency exposure and hance, is nat exposed to any significant forsign curency risk.

m foreign ye rates. The Company does not
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[A% amounis are Rs in [akhs, except share data or otherwlse staled)

lute 1) raquir

44, Ratios &s per the

4] Current Ratie = Current Assets divided by Current Lrah_lllties

% Change fram previgus year

| Partloulars March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Cugrent Assets N 8,560.54 ' 8,£32.93
Cument Liabililies 8,847,595 5,998,72
Ratlo 1.28 1.44
% Change from previous year A3%
b} Debt Equlty ratlo = Total debt divided by Total equity whare total debt refers to sum of current & non current borrowings
Particulars March 31, 2022 | March 34, 2021
Total debt 9.551.87 12,202.58
Tolal equily 15,818.25 13,390.18
Ratlo 0,60 0.92
24%

Reason for change more than 25%: Thera has been improvement in operaling profits and cash flows during the year ended 315t March, 2022 as compared io

earlier year.

¢) Debt Service Coverage Ratio = Earnings available for debt services divided by Total interest and principal repaymends

Parliculars March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Profil after tax 4,166,25 210940
Add: Non cash operating exy and i cost 2,474.49 2621.79
-Dleprecialion and amortizalions 1,356.00 1.247.11
Flnance cosl 1,115.48 1,374,656
Earnings available for debt services 5,840.74 4,731.19
Inlerest cost on borrowings 962,38 1.218.01
Principat repayments {including certain prepayments) 2 B88.15 1,238.07
Total Interest and principal repayments 3,850,54 2,456.08
Ratlo 1.72 1.93
1% Ghangs trom pr year “10%

d) Return on Equily Ratio / Return on Investment Ratic = Net profit alter tax dt Ided by Equity

Partlculars

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021 |

Net profis after 1z 4,166,285 2,108.40
Total equily 15,818.25 13,290.15
Ratlo 26.34% 15.75%
Change in basis poinis {bps) from previous year 1058
% Change from previous year 57%

Reason for change mora than 25%: There has been improvement in operating profils and reduction in interesl rales, resulling in enhancad return on

investment,

e} Inventory Turnower Ratla = Cost of materials consumed dlvided by Closing inventory

Particulars

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Cosl of matenals consumed 8,738.10 572891

Closing lnventory 72B8.45 54255
Invantory Turnover Ratio 12.00 B.51
* Change from previous year 5%

#eason for change more than 25%: The Company has implemented belter Inlemal controls and improved monitoring of the laventory which has lead o

improvemant in kweniory tumover ratio

Rallo

Trade Recelvables turnover ralic = Credit Sales divided by Cloging trade ivables
Particulars March 31, 2022 | March 34, 2021
Credit Sales 11,503.54 4 635.68
Closing Trade Receivables 1,342.5¥ 1,726.40
8.57 5.58
M S4%

% Change from pravicus year .

Reasen for change more than 25%: The company has implerented belter internal contepls far submission of elaims to insuranco companies and honce the

trade recelvables hava improved.

Tracde payables turnover ratlo = Credit purchases divided by Closing trade payables

Partlculars

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Credit Purchases “TTTB,a10.29 5,765.07
Closing Trade Payables 289283 2,586,657
Ratlo 3105 223 )
% Change from pr year 7%

Reason for change more than 25%: Due to enhanced operaling profitabilily along wilh improvement i cash flows, the Company has been able te reduce tha

{rade payabtes and hence the improvernent in the ratio.
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44. Ratios as per the Schedute Il requirements

h) et Capital Turnover Ratic = Sales divided by Net Working capltal whereas net working capital= curvent assets - curment llabitities

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

% Chan GfI'OI'I‘I revious year

Gales 33,741.48 2427532

Wel Working Capital 1,720.9% 2.633.20

Ratlo 19.61 9.22
113%

Reason for change more than 25%: There has been improvement in operaling profils and cash flows during the year anded 31st March, 2022 as cornparad to

earier yaar,

i) Net profit ratio = Net profit afer tax divided by Sales

Particulars March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021

Net profit after lax 4.166.25 2,109.40
Sales 33,741 4% 2427532

Ralio 12.35% 5.69%
Change In basis polnts {bps) from previous year 56

% Change from previous year 42%

Reasan for change more than 25%: There bas been improvement in oparating prefits and reducticn in interest rates, resuiling in betler Net profit ratio,

) Return on Gapltal employed {pre cash)=Farnings before interest and taxes{EBIT} divided by Capital Employed (pre cash)

Particulars March 31 2022 | March 31, 2021
Profil hefare lax {A) 50783 2,888 .45
Finance Cosls {8} 11549 1,374,658
Other income {C} 428.00 611.01
EBIT {D} = {AyH{E}-[C) .- 6,024.42 3,6052.12
Capital Employad {Pra Cash) (J)={E}(EFG-(H)-(1} 24,064.37 25,221.98
Total Assets (E) 32,322.36 31,721.37
Currant Liabiltlies [F} 6,847 85 5,899.72
Current Investments () 53026 -
Cash and Cash eguivalenis {H) 826.80 477.61
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents (I} 44,38 22.08
Ratio {D){J} 25.03% 14.48%
Change n basls points (bps) from previous year 1055

% Changs from pravious year 3%

Reason for change more than 25%: There has been improvement in operating profils and reduction in interest rates,
Employed.

resulling in higher Return an Capital
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45 Related Party Disclosure pursuant to IND AS -24

A

Name of Related parties:

a) Holding Company
b} Associate Company

¢} Fellow Subsidiaries

d) Entities in which Holding company / KMP
exercises significant influences

e) Key Management Personnel {KMP)

f) Relatives of Key Managemeant Personnel

GPT Sons Private Limited
TM Medicare Private Limited {upto 30.06.2021}

GPT Estate Private Limited
GPT Castings Limited (upto 30.06.2021)

GPT Developers LLP

GPT Infraprojects Limited

GPT Castings Limited (w.e.f 01.07.2021)
Govardhan Foundation

Mr. Dwarika Prasad Tantia — Executive Chairman w.e.f 01.10.2021
(Non-Executive Chairman till 30.08.2021)

Dr. Om Tantia — Managing Director

Mr. Anurag Tantia — Executive Directar

Dr, Aruna Tantia — Director

br. Ghanshyam Goyal — Director

Mr. Naval Jawarharlal Totla {Nominee Director-Banyan Tree Growih Capital Il
L.L.C. upto 15.11.2021)

Mrs. Kriti Tantia - Chief Finance Officer

Mr. Ankur Sharma - Company Secretary

Mr. Kashi Prasad Khandelwal - Independent Director {w.e.f. 15.09.2021}

Mr. Bal Kishan Chofidhury - Independent Director (w.e.f. 15.09.2021)

Mr. Hari Modi ~ Independent Director (w.e.f, 15.09.2021)

Dr. Tapti Sen - Independent Director (w.e.f. 15.08.2021)

Mr. Saurabh Agarwal - Independent Director (w.e.f. 15.09.2021)

Mr. Amrendra Prasad Verma - Independent Director (from 15.09.2021 till
15.11.2021}

Mrs. Niharika Tantia - Wife of Son of Dr. Om Tantia
Dr Ankush Bansal - Spouse of daughter of Dr. Ghanshyam Goyal
Dr. Nandita Bansal - Daughter of Dr. Ghanshyam Goyal
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[All amnunts are RS in lakhs, excopt share data or otherwise stated)

B.

&

Transactions During the Year and Balance Quistanding as at 31st March 2022

Nature of Transacticns Holding Fellow Entities in which Key Relatives of Total
company Subsidiaries/ holding company g 1t Key
Associale oxercises significant I | Manag 1t
Company influences Personnel
1oan Given "
GPT Sons Private Limiled 11.125.00 o ol - - - 1.125.00
|GPT Estaie Private Limited - 525.28 - s - 325.28
- F.Y.2021-32 1,125.00 325,28 - - - 1,450,238
F..2020-21 (3.083.00] (215.23) {3 {-} {-} {3.209.33}
Loan Ralund received (Inckuding fnterast)
GPT Sons Privale Limiled w5, 034,62 o . « -
GPT Eslale Private Limiled - 793,82 | - K .
F.¥.2021.22 5,934.62 733.82 = o E
F.¥.2020-21 (1,710.003 (114.55) ) [B]4 [B]
Interest Income on Advances f Loans
GFT Sons Privale Limied 128.27 - - - 128.27
GPT Ezlate Private Limiled . - 1.71 - 47
F.¥.2021-22 128,27 471 - i - 13298
F.Y,2020-21 (287.00) {30.68) [&) [5] {- 31 ?.@]_I
Income from Outdoor Fatients |
GPT Inkaprojects Limited - - 0.55 - i 0.55|
F.Y.2021-22 - “ 0.56 - - 0.55)
F.Y.202¢-21 [ [ ) {2 ) 5]
Dividend Paid
GPT Song Privale Limited ~T1,255.84 - - - . 1,255 .54
F.¥Y.2024.22 1,255.84 - - . - 1,255.84
F.y 2020-21 {986.73) -} o &) (2] (986.73)
Security Deposit Pald
GFT Sons Private Limited - - - . - -
GPT Esiale Private Limited - 61335 . . £13.35
F.Y.2021-23 - 612.35 g - - 61335
F.Y.2020.21 o] 18] ) ) ) ]
Pharmacy Sale
Or. Om Tantta __+ - - - . - -
F.y.2021-22 . | i - - N
F.'¥.2020-21 I ) @) {0.90} ) £0.90%)
Boctors Payoul
Or. Aruna Tanla 45.97 - 45,97
[, Ghanshyam Goyal - a4 92 - 94.92
Dr. Ankush Bansal - - 8.62 8.62
Or. Wiharika Tanlia - - 7.81 7.8%
01, Mandita Bansal - - - 1.1 1.
F.Y.2021-22 - L - 140.83 17.44 158.33|
F.¥.2020-11 ol () {=} {104.91) (50.25) {155.16)
Salary/Remuneration Pald v
Or. Om Tanlia - - 17523 - 175.23
Me. Anuraq Tanlia - - 53,56 - 3356
Me. Bwarika Prasad Tanlia ** - - i31.80 131.50
Mrs. Kriti Tanlia - - 45.78 . 45.78
Mr. Ankwr Shianna - - BIFT7 837
F.¥.2021.22 - - - 444,84 - 444.84
F.Y.2020-21 [ (-4 -} {161.60) [S) (161,691
Blrectoss Sitting Fees Pald
Dr, Aryna Tantia - 0.80 - [e):1s)
Or. Ghanshyam Goyal - . 1.20 - 1.20
Mr. Dweariks Prasad Tanlia . - .40 - 040
Mr. ¥ashi Prasad Khandehyal A - 4.00 - .00
Mr. Bal Kishan Choudhury - - 1.60 . 1.60;
L Harj i - - 2,00 . 2.00
Or. Tapli Sen - 2.00 - 2,001
r. Saurabh Agarwal 240 - 2.40
Mr, Amrendra Prasad Verma 0.40 0.40
F.Y.2021-22 . - - 14.80 - 14.80
F.Y.2020-21 ) [} iz Q] Q] @)
Commission 1o Director
Mr. Owarika Prasad Tanlia - - N N
E.Y.2021-22 - . . B . ]
F.v.2000-21 {-} & {-] {154.50) -] {154.50)




GPT Healthcare Limiled [Formerky known as GPT Heallhcare Private Limitad)

GIN No @ UT01 HWB1833PLC047 402

Hates 1o the Standalone Finaneial Statements for the year ended 315t March, 2022
{AIl amaunts are Ry in takhs, ¢xcept share data oy atherwise stated)

Nature of Transacilons Hulding Fellow Enlities in which Kay Relatives of Total
company Subsidiariesf holding campany Management Key
Associate exercises significant bl i Manag
Company inflyences Earsennsl
Donation Paid :
Mis Govardhan Foundation - .. 37.38 - M 37.38
F.¥r.2021-22 - - 37.38 - . 37.33
F.Y.2020-21 ) Q] (11,000 i) 0] (11.00
Peyment of Lease Liabilitics
GPT Estale Private Lirnited - 84.96 - - - 84.98
F.Y.2021-22 - 84.95 - - . 4.6
- F.¥.2020-21 {-} {36.00) {e} {=) {-} [36.00%
Balance outsianding as at the Year end —
Debit
Investroent in Equity Shares
TM Medicare Privale Limiled . - - B - R
As 2t 315t March, 2022 - - -| . - .
As al 3151 March, 2021 -} {#1.31) [} [ (-} 7131}
Payment of Lease Liabilitics
GPT Estale Private Limited - 13.87 . - - 13.57
As at 315t March, 2022 - 132.87 -] - - 13.87
As al 3ist Merch, 2021 4 &) 1G] 0] ) i}
Security Deposit #
GPT Esiala Private Limited - 7000 - - - F70.60
As at 31st March, 2022 - 770.00 - - - T70.00
As al Jtal March, 2021 = {158.65) 1 i) {-) {156.65)|
Loan {inciuding interest accrued) '
BPT Sons Private Limiled - - - - - “
GPT Estale Private Linsted B - - - - -
As at 315t March, 2022 . - - - - -
Asg al 315t March, 2024 {4.715.74} 464,30 & ) ) (51B0.01)
| Others receivable
GPT infraprojects Limiled - . 121 - - 1,21
W Ankur Shenma - - - 0.39 - 0.39
As at 318t March, 2022 r - 1.2 0.3¢ - 1.60
A5 al 31st March. 2021 [} {-) [} {0.26) (-} {0.29;
Balance outstanding as at the Yeoar and -
Credit
Directors Commission payabla
Mr. Dwarika Prasad Tanlia - D - - - -
As at 31st March, 2032 A - - . . -
As al 3151 March. 2021 (=) {} -} {154.50) -} {154.50°
Donation Payahle
Mis Govardhan Foundalion r - = v - -
As at 31st Mareh, 2022 - - - - - -
As al 315t Mareh, 2021 [} 4 (2.50) 2] ) tZ.ED)_l
Other Payables * |
D Aruna Tantia - - - 2.58 - 258
Dr. Ghanshyam Goval - . . 1.59 - 7.58
D, O Tanlia - - - 5.15 - 515
M. Anurag Tantia - - - - 4.35 435
Mrs. Kriti Tanlia - - - - 2.90 2.0
D Ankush Bansal 0.3_6' O.QQ{
Dr Nandiis Bansal 0.08 0.05
i0r. Ankur Sharana : - - 0.63 - 0.63
IMr. Dwarike Prasad Tantia 57.00 - 57.00
As at st March, 2022 - - - 73.23] 818 81.43
As al 31st March, 2021 i) {-} {-} (2331) {0.63) {23.84)
Outstanding  Perscnal  Guarantee !
Corporate Guarantees given on behall of
the Company
tr, Dwarika Prasad Tanlia - - - 5,132.40 - 8,132.40
Or. Om Tantia - - - 7.83B.86 - 783886
|Mr. Anuraé Tanlia . - - B.144. 24 - B,144.24
Dr. Anuna Tankia - - - 5 889 B0 - 5,860.80
GFT Sons Privale Limited - 7.836.08 . 7,836.08
Ag at 315t Mareh, 2022 - - - A5.821.08 - 35,821.38
As at 31st March. 2021 i} -1 Q] (58,515.90) - {5954530&
# does not indude impact of falr valuation of Securily Depaoit as per IND A5
* indudes payeble towards Remuneralion and Professional Feas
**includes Commission paid 1o Directar.
G Hey Management Personnel compensation
Particulars For the Year ended
3ist March 2022 31st March 2021
[Shoii-Tern Employes Geneliis 444 84 161.60 |
Posl-Employrnent Benelits * - N
t.ong-Temm Employee Benolis - -
Total Compensation 444,84 161,60 |

“As Ihe future fiabfity for gratuily and leave encashment is provided on an actugria! basis for 1he company a8 a whole, the amoont pertaining 1o ihe directars is nat

ascerlainable and therefore. not included above.
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year anded 31st March, 2022
{All amounts are Rs in lakhs, except share data or otherwise stated}
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Trade Receivable, advances and deposits include certain overdue and unconfirmed balances. However in the opinion of
management, these current asset would, in the ordinary course of business, realize the value stated in the accounts.

The spread of COVID-19 has severely impacted businegses around the globe, including India. There has been severe disruption to
regular operations due to lock-downs and other emergency measures which may have an short-term impact of revenues of tha
Company. The management has used the principles of prudence in applying judgments, estimates and assumptions and based on
the current estimates, the management expects to fully recover the carrying amount of inventories, frade receivables and other
assets. Having regard 1o the above and the company's liguidity position, there is no material uncertainty in meeting it's liabilities in the
foreseeable future. However, the eventual cutcome of impact of the glebal health pandemic may be different from those estimated as
on the date of approval of these financial statements owing o the nature and duration of the pandemic.

The shareholders of the Company at the 32" Annual General Meeting held on 3rd September, 2021 have passed the resolution for
conversion of the Company from Private Limited Company into a Public Limited Company including adoption of new Memarandum of

“Association and new Articles of Association as applicable to Public Gompany in place of existing Memorandum of Association and

Articles of Association of the Company. The Company has received fresh certificate of incorporation dated 15th September, 2021 in
the name of GPT Healthcare Limited consequent upon conversion to Public Limited Company.

a) The Board of Diirectors at its meating held on June 15, 2021 have approved 2nd Interim Dividend of Rs. 2/- per equity share of
face value of Rs. 10/- each and special dividend of Rs. 0.350/- per Compulscrily Convertible Preference Share of Rs, 10/~ each for
FY 2020-21. The total payment amounis to Rs. 4928.82 lacs.

In additfon to the above, the Board of Directars at its meeting held on August, 20, 2021 have also approved the first interim dividend
for F.Y. 2021-22 of Rs. 5/ per equity share of face value of Rs. 10/~ each and special dividend of Rs. 0.825 per Compulsorily
convertible prefersnce shares of Rs.10/- each. The total payment amount to Rs,1227.05 Lakhs.

b) The Board of Directors at its mesting held on May 03,2022 have proposed a final dividend of Rs. 1/~ per equity share of face value
of Rs. 10/ each for FY 2021-22. The same is subject to approval of members at the ensuing Annwal General Meeting and has not
been recoanised as liabilitv. The total cash outflow shall amount to Rs. 799.04 lacs.

The members of the Company at their meeting held on 1 October, 2021 on the recommendation of the Board of Lirectors of the
Company have approved Fresh jssue of Shares through initial Public Qffer. Accordingly the Company has filed DRHP and UDRHP
with SEBI which was later approved by the SEBI. The Company has also received in-Principle approval from NSE and BSE Limited.

Other Statutory Information

"The Company has not revalued its Property, Flant and Equipment (iocluding Right-of-Use Assets} and intangible assets during the

year.

The Company does not have any Benami property. Further, there are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company
for holding any benami property under the Prohigition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules mads thareunder

The Company does nat have transactions with any struck off comparies during the year.

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the current financial year.

The Company has not advanced or Ioaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
{intzrmediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shali:

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified In any manner whatscever by or on behalf of the company
{Ultimate Beneficiaries); or

(i} provide any guarantee, security or the iike to or on behalf of the Ultimate Benaficiaries

The Company has not received any fund from any person(s} or entity(les), including foreign entities (Funding Party} with the
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

(a) directly or indirecly lend or invest in other persons or entitfes identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of tihe Funding
Party {Ultimate Beneficiaries); or

{b} provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

The Company have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the hooks of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed

- as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Adt, 1961.

The Company has not been declared as a wilfud defauller by any bank or financial insfitulion or government or any gavernment
authority.




{iy The company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies
{Restriction on number of Layers} Rules, 2017,

{i} The company has not filed any Scheme of Arrangements in terms of sections 230 to 227 of the Companies Act, 2013 with any
Competent Autharity,

52 Previous years figures have been reclassified/regrouped to conform the current year's presentation.

As per our Report annexed For and cn behalf of the Board of Directors
For SINGHI & CO. (l Ell&n gth,

Chartaraed Accountants Managing Director
Firm Registration No. 302049E DIN: Q0001 342

bk Bhakin

: G0001341

ANKIT DHELIA ANURAV?N“I’IA KRITI TANTIA
Fartner Executivé Director CFO
Membership No. 068178 DMN: 03118844

Place; Kolkata KNKUR SHARMA

Date: 3rd May, 2022 Company Sacratary
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iINDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of

GPT Healthcare Limited {formerly known as GPT Healthcare Private Limited)
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of GPT Healthcare Limited (‘ihe Company”™},
which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2022, the statement of profit and loss, (including the statement of
cther comprehensive income), the cash flow statement and the statement of changes in equity for the vear than ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant acceunting policies and other
explanatory information { hereinafter referred to as “the consclidated financial statements”).

in our cpinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 1o us, the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (‘the Act’) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, its profit including other comprehensive income, its
rash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial stetements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)
specified under section 143(10} of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements’ section of cur repori, We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Charterea Accountants
(ICAl} of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics, We befieve that the audit
evidence we have obtained s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit malters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of maost significance in our audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2022. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the Consolidatzd Financia! Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. YWe have determined that there are no key audit matters to
communicate in our report.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Beard's Report including Annexures
to Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corperate Governance and Shareholder's information, but does not
include the Consolidated Financial Statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the other infarmation and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing 8o, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Consolidated Financial
Statements, or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If. based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information.
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing ta reper in this regard.

Offices: Kolikata, Murnbai, Delhi, Chennai, Bangalure & Abrmedabad
Metwork Locations: Hyderabad, Nagpur E
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Managements’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the
preparation of these Consolidated Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adeguate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Consclidated Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or arror.

In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, the Board of Directors of the Holding Company is responsible
for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those charged with governance
are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Financial Statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due fo fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstaternents ¢an arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Consolidated Financial Statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professicnal judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

» [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial Statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures regponsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve callusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the company has adeguate intemal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls,

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material unceriainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw altention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
Consolidated Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as 2 going concem.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consoclidated Financial Statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in @ manner that achieves fair presentation. ;
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Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Consclidated Financial Statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Consolidated
Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i} planning the
scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (i) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the Consclidated Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to hear on our independence, and where appiicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor'’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report becauge the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected {0 outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

QOther Matter

The consolidated financial statements alsc include the Holding company’s share of net loss of Rs. 0.02 lakhs for
the period ended June 30, 2621, in respect of 1 {one) associate (ceased to be an associate w.e.f. July 1, 2021},
whose interim financial statements have not been audited by us. These interim financial statements have been
audited by other auditor whose report have been furnished to us by the management and our epinion on the
consolidated financial statement, in so far as it related to the amounts and disclosure included in respect of the
associate is based sclely on the reports of the other auditor,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reguirements
1.  As required by section 143 {(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanaticns which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(1) n our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Prafit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the
Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies {indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended from
time to time;

{e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022 taken on record by
the Board of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as on March 31, 2022 from baing appointad as a
director in terms of Section 184(2) of the Act.

{f} With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to consclidated
financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report
in “Annexure A"

{g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the requirement of
section 187(16) of the Act:

In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2022 has been paid/ provided by the
Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V (o the Act; and
(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:
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I, The Company does not have any pending litigations does not have any pending litigation which may
impact its financial position in its Consolidated Financial Statements;

. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were
any material foreseeable losses as on March 31,2022,

.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred 1o the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.,

iv. (&) The management has represented o us that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
the note 52(e) to the consolidated financial statements, no funds have been advanced or leaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities {“Intermediaries™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the company (*Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

{b) The management has represented to us that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
the note 52(f) to the consolidated financial statements, no funds have been received by the company from
any person(s) ar entity{ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”}, with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, direcily or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entifies identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(“Ultimate Beneficlaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on our audit procedures that are considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances,
nothing has come to our nefice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i)
and (i) of Rule 11{e) as provided under paragraph 2(h) (iv){a) &(b) above, contain any material mis-
statement.

V.  As stated in note 48 to the consolidated financial statements,

{a) The interim dividend related to F.¥.2020-271 as well as interim dividend related to F.Y.2021-22
deciared and paid by the Holding company during the current year is in compliance with Section 123
of the Act.

(n} The final dividend related to F.Y.2021-22 proposed by the Holding company is in compliance with
Section 123 of the Act.

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accounfants
Firm Registration Number: 302049E

o Blibian,
{Ankit Dhelia)
FParner

Membership Number: 069178
UDIN : 22069178AIUZV3800

Place: Kolkata
Date: May 3, 2022
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 (f} under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to the
Members of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause () of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controis over financial reporting with reference to consclidated financial
statements of GPT Healthcare Limited ("the Company™ as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the
Consglidated Financial Statemeants of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Board of Directors’ Responsibility for internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company censidering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to respective company’s paolicies, the safeguarding of
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
consalidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance MNote”) issued by the [nstitute of
Chartered Accountanis of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, te the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and both issued by the institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethicat requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reascnable assurance about whether adequalte internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to censolidated financial statements was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in alt material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures {o obtain audit evidence ahout the adequacy of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls over financial reporing with reference to consolidated financial statements included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reperting with reference to consolidated financial
statemenis, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial Statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to consolidated financial

statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting with reference to consolidated financial
statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to consclidated financial statements is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
Consolidated Financial Staterments for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to consolidated financial statements
includes thase policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Limitations of Internal Fipancial Contrals over financial reporting with reference to consolidated financial
statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to consolidated
financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
missiatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference 1o consclidated financial statements to fufure periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to consolidated financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in condiiions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, o the hest of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all
material respects, an adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to consolidated
financial statements and such internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to consolidated financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal conirol over financial reporing
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Intemal Financial Contrals Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India,

For Singhi & Co.
Chariered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 302049E

ﬁ,nu:r%ng.

{Ankit Dhelig)

Partner

Membership Nurmber: 069178
UDIN : 22089178AIIUZV3500

Place: Kolkata
Date: May 3, 2022
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET as at 31st March, 2022

(Al amounts are Rs in [akhs, except share data or otherwlse stated)

Ag at As at
Note bo. 315t March 2022 315t March 2024
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets )
(&) Property, Plant and Equipment 4 20,655.87 21.186,12
(b) Capital work-in-prograss 4A 71.83 20,45
{¢) Intangibles Assels 5 A58 B.04
{d) Righl of Use Assets B 1,358.83 760,20
(e) Investments 7 - &7.79
{f) Financial Agzets
(i) Investments TA S00.01 -
{if} Loans 8 £.58 6.44
{iiy Other Financial Assels o] 612.97 201.10
{g} Non Current Tax (Net) 18 164,26 98,85
{h} Defemred Tax Asset (Net} 11 37431 656.55
(i) Other Hon Current Assels 12 5.60 72.54
23,753.82 23,084 52
Current Asaets
(a) inventories 13 728.45 §42.55
(b} Financial Assets
{i) lavestments 78 £39.28 -
{ii) Trade recelvable 14 1,342.59 1,726.40
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 15 526.80 477.61
{iv) Other bank balances (other than Note 15 above} 15 44,38 22.08
(v) Loans 8 3,865.79 4,8680.63
(vi) Other Financlal Assets ] 1,064.98 673.53
{c} Other Currant Assets 12 168.29 220.85
8,568.54 §,632.03
32,322.36 31,717.85
EQUITY AND LIARILITIES
Equity
{2) Equity Share Capital 17 7,990.43 1,784.10
{b) Instrument entirely Equity in nature 17A - 4,000,00
{z) Other Equily 18 7.027.82 7,592.59 |
' 15,818.25 13,385.63
Hoan-Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
{1 Bomrowings 19 7,244.20 10,229.20
{Iiy Lease Liahililies 20 498.08 214,27
{b} Provisivns 22 £51.18 £80.48
{c) Other Man Current Liabilities 23 1,263.10 1,327.55
9,656.56 12,231.50
Current Liabilifies
(a) Financial liabilifes
(i) Borrowings 24 2,307.67 2.063.40
(ii} Leasa Liabililias 20 105.81 62.15
{iiiy Trade payables a5
-Tedal oulstanding dues of creditors o micro enterprises and amag
- 75,85 0.61
enterprises
-Total ouisland[ng dues of creditor to other than micro enterprises 2.816.58 2,588.06
and small enlerprises
{iv) Cther Financial Liabilites 21 648.85 37488
(b) Provisions 22 397.34 246,93
(c) Other Current Liabliilles 23 494,05 85,77
(d) Current Tax Liabilities 26 - lel R 3
§,347.55 £,999.72
32,2226 31,717.88
Basis of Ascounting 2
Significant Accounting Policies 2 v
Significant Judgament & Key Estimate 3.21

The aceampanylng noles are an integral part of the financial statemeants
As par our Report annexed
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Chartered Accouniants
Fimm Registration No. 302049E
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GPT Healthcare Limited (Formerly known as GPT Healthcare Private Limited)
CIN.No : UT0101WE1989PLC047402

STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED PROFIT & LOSS for the year erided 31st March, 2022

{All amounts are Rs in lakhs, except share data or otherwise stated)

Note For the year ended For the year ended
No. 31st March 2022 Jist March 2021
INCOME
| Revenue from operations 27 33,741.48 24,275.32
I Otherincome 28 498.90 511.01
Nl Totat Income (I+1) 34,240.38 24,886.33
IV Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 29 8,738.10 5,726.91
Emyployee benefits expense 30 5,378.38 4,166.18
Finance costs 31 1,115.49 1,374.68
Depreciation and amortisation expense 32 1,359.00 1,247.11
Other expenses 33 12,241 58 0.483.00
Total Expenses {IV) 28,832.65 21,997.88
V Profit before Exceptional items & Tax {1V} 5,407.83 2,888.45
VI 'Exceptional tems - -
Vil Profitf{Loss) Before Tax (V-Vi) 540783 2,888.45
VIIE Tax expense 34
a} Current tax 942.00 503.00
b} Deferred tax {including MAT Credit entitiement) 29028 283.22
¢} Income tax for earlier years 9.30 {7.17)
X Profit for the year (Vii- VIIi) 4,166.,25 2,109.40
Less: Share of Profit/(Loss) of Associate (0.02) {0.00)
Add: Gain on disposal of Associate (Refer Note 50} 3.54 -
Profit for the year 4,169.77 2,109.40
A_Iterns that will not be reclagsified io profit of loss
a) Rerneasurement of defined benefit plan {17.32) 2.85
b) Income tax relating tc above 5.04 {0.83}
B. Iterms that will be reclassified to profit or loss - -
Xl Other Comprehensive [ncome for the year {12.28} 2.02
Xl Total Comprehensive Income for the year (IX+X1) 4,157.48 2,111.42
Xl Earnings per equity share 35
Basic earnings per share () 5.21 2.64
Diluted earnings per share (%) 5.21 2.64
Basis of Accounting 2
Significant Accounting Policies 3
Significant Judgement & Key Estimate 321
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our Report annexed or and on behalf of the Bomj:\EFctt
For SINGHI & COQ. TIA DR. OM TANTIA
Chartered Accountants xecutive Chairman Managing Dirsclor
Firm Registration No. 302049E DIN: 0000134 DIN: 00001342
g Rl N X T
ANKIT BHELIA ANURAG TIA KRITI TANTIA
Partner Executfve Director CFO
Membership No. 068178 DIN: 03118844
ANKLUR SHARMA

Place: Kolkata
Date: 3rd May, 2022

Company Secrelary



GPT Healthcare Limited (Formerly known as GPT Healthcare Private Limited)

GIN No : UT0101WB1989PLC047402

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT for the year ended 31st March, 2022

(A1 amounts are Rs in lakhs, except share data or otherwise stated)

For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021

A. CASH FEOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES '

Profit Before Tax §,407.83 2,888.45
Adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows

{a) Depreciation and Amortisation 1,359.00 4,247.11

(b} Finance Costs 1,115.48 1,374.68

(¢} Profit on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment {9.15) 64.77}

{d} Profit on Sale of investments (17.98} -

{e) Bad debis / Advances & Ctaims written off - 33.09

{f) Sundry Balances written off 660 -

(@) Unspent liabilities written back {24.78) {108.52)

{h) Provision for Doubiful Trade Receivables / (writlen back) 18,62 32.09

(i} Gain on retiramen! of Right of Use Assets {11.33) -

(i} Deferred Revenus on Govemment Grant {64.45) (64.45)

(k) Loss on sale/discard of Property, plant & equipment 2062 -

1) Gain on Fair Valuation of investments measured at FYPTL {1.32) .

(m) Interest Income (397 .45) 1,894.86 {393.85) 208538
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 1.402.69 4,9243,83
Changes In Working capitat

{8} (Increase)! decrease in Invenlones (85.901 {12.47)

{b) {Increase)f decrease in Trade Receivables 364.19 {61.07)

{c) {Increasel decrease in Other Financial Assels (872.25) {158.21)

{d) (Incresse)f decrease in Non-Financial Assels 45,63 42,52

{e) Increasef (decrease) in Trade Payables 328.94 {576.02)

{} Increasef (decrease) in Other Financial Liabilittes 400.04 {270.57)

{g) Increasef {decrease) in Provisions 223.79 115,64

{h) Increase/ {decrease) in Non-financial iabilities 128,22 545.73 11.77 {309.11)
Cash Generated from Operations 7.948.42 4,034.72
Direct Taxes Paid {1,349.24) 2684.76
Net Cash from ! {used in} Operating Activities 5,598.18 4,209.48
B.CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

{a) Purchase of Invastments (3,387.95) -
{b) Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment {729.64) {604.64)
{c) Salef Disposal of Property, Plant & Equipment 17.92 85.89
{d) Sale of Investrents 243928 -
(e) Payment owards acquisition of ROU Assets (327.64) -

{N {Invesimeant)y Redemplion of Fixed Deposits (net) {32.48) {1.10%
{q) Loan Refund received from Body Corporates 6,314.91 1,824.56
{f) Loans Given {o Body Corporates (6,300.28) (3,299.23)
{i} Interest Received 471.93 344.36

{Mat Cash from [ {used in) Investing Activities {533.94) [1,645.05}
C. CASH FLOW FORM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

(&) Dividend and Tax paid therzon {1,725.87} {1,343.78)
(b} Inferest Pald {1,699.62} {1,381.41)
{¢) Proceeds from Long Term Borrowings (Bank, FI's and Others) - 1,842.54
(d) Repayment of Long Term Borrawings {Bank, Fl's and Qther} {2,888.15) (F04.94)
(e} Proceeds /{Repayment} of Shor Term Burrowings from Banks (Net) 14027 {233.13)
(N Proceeds fiom Inler Corporate Loans - -
{(9) Repayment of (nter Corporate Loans - {300.03)
{h) Repayment of Lease Liabilities {142 68) {80.73)
Net Cash froem / {used in) Finencing Activities {5.716.05] (2,211.45}
Met increasefidecrease) In Cash & Cash Equivalent {A+B+() 34519 442.97
Cash & Cash Equivalenis at ihe beginning of the year 417,81 34.64
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the end of the year (Refer Note 15} 825.80 A77.61




GPT Healthcare Limited {(Formerly known as GPT Healthcare Private Limited)
CIN No : U70101WB1989PLC047402
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Notes:

{1} The above statement of cash flows has been prepered under the “Indirect Method” as set oul in IND AS - 7 "Statement of Cash Flows".

(2) Closing Cash and Cash Equlvalents represent balances of cash and cash equivelents as indicated in Nole 15 to the financial statements

(3) Direct taxes paid are treated as arising from operating acilvilles and are not bifurcated betwaen investing and financing activities.

{4) Statement of Reconciliation of financing activities :

Particulars Non-Current Current
Borrowinog | Borrowings |

Balance as at Aprif 01, 2021 (including interest acerued) 12,187.57 203.76
Cash Flow (Net) {2, B88.15) 140.28
Non Cash Changes
- Amortization of processing fees relating to ferm Loan 19.60 -
Interest Expense 940.58 2.12
Interest Paid {1.001.53) {2.12}
Hatance as at March 31, 2022 {Including Interest accrued) 923817 344.04
{5) Previous years figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever ngcessary
As per our Report annexed For and on behalf of th rd af‘lilfltn

M}‘{ ‘ E n \Cs
For SINGHI & CO. D.R.T / DR.OMTANTIA ' >
Chartered Accountanis tive Chalrm Managing Direcior

- 00D01341 DIN: 00001342

Firm Registration Mo. 302048E

Ak Phdiay, —
- ) N } P
ANKIT DHELIA 46 - -hCP E‘»\ | ANURAG TA
Partner X : Executivedfiractor
Mambership No. 069178 : DIN: 03118844
Place: Kalkala ANKUR S5HARMA
Date: 3rd May, 2022 Company Secrelary
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GPT Healthcare Limited (Formarly known as GPT Heaithcare Private Limited)

CIN No : UT0101WB1989PL 047402

STATEMENT OF CONSCLIDATED CHANGES IN EQUITY lor the year swded 31st March, 2022

{All arvounts are ®s in lakhs, except share data or stherwise stated)

a) Equity Share Capital

Egulty Shares of INR 10 eich issued, subscribed and fully paid Number Amounts
Balance &5 al 3181 March, 2030 17.947.000 ~9,794.10
Addifl ess): Changes in Equity Shase Capial duting Ui year - -
Bak as at 3151 Margh, 2021 17,941,000 1,794.10
Add: Bhares issuad during the year [Refer nate +7{e)] 35,882,000 3,888.20
Add Equity Shares issued on conversion of §.00 14 SCHRS Rater nate 174h)] 26,051,288 2560813
Balanee as at 31st March, 2022 79,904,286 Fa5t.an
bl Snstrument entirely Equity in nature
0.0¢1% Compulsorily Convertible Preference Snares (CGPS) of INR 10 each Number Amounts
Balance as a1 315t March, 2020 40,000,000 4,000,00
Addi{Less): Changes during the year . .
Balance as at 31st March, 2021 40,000,000 4.000.00
Addi{Less); Changes during Lhe year {40.,000,000) [4,000.0!5'
Balance s at 31st March, 2022 . .
c] Other Equity
Reserves & Surplus QCt
Capital Securlties General Retained Remeasurement
Particulars Reserve Premium Reserve Earings Gainf Loss on Total
Actount Definad Sanefit
Plan [Net Of Taxl
Balance as at 1st April, 2020 122,47 3,172.58 3.089.37 523.51 £.00 5.887.91
Frofit for the Yesr - - - 2,109.40 - 2,109.40
[ wement of defined benafil plans (Met of Taxes) - - - 2.02 2.02
Totzl Comprehensive lncame - - - 2,109.40 2.02 2.111.42
Dividend Paid . - {1,406.80) - {1,405.80)
Transter [rom GCl To Relained Earning . - - 2.02 {2.02) -
Bslance as at 3151 March, 2021 122.47 3,172.56: 3,069.37 1,228.13 .00 7,5692.53
Reserves & Surplus ocCl
Capital Securities General Retained Remzasurement
Farticulars Reserve Pramium Reserve Earnings Gain/Loss on Total
Account Defined Benefit
Plap iNat Of Tax)
| Balance as at 31st March, 2021 122.47 2,172.58 J.089.37 1,928.13 .40 7.592.53
Profit far the year - - - 4.169.77 - 4,169.77
Rer t of defined benelit plans (Net of Taxes) - - - - (12.28) {12.28)
Total Comprehiensive lncomy . - . 4,169.77 {12.28 4,157.4%
Generated from conversion of preference shares - 1.301.87 - - - 1991.87
{Hilis ation towards |ssue of Bonus Shares [Refer nole 17(e}] - [3,173.56] (415.64) - - {3,588.20)
Dividends Paid . - - (1.725.87) - (1.725.87)
Transler irsm DCi To Retained Earning - - - (12.28) 12.28 -
Balance as at 31st March, 2022 122.47 1,291.87 2,653.73 3,658.75 0.00 182782

The accompanying nates are an integral parl of the financial statemenls
As per gur Repard annexed,

For SINGHI & CO.
Charlered Accounlants
Firm Registration Mo 30204%E

P Tl
ANKIT DHELIA

Pariner
Membership Mo, 069178

Piace. Kolkata
{ale: 3rd May, 2022

v

\ﬂanaqmg {iractor
DIM; 00001342

’ K—:—\-:‘T&JA"
E)‘Eu ulwa.Bl\‘g’c?o‘;’ g?g' TANTIA

DIN: 03114844

ANKUR SHARMA
Company Secretary



21

2.2

23
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GPT Healthcare Limited (formerly known as GPT Healthcare Private Limited)
CIN U70101WB1989PLC047402
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2022

. CORPORATE AND GENERAL INFORMATION

GPT Healthcare Limited (formerly known as GPT Healthcare Private Limited) (the Company) was incorporated in
India on 17th August, 1889 in the name of Jibansatya Printing House Private Limited under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956 and is domiciled in india. The Company has changed its name o GPT Healthcare Private
Limited consequent upon change of name vide fresh certificate of incorporation dated 31st March 2005 and
having its registered office in GPT Centre, JC-25, Sector lll, Salt Lake, Kolkata - 700088.

The Principal activities of the company include operation of multidisciplinary private hospitals, clinics and
pharmacies. The company is having four Multispecialty hospitals. Two of them are in Kolkata, at Salt Leke and
Dumdum, one in Agartala (Tripura) and fourth hospital in Howrah, West Bengal. Besides, the company is also
engaged in Wind Mill Power Generation in Maharashtra and has one Nursing Institute in Agartala.

The company has been converted into a public limited company under the Companies Act, 2013 and
consequently the name was changed to "GPT Healthcare Limited” as per Cerfificate of Incorporation dated 15th
Septamber, 2021.

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

Statement of Compliance

These Consolidated Financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards ('Ind AS"} as prescribed by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”), read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended), other
relevant provisions of the Act and other accounting principies generally accepted in India,

These Consclidated Financial statements for the year ended 31" March 2022 has been prepared and has been
approved by the Company’s Board of Directors in their meeting held on 03" May, 2022.

Basis of Measurement
The Consolidated Financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for following:

Financial assets and liabilities that is measured at Fair value/ Amortised cost;
Defined benefit plans — plan assets measured at fair value;

Functional and Presentation Currency

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the
Company's functional currency. Al financial information presented in INR has been rounded off to the nearest

lakhs as per the requirements of Schedule Ill, unless otherwise stated.

Use of Estimates and Judgements

The preparation of Consolidated Financial statements requires the management to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the
management's best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assefs or liabilities in

future periods.




GPT Healthcare Limited {formerly known as GPT Healthcare Private Limited)
CIN U70101WB1989PLC047402

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31* March, 2022

2.5 Current Vs Non-Current classification

¥YVvVvY

YVYV¥Y

2.6

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An
asset is classified as current when it is:

Expected to be realized or intended fo sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

All the other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:

It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading,

It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

There is ne unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting

period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities are classified as
non-current assets and liabilities respectively.

Adoption of new accounting standards

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA”) issued notifications dated 24th March, 2021 to amend Schedule Iil to the
Companies Act, 2013 to enhance the disclosures required to be made by the company in its financial
statements. These amendrments are applicable to the company for the period starting 1st April, 2021,

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under
Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 23, 2022, MCA amended
the Comparies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, applicable from April 1st, 2022, as below:

Ind AS 103 - Reference to Conceptual Framework - The amendments specify that to qualify for recognition as
part of applying the acquisition method, the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the
definitions of assets and liabilities in the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting under Indian Accounting
Standards (Conceptual Framework) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India at the acquisition
date. These changes do not significantly change the requirements of Ind AS 103.

Ind AS 16 — Proceeds hefore intended use - The amendments mainly prohibit an entity from deducting from the
cost of property, plant and equipment amounts received from selling items produced while the company is
preparing the asset for its intended use. Instead, an entity will recognise such sales proceeds and related cost in
profit or loss.

Ind AS 37 — Onerous Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling a Contract - The amendments specify that the 'cost of
fulfiling’ @ contract comprises the 'costs that relate directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to a contract
can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labour, materials) or an
allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts.

ind AS 109 — Annual Improvements to ind AS (2021) - The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes
when it applies the 10 percent test of Ind AS 108 in assessing whether to derecognise a financial liability.

ind AS 106 — Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021) - The amendments remove the illusiration of the
reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the lesscr in order to resolve any potential confusion regarding




GPT Healthcare Limited (formerly known as GPT Healthcare Private Limited)
CIN U70101WB1989PLC047402
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31* March, 2022

the treatment of lease incentives that might arise because of how lease incentives were described in that
Hustration.

Based on preliminary assessment, the Company does not expect the amendments listed above to have any
significant impact in its financiat statements.

2.7

3.1

3.2

3.3

Basis of Consolidation

Investment in Associate Companies has been accounted under the equity method as per IND AS 28 -
“Investments n Asscciates and Joint Ventures". Investment in entities in which there exists significant influence
hut not a controlling interest are accounted for under the equity method i.e. the investment is initially recorded at
cost, identifying any goodwill/capital reserve arising at the time of acquisition, as the case may be, which will be
inherent in investment. The carrying amount of the investment is adjusted thereafter for the post-acquisition
change in the share of nef assets of the investee, adjusted where necessary to ensure consistency with the
accounting policies of the Group. The consolidated statement of profit and loss includes the Group's share of the
results of the operations of the investee. Dividends received or receivable from associate ventures are recognized
as a reduction in the carrying amount of the investment. Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in these entities.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A summary of the significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial statements are as
given below. These accounting policies have been applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial
statements except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing
accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

Inventories

» The inventories of all Medicines and other Medical care items fraded and dealt with by the Company are
valued at cost. In the absence of any further estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to
make the sale, the Net Realisable Value is not applicable. Cost of these inventories comprises of all costs of
purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories {o their present location wherever applicable
applying the First in First Out (FIFO) method.

> Stock of provisions, stores {inciuding lab materials and other consumables) items is stated at cost. The net
realisable value is not applicable in the absence of any further modification/alteration befare being consumed
in-house only. Cost of these inventeries comprises of all costs of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories fo their present location applying FIFO method.

» Linen are valued at cost. The net realisable value is not applicable in the absence of any further
modification/alteration before being consumed in-house. Cost of these inventories comprises of all costs of
purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location wherever applicable
applying the First in First Out (FIFO) methed.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand, cheques in hand and short
term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of change
in value.

Income Tax

Income Tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss except to the
extent that it relates to an item recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

\\\\\\



GPT Healthcare Limited (formerly known as GPT Healthcare Private Limited)
CIN U70101WB1983PLC0O47402
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2022

3.4

3.4.1.

Current Tax

Gurrent tax liabilities (or assets) for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be paid
to (recovered from) the taxation autherities using the tax rates (and fax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted, at the end of the reporting period.

Deferred Tax

Deferred Tax assets and liabilities shall be measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is realized or the liability is settled based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for faxation purposes (i.e., tax
base). Deferred tax is also recognized for carry forward of unused tax [csses and unused tax credits.

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses
can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period. The Company
reduces the carrying amount of a deferred tax asset to.the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to aliow the bengfit of part or that entire deferred tax asset to be utilized. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside the Statement of Profit and Loss is recognized either in other
comprehensive income or in equity. Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction
either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the
Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) is recognized as an asset only when and fo the extent there is convincing
evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. In the year in which the MAT
credit becomes eligible to be recognized as an asset, the said asset is created by way of credit to the statement
of profit and loss and included in deferred tax assets. The Company reviews the same at each balance sheet date
and writes down the carrying amount of MAT entitiement to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to
the effect that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Recognition and Measurement:

Property, plant and equipment held for use in the production orfand supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes, are stated in the balance sheet at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and

accumulated impairment lossas (if any).

Cost of an item of properly, plant and equipment acquired comprises its purchase price including import duties
and non-refundable purchase taxes, afier deducting any trade discounts and rebates, borrowing cost, if
capitalization criteria is met, any directly attributable costs of bringing the assets io its working condition and
location for its intended use and present value of any estimated cost of dismantling and removing the item and
restoring the site on which it is located.

In case of self-constructed assets, cost includes the costs of all materials used in construction, direct labour,
aflocation of directly attributable overheads, directly atiributable borrowing costs incurred in bringing the item fo




GPT Healthcare Limited {formerly known as GPT Fealthcare Private Limited)
CIN U70101WEB1989PLCD47402

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2022

warking condition for its intended use, and estimated cost of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the
site on which it is located. The costs of testing whether the asset is functioning properly, after deducting the net
proceeds from selling items produced while bringing the asset fo that location and condition are also added to the
cost of self-constructed assets.

If significant parts of an item cf property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted
for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Profit or loss arising on the disposal of property, plant and equipment are recognized in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

3.4.2. Subsequent Expenditure

>

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount, only when it is probable that future economic
henefits associated with the cost incurred will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when
replaced.

Major Inspection/ Repairs/ Overhauling expenses are recognized in the carrying amount of the item of property,
plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. Any Unamortized part of the
previously recognized expenses of similar nature is derecognized.

3.4.3. Depreciation and Amortization

»

» Depreciation on tangible assets other than land is provided on straight [ine method except in Windmill division,
where the company charges depreciation on written down value methad, at the rates determined based on the
useful lives of the respective assets as prescribed in the Schedule || of the Companies Act, 2013 & in some
cases life as per technical certification has been considered below.

Class of Property Plant & Equipment Useful Lives {Years)
Building 60

Plant and Equipment's 15

Plant & Equipment (Windmill) 22
Furniture and Fixiures 3t 10
Vehicles 8-10
Computer and Office Equipment's - 3to6

Books 5

Surgical Instruments 41013

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of
the item is depreciated separately. This applies mainly to components for machinery. When significant parts of
fixed assets are required to be replaced at intervals, the company recognizes such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation on additions {disposals) during the year is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e., from {up to) the date on
which asset is ready for use (disposed of).

Depreciation method, usefu! lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if
appropriaie.
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3.4.4.

3.4.5.

3.4.6.

35

3.5.1.

3.5.2.

Disposal of Assets
An item of property, plant and eguipment is derecognized upon disposat or when no future economic benefits are

expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Reclagsgification fo Investment Property
When the use of a property changes from owner-cccupied to investment property, the property is reclassified as

investment property at its carrying amount on the date of reclassification.

Capital Work in Progress

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost which includes expenses incurred during construction period, interest on
amount borrowed for acquisition of gqualifying assets and other expenses incurred in connection with preject
implementation in so far as such expenses relate to the period prior 1o the commencement of commercial
production. Advances given towards acquisition or construction of PPE outstanding at each reporting date are
disclosed as Capital Advances under "Other Non-Current Assets”.

Leases

Company as lessor

Leases for which the Company is lessor are classified as finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as
finance lease. All other leases are ¢lassified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a sfraight-ine basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negofiating and arranging an ¢perating lease are added fo the carrying amount of
the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Company as Lessee
The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of the contract. The Company

recognizes a right-of-use asset and a corresponding fease liability with respect to all lease arrangements in which
it is the lessee, except for short-term leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases
of low value assets. For these leases, the Company recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on
a straight-line basis ¢ver the lease term, uniess another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed. Contingent and variable rentals are
recognized as expense in the periods in which they are incurred,

Right-of-use Assets (ROU Assets)

The Company recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, iess any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-
use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognized, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the
exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. The right-of-
use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in Note 3.12 Impairment of non-

financial assets.

Extension and termination options are included in many of the leases. In determining the lease term the
management considers all facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive to exercise an extension

option, or not exercise a termination option.
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>

3.5

3.6.1.

>

»

Lease Liabilities
At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognizes lease liahilities measured at the present value
of lease payments fo be made over the lease term. Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease
liability comprise;

. Fixed lease paymenis (including in-substance fixed paymenis) payable during the lease term and under
reasonably certain extension options, less any lease incentives;

+  Variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the
commencement date;

+  The amount expected to be payable by the lesses under residual value guarantees;

*  The exercise price of purchase aptions, if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the options; and

+ Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an option to
tarminate the lease.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement dale because the interest rate implicit. in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liahilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease [abilities is re-measured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease paymenis (e.g., changes o fulure payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the
assessment of an option fo purchase the underlying asset.

Lease liability and ROU assets have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have
been classified as financing cash flows.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of Property, Plant &
Equipment {i.e. those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do
not contain a purchase option). Lease payments on shori-term leases and leases of low-value assets are
recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease ferm.

Revenue Reccgnition

The Company generates revenue from rendering of medical and healthcare services, sale of medicines and other
related activities. Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, establishes a comprehensive framework
for determining whether, how much and when revenue is recognised.

Contract balances: The Company classifies the right to consideration in exchange for sale of services as trade
receivables and advance consideration as advance from customers. Unbilled revenue is recorded for the service
where the patients are not discharged and invoice is not raised for the service as at reporting date.

Rendering of Services:

Revenue from Healthcare Services:

Revenue primarily comprises fees charged for inpatient and outpatient hospital services. Services include
charges for accommodation, theatre, medical professional services, equipment, radiclogy, laboratory and
pharmaceutical goods used. Revenue is recorded and recognised during the period in which the hospital service
is rendered, based upon the estimated amounts due from patients and/or medical funding entities. Revenue is
also recognised in relation to the services rendered to the patients who are undergoing treatment/ observation on
the balance sheet date to the extent of the services rendered. Revenue is recognised net of discounts and

concessions given to the patients.

Revenue from Academic Services:
Revenue is recognized on pro-rata basis on the completion of such services over the duration of the program.

Revenue from Diagnostic Services:
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Revenue is recognised at the time of generation and release of test reports, which coincides with completion of
service to the custorner.

3.6.2. Sale of Goods {Pharmacy Sale]

3.6.3.

3.6.4.

3.6.5.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized at the point in time when confrol of the goods is transferred to the
customer. The revenue is measured on the basis of the consideration defined in the contract with a customer,
including variable consideration, such as discounts, rebates, or other contractual reductions. As the period
between the date on which the Company transfers the promised goods to the customer and the date on which the
customer pays for these goods is generally one year or less, no financing components are taken into account.

Sale of Power
Revenue from sale of Energy (Power) is recognised on the basis of Electrical Units generated net of transmission

loss as applicable when no significant uncertainty as to meéasurability & collectability exists.

Interest Income
Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the

Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend Income
Dividend Income from investments is recognized when the Company's right to receive payment has been

established

3.6.6. Other Operating Revenue

3.7

3.37.1,

3.7.2.

Incentive and subsidies are recognized when there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with
the conditions and the incentive will be received. Insurance & other claims, where quantum of accruals cannot be
ascertained with reasonable certainty are recognized as income only when revenue is virtually certain which
generally coincides with receipt / acceptance.

Employee Benefits

Short Term Benefits

Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related
services are provided. Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be
settled wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service
are recognized in respect of employees' services up to the end of the reporting period.

Post-Employment Benefits

The Company operates the following post-employment schemes:
Defined Benefit Plans (Gratuity &long-term compensated absences}

The liability or asset recognized in the Balance Sheet in respect of defined benefit plans is the present value of
the defined benefit abligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The Company’s
net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount
of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods. The defined benefit obligation is
calculated annually by Actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

The liability recognized for defined benefit plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the
reporting date less the fair value of plan assets, together with adjustments for unrecognized actuarial gains or
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3.8

3.9

losses and past service costs. The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance
of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. The benefits are discounted using the
government securities (G-Sec) at the end of the reporting pericd that have terms approximating to the terms of

related cbligation.

Re-measurement of the net defined benefit obligation, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on
plan assets {(excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling, are recognized in other comprahensive income.
Re-measurement recognized in other comprahensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and
will not be reclassified to the statement of profit and loss.

Defined Contribution Plan

Retirement benafits in the form of Provident and Pensgion Funds are defined contribution schemes and are
charged to the statement of profit and loss of the period when the confributions to the respective funds are due.
The Company has no cbligation other than contributiens to the respective funds. The Company recognizes
contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as expenditure, when an employee renders the seiected

servicea."
Government Grants

Government grants are recognized at their fair values when there is reasonable assurance that the grants will be
received and the Company will comply with all the attached conditions. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognized as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is

intended to compensate, are sxpensed. Grants related to purchase of property, plant and equipment are included
in non-current liabiliies as deferred income and are credited to statement of profit or loss on a straight line basis
over the expected useful life of the related asset and presented within other operating revenue or netted off

against the related expenses.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Forgign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the spot rates of exchanges at the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the

functional currency spot rate of exchanges at the reporting date.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of
monetary assels and liabilities are generally recognized in profit or loss in the year in which they arise except for
exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under construction for future productive
use, which are included in the cost of those qualifying assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to interest
costs on those foreign currency borrowings, the balance is presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss within

finance costs.

Non-monetary items are not retranslated at period end and are measured at historical cost (translated using the
exchange rate at the fransaction date).

3.10 Borrowing Cost

»

Borrowing cost includes interest, amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of
borrowings and exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as

an adjustment to the interest cost, _
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the
respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur. The Company considers a
period of twelve months or mere as a substantiai period of time.
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>

Transaction costs in respect of long term borrowing are amortized over the tenure of respective loans using
Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. All other borrowing costs ars recognized in the statement of profit and loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

3.11 Interest in Associate

Investments in associate are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Where an indication of
impairment exists, the carrying amount of the investment is assessed and written down immediately to its
recoverable amount. On disposal of investments in assocciates, the difference between net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amounts are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

3.12 Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.

Classification as debt or equity
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

3.12.1. Financial Assets

>

h4

o oo

Recognition and Initial Measurement:

All financial assets are initially recognized when the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments. A financial asset is initially measured at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are atfributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Classification and Subsequent Measurement:
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

Measured at Amoitized Cost;

Measured at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCH,

Measured at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL); and

Equity Instruments measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI).

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent fo their initial recognition, except if and in the period the
Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

Measured at Amortized Cost A debt instrument is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions

are met:
The asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows;

and
The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of

principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method.

Measured at FVTOCI: A debt instrument is measurad at the FVTOCI if both the following conditions are met;
The objective of the business model is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial
assets; and

The assat’s contractual cash flows represent SPPL.
Debt instruments meeting these criteria are measured initially at fair value plus transaction costs. They are

subsequently measured at fair value with any gains or losses arising on re-measurement recognized in other
comprehensive income, except for impairment gains or losses and foreign exchange gains or losses. Interest
calculated using the effective interest method is recognized in the statement of profit and loss in investment

income.
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o Measured at FVTPL: FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not
meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as FVTPL. In addition, the
company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as
at FVTPL. Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

o Eaguity Instruments measured at FVTOCL._All equity investments in scope of Ind AS - 108 are measured at fair
value. Equity instruments which are, held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments,
the company may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes
in the fair value. The company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is
made on initial recognition and is irrevecable. In case the company decides to classify an equity instrument as at
FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is
no recycling of the amounts from QCI o P&L, even on sale of investment.

¥ De-recognition

The Company derecognizes a financial asset on trade date only when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of

ownership of the asset to another entity.

» |mpairment of Financial Assets
The Company assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. Ind AS — 109 requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance. The company
recognizes lifetime expected losses for all contract assets and/ or all trade receivables that do not constitute a
financing transaction. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to
the 12 month expected credit losses or at an amount equal to the life time expected credit losses if the credit risk
on the financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition.

3.12.2.Financiai Liabilities
¥ Recognition and Initial Measurement:

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables or as derivatives, as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

¥ Subsequent Measurement:

Financial habilities are measured subsequently at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial iiability is classified as
FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition.
Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense,
are recognized in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in profit or
loss. Any gain or loss on de-recognition is also recognized in profit or loss,

» De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the fiability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

¥ Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realize the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
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and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of
the counterparty.

3.13 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

»

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. An
asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of the asset exceeds its recoverable value being higher of
value in use and net selling price. Value in use is computed at net present value of cash flow expected over the
balance useful lives of the assets. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows
from other assets or group of assets (Cash Generating Units - CGLU).

An impairment [oss is recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which an asset
is identified as impaired. The impairment loss recognized in earfier accounting period is reversed if there has
been an improvement in recoverable amount.

3.14 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Confingent Assets

3.14.1.

3.14.2,

3.14.3.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when there is a present chligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event and
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting
the expected future cash flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure required o seftle the present
obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of meney and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognized as finance cost.

Contingent Liabilities

Contingent liability is a possikle obligation arising from past events and the existence of which will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-cccurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of
the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because it is not possible
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefit will be required fo settle the obligations or reliable
estimate of the amount of the obligations cannot be made. The Company discloses the existence of contingent
liabilities in Other Notes to Financial Statements.

Confingent Assets

Contingent assets usually arise from unptanned or other unexpected events that give rise to the possibility of an
inflow of economic benefits. Contingent Assets are not recognized though are disclosed, where an inflow of
economic benefits is probable,

3.15 Infangible Assets

Recognition and Measurement

Intangible Assets are stated at acquisition cost, net of accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Subsequent Expenditure

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the cost incurred will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. Al other expenditure is recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

Iy
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Amortization
The useful lives over which intangible assets are amortized over useful lives over WDV method are as under:

Assets Useful Life {in Years)
Compuler software " 3

Disposal
Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an intangible asset are determined as the difference

between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and recognised as income or expense in
the Statement of Profit & Loss.

Intangible Assets under Development

Intangible Assets under development is stated at cost which inciudes expenses incurred in connection with
development of Intangible Assets in so far as such expenses relate to the period prior to the getling the assets
ready for use.

3.16 Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held for sale and discontinued operations

» Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use and & sale is considered
highly probable. They are measured at the lower of the carrying amount and the fair value less cost to sell.

> An impairment loss is recognized for any initial or subsequent write-down of the asset (or disposal group) to
fair value less costs to sell. A gain is recognized for any subsequent increases in fair value less costs to sell
of an asset (or disposal group), but not in excess of any cumulative impairment loss previously recognized. A
gain or loss not previously recognized by the date of the sale of the non-current asset (or disposal group) is
recognized at the date of de-recognition.

» Non-current assets (including those that are part of a disposal group) are not depreciated or amortized while
they are classified as held for sale. Non-current assets (or disposal group) classified as held for sale are
presented separately in the balance sheet. Any profit or loss arising from the sale or re-measurement of
discontinued operations is presented as part of a single line item in statement of profit and loss.

3.17 Operating Segment

The identification of operating segment is consistent with performance assessment and resource aliocation by
the chief operating decision maker (CODM). An operating segment is a component of the Company that
engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses including revenues and
expenses that relate to transactions with any of the other compenents of the Company and for which discrete
financial information is available. Based on assessment of CODM in terms of Indian Accounting Standard - 108,
the Company is predominantly engaged in Medical Healthcare Services. Income from Windmill & nursing
institute forms a very insignificant part and is not considered as segment by CODM for reporting purpose. The
company is primarily operating in India which is considered as single gecgraphical segment.

3.18 Earnings per Share

Basic earning per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of caiculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period atfributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the

effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

3.19 Cash Dividend Distribution to Shareholders




GPT Healthcare Limited (formerly known as GPT Healthcare Private Limited)
CIN U70101WB198SPLCO47402
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31% March, 2022

The Company recognises a liability to make cash distributions to shareholders of the Company when the
distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. Final dividends on
shares are recorded as a liability on the date of approval by the shareholders and interim dividends are recorded
as a liability on the date of declaration by the Company’s Board of Directors.

3.20 Measurement of Fair Values

3.21

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both
financial and non-financial assets and liabilifies.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair vaiue measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

» Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
» Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an asset or
a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
gssuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. A fair value measurement of a non-financial
asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its
highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best
use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
uncbservabie inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

» Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or fiabilities

> Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly; and

» Level 3 — Inputs which are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets & liabilities. Involvement of external valuers is
decided by the management of the company considering the requirements of Ind AS and selection criteria include
market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether prefessional standards are maintained.

Significant Judgements and Key sources of Estimation in applying Accounting Policies

Information about Significant judgements and Key sources of estimation made in applying accounting policies that
have the most significant effects on the amounts recognized in the financial statements is included in the following

notes.

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets: The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on an
assessment of the probability of the Company’s future taxable incore against which the deferred tax assets can
be utflized. In addition, significant judgement is required in assessing the impact of any legal or economic lirmits.

Useful lives of depreciablef amortisable assets (tangible and intangible): Management reviews its estimate
of the useful lives of depreciable/ amortisable assets at each reporting dafe, based on the expected utility of the

assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to actual normal wear and tear that may change the utility of plant
and equipment.




GPT Healthcare Limited (formerly known as GPT Healthcare Private Limited)
CIN U70101WR1589PLCO47402

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31* March, 2022

> Extension _and termination option in leases: Extension and termination options are included in many of the
leases. In determining the lease term, the Management considers all facts and circumstances that create an
economic incentive to exercise an extension option, or not exercise a termination option. This assessment is
reviewed if a significant event or a significant change in circurmnstances oceurs which affects this assessment and
that is within the control of the Company.

> Defined Benefit Obligation (DBQ); Employee benefit obligations are measured on the basis of actuarial
assumptions which include mortality and withdrawal rates as well as assumptions concerning future
developments in discount rates, medical cost frends, anticipation of future salary increases and the inflation rate.
The Company considers that the assumptions used to measure its obligations are appropriate. However, any
changes in these assumptions may have a material impact on the resulting calculations.

> Provisions and Contingencies: The assessments undertaken in recognising provisions and contingencies have
been made in accordance with indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 37, ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets’. The evaluation of the likelihood of the contingent events is applied best judgement by
managemenit regarding the probability of exposure to potential loss.

» Impairment of Financial Assets: The Company reviews its carrying value of investments carried at amortized
cost annually, or more frequently when there is indication of impairment. If recoverable amount is less than its

carrying amount, the impairment loss is accounted for.

» Allowances for Doubtful Debts; The Company makes allowances for doubtful debts through appropriate
estimations of irrecoverable amount. The identification of doubtful debts requires use of judgment and estimates.
Where the expectation is different from the original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value of the
trade and other receivables and doubtful debts expenses in the period in which such estimate has been changed.

» Fair value measurement of financial Instruments: When the fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair
value is measured using valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow model. The input to these
models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this not feasible, a degree of judgement is
required in establishing fair vaiues. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk

and volafility.

> Estimation uncertainty relating to the global heaith pandemic on COVID-19: The Company has considered
internat and certain external sources of information up to the date of approval of these interim financial statements
in determining the impact of COVID-18 pandemic on various elements of its financial statements. The
management has used the principles of prudence in applying judgments, estimates and assumptions and based
on the current estimates, the management expects fo fully recover the carrying amount of inventories, trade
receivables and other assets. However, the eventual outcome of the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic may be
different from those estimated as on the date of approval of these interim financial statements owing to the nature

and duration of COVID-19 pandemic.




GPT Healtheare Limitad {Formerly known as GPT Healthcare Frivate Limited}

CIN No : UT0101WB1989PLC047402
Notes to fhe Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022
{All amounts are Rs in lakhs, excapt share data or otherwise stated}

4. Proparty, Plant and Equipment

Land Computer &
Particulars — | Buildings Plant& | Furniture and | .\ oqoq Office Books Total
Freehold Machinery Fixtures .
_ Equipments
Cost
As at March 31, 2020 1,615.77 13,506.48 8,041.29 485.75 142.31 215.99 0.38 25 007.97
Additions - 47.82 330.65 §5.22 104.87 49.28 - 597.84
On Disposals/ Withdrawals {21.22) - - - - - - {21.22}
As at March 31, 2021 1,594.55 13,5654.30 9,371.84 550.97 247.18 265.27 0.38 25,584 .59
Additions - 14.34 499.57 49.07 75.87 5577 - 694 .62
On Disposals/ Withdrawals {2.50} - {112.98) - {11.62) - - {127.10
As at 31st March , 2022 1,592.05 13,568.64 9,758.53 . 600.04 311.43 321.04 0.38 26,152.11
Depreciation
As at March 31, 2020 - 661.53 2277.30 172.22 23.87 95.37 .38 3,230.68
Charge for the year - 22892 808.50 £64.18 21.67 44.43 - 1,167.80
On Disposals/ Wilhdrawals - - - - - - - -
As at March 31, 2021 - 890.45 3.085.80 236.40 45.54 139.80 0.38 4.308.47
Charge for the year - 230.36 8i7.54 57.88 33.00 56.34 - 1,195.52
On Disposals/ Withdrawals - - {86.71) - {11.04) - - {97.75)
As at 3st March , 2022 - 1,120.81 3.817.13 294.28 67.50 196.14 0.38 5,496.24
Net Block
As at March 31, 2020 1615.77 12,844.95 6,763.99 313.53 118.44 120.62 {0.00}] 21,777.29
As at March 31, 2021 1,584.55 12,663.85 8,286.04 314.57 201.64 125.47 (0.00}]  21.188.12
As at 31st March , 2022 1,582.05 12,447.83 5.941.40 305.76 243.93 124,90 (0.00) 20,655.87
MNotes:
4.4 Refer nole na.19 & 24 for Information on propesty, plant and equipment pledged as securities by he company.
4.2 Refer note no.37(b) for disclosure of contractual commitment for the aequisition of property, plant and equipment.
4.3 Title deads of Immovable Properties not held in neme of the Company:
As at As at

Descriptions

31st March, 2022

31st March, 2021

Title deeds held in the name of

or empioyee of promoter/ director
Reason for not being held in the name of Company

Whether tille deed holder is a promoter, director or rslative of promoter/ ditaclor o

GPT Healthcare Privale Limited
Not Applicable
Not Applicable

4A. Capital work-in-progress

Balance at the end of the period! year

Descriptions As at As at
3st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Baiance at the beginning of the year 29.45 176.64
Additiens during the year 71.83 38.70
Less: Capitalisations during the year (29.45) {92.33)
Less: CWIP Writien off during the year - {93.56)
71.83 29.45

4A.1 Additional disclosurss as per Schedule -l requirement:

As at March 31, 2022

As at March 31, 2621

. Projects Projects . . Projects
Amount in CWIP for a period of in temporally Projects in temporafly
progress
progress | suspended suspended
Less than 1 Year 71.83 - 29.45 -
1-2 Years - - - N
2-3 Yeais - - - -
More than 3 Years ’ - - - -
Total 71.83 - 2%.45 -

There are no projects as on each reporting period where activily had been suspendad. Also there are no projects as on the reporting pericd which has

exceeded cost as compared to its original plan or where completion is overdua,




GPT Healthcare Limited (Formerly known as GPT Healthcare Private Limited)

CIN No : U70101WB1989PLC047402

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022
{(All amounts are Rs in lakhs, except share data or otherwise stated)

5. Intangible Assets

Particulars Computer
Software
Cost '
As at March 31, 2020 123,69
Additions -
On Disposals/ Withdrawals -
As at March 31, 2021 123.69
Additions 2.42
On Disposals/ Withdrawals -
As at 31st March, 2022 126.11
Depreciation
As at March 31, 2020 108.12
Charge for the year 7.53
On Disposals/ Withdrawals -
As at March 31, 2021 115.65
Charge for the year 5.88
On Disposals/ Withdrawals -
As at 31st March, 2022 121.53
Net Block
As at March 31, 2020 15.57
As at March 31, 2021 8.04
As at 31st March, 2022 4.58
6 Right of Use Assets
. Leasehold . Plant &
Particulars Land Buildings Machinery Total
Cost
As at 31st March, 2020 3.68 695 48 192,78 891.92 |
Additions - = - -
Disposals/ Withdrawals - - - -
|As at 315t March, 2021 3.68 £95.46 182.78 891.92 |
Additions - 712.64 147.28 859.92 |
Disposals/ Withdrawals - {155.54) - {155.54)
As at 31st March, 2022 3.68 1,252.56 340.06 1,596.30
Depreciation -
As at 31st March, 2020 - 34.59 25.35 59.94
Charge for the year - 37.36 34.42 71.78
On Disposals/ Withdrawals / i ) .
adjustments/Transfer )
tAs at March 31, 2021 - 71.95 59.77 131.72
Charge for the year - 111.28 46.32 157.560
On Disposals/ Withdrawals / - {51.85) - (51.85)
adjustments/Transfer
As at 31st March, 2022 - 131.38 106.09 237.47
Not Block -
As at March 31, 2020 3.68 660,87 167.43 831.98
As at March 31, 2021 3.68 623.51 133.01 760.20
As at 31st March , 2022 3.68 1,121.18 233.87 1,358.83

6.1 Refer Note-41 for disclosure on IND AS -116 "Leases”.




GPT Healthcare Limited {Formorly known as GPT Healthcare Private Limited)

CIN No : UT010TWB1309FLC 047402

Mates 10 the lidated FI lal Stat ts For tho year anded 315t March, 2022
(Alf amounts are Rx in lekhs, excemt shame data or cthurwise stated)

T, Non-Current Investments HNumber of sharos Amount
A5 at ’ As at Asat As al
31st Warch, 2022 35t March, 2021 3ist March, 2022 s March, 2024

Invesiments [n Associates
Equity Instruments fat «ost unless otherwise stated}

[Unquoted)
T Medicara Private Limited,
(Equity Shares ol T 10 each ) - 713125
Cost of Acquisition - 131
Less: hara of proflifloss) . {3.52)
Total (4) - &7.79
Provision lor imeaimmant in valus for westmants {B] _ N
Ned Investment [A-B} _ 8719
Aggregata Camying value of Linquated invastments - 8773

Aggragale amount of impaimuont in value of Investments

7.1 As required under saction 188(4) of the Campaniea Act, 2043 the investment made in TM Medicare Privale Limited |5 for generat business purposa.

7.2 The Board of Ch atlis ling had app sale of stake in K's associate, Ms TM Medicara Private Limitad (TMRMPL), Accardingly, the company soid its
gnlire staka in Ms TMMPL and the sald d b be an i pany w.el 15t July, 202,
A, Non-Current Financial lnvostmonts Number of units Amauni
A at As at As ak A at
- SatMarch, 2022 st Margh. 2021 st March, 7022 314t March, 2021
I at ised cost *r
lowastmant in Nan Conyertibie Dobentures iQuolad)
8,784 Edehweiss Financial Services Limited (Maturity. Dec, 2023) Faco 50,000 - S00.00 -
Value: Rs.1,000 per unit
9,85% ECL Financa Limiled (Maturity: ALy, 2026) 1 - o -
Face alug: Re,1.000 parunit
S00.07 -
Baook Value of Custad Investments 500,01 .
Marhet Value of Cuolad Invesiments 47501 -
78. Currant Invashments Mumbear of units Amount
As At As at As at Az ak

315t March, 2022 31st Marah, 2021 315t March, 2022 315t Mareh, 2031

[! t d at falr vatue through profit and loss (FYTPL}
Investment In Bends {Quoted)
8.85% HOFC Sank Limited Perpelual Bands 50 - 53628 -
Facg Value Rs,70,00,000 per unit
539.26 =
Mariat Valua of Queled Investment 530.26 -
§. Loans Non- Cumront Current
As at As Ak As at As at
st Mareh, 2022 313t March, 2021 313t March, 2022 312t Margh, 2021
{Unsecurad, considered gand unlass olherw|se stated}
Advance given 1o emplovaes afainst Salary & Olhers 5.56 G.44 15.79 5,un
Loan lo Body Corpovites (Refar Note 8.2) . - 3.650.00
Loan io Related Parties {Rafer Hote 45) - - - 486483
550 . 44 3,865,74 3,869.65
Amount of lean or advanco in the natura of] Percentzge of the total Loans 2nd
lozn vutstantng Advanees inthe nature of Loans
Type of Barrowar An at Asat As al As at
, Jist Mareh, 2022 | 315t Masch 2021 || 39 Mapch, 2022 ]
Framoter f{GPT Sons Private Limdted - Holding Company} - 4,428,711 . 91.04%
Directors - - - -
KMPs - ] . -
Ralated Farins - A435.92 8.88%
Others 3,6850.00 - 60 00% -
Total 3,850,008 4,864.63 100.00%' 100, 00% |
8.1 Advances given 1o direchors and ils oificers of the company amaunts to ¥ 0,38 in current year [FY 20-21 ¢ 0.28)
8.2 Loan given ta body comparates caries interest @ 8.75%, and the repayment schedule i slipalated In tha agreement.
8.3 As required undar section 186(4) of the Companies Act, 2013 lean given be body corperates! related parties am for genaral business purposo.
4. Cther Financ|a) Assat Non- Cuarent Currant
As at As at As at Asat
31t March, 3022 315t March, 2029 38t March, aﬂzz 215t March, mﬂ]
Security Deposits (Refer Nele 5.1) 802.01 201.10
Interest accrued an Loan (o Body Camorates . - 183 UU -
Interaat acsruad on Loan lo Related Partes - - 315.38
Inlerest accrued an nvestments 11 ,OG B
Cther receivables . - 28 81 N
IP0 Bxpenses Recoverable (Refer Nota 9.24 . - 476,75 -
Unbilled Revenus . . 3s4.39 32714
Fixed depnsit with bank « y arver 12 hs (Refer Nole 1016 _ .
4.3 ' )
E£312.97 20110 1,054.58 L FE K5

9.1 During the year, the Company has entered nlo an leng term lense agreeement wilh the land ewnars and developars lor sefing up 2 hospital at Ranchi. The lease
tam shall commencs from ihe date of fon of e demized Hospilal buliding. As per the lerms and condilions of the aforesaid agresment, 3n amoun! of Rs.

47.60 lakhs has baen paid to the [and cwners aa Secwrity Daposil.

9.2 Duiing the year, the Comy has i d agyeen to Rs. 476.75 Lakhs towards vaious samces ived in ion with prag { inilial public
ofter of its equily ghares which Inchides an offer tor sale by axisting shareholders, As pir lhe Qffar A i the Company and the solling sharehalders, the
selling shevéholders shall refmb Ihe af id on praporiionale basis on Ksting of tha Company's aquity sharas an stock exchanges in Indla. Pending
such lisling of the Company's shares, lhe alaresaid amounl has baen dered as fram thoae existing shareholders and roporied under PO exp
recoverable”,

8,3 The amaount ncludes T 10,16 (F.Y. 2020-21 T Nil ) pladged as secunity against Bank Guaraniee and Borfowinps.

{@?‘Té\




GPT Healthcare Limited {Formerfy known 08 GPT Healtheare Privato Limited)
CIN Ne 1 UTOT01WB1989PLG047402

Notes to the & Il iF E Stat: ts for the yearended 31st March, 2022
{All amounibs are As in Jakhs, excopt sharn data of olfserw|se stated)
10, Non-Cumant Tax Assots As at As at
e tist Marel, 2022 315t Margh, 3021

Arh lnpome-Tax & TOS roceivall
[FD'S net of rovisien - < 199200 { .Y, 2020-21: T 537.79)] 164.25 4859

164.26 96.63
11. Baforrod Tax Assels (Net) As at Ad at

315t March, 2022 A1st March, 2021

Defarad Tax Assets arising on agcount of §

Seclicn 438 of the Income Tax Act MTHY 1B7.45
Unalsorbed Depreciation 92268 4,.212.50
Carry Forward Business & Capilat Insses 288.02 1.212.42
MAT Cradit Enlitimant 1.766.59 BO3.43
Cihers 32.37 M4
Sub-Tatal (&) 3,228.64 J45T.21
Deforred Tax Liahllities arising on account of
Depraclable Assels (PPE, Intangible and ROU Assels) + 2,858,958 2,800,868
Fair i af fat L 0.38 -
Sub-Total (B) 2,857.33 2 B00.68
Deferrad Tax Assats [Nat) (A-B) 374,31 B5E.55
11,1, Movament |n deforred tay asscts and llabllifes during the yoar ended 3tst March, 2021 and year endad 313t March, 2022
Rocagalzed In L
Asal " Recogrized in Other As at
Particutars $5t April, 2020 Stam::‘f:’nlt_:f Profit  amprehensive Income  31st Marah, 2021
sndloss
Beferred Tak Asscts arlsing on account of @
Section 436 of the Income Tax Act 146 48 41.80 {0.83) 187.45
YUnabsorbed Depreciatian 1,213.50 - - 1.213.50
Carey foreard Business & Capital [osses 172587 {E13.25) - 1212.42
MAT Credil Entilimenl 528,76 250.67 80943
Cthers 107 3334 - 41
281548 (15744} (083} 2.457.21
Ereforred Tax Llabilitios arising on account af ;.
Depraciable Assets (PPE, Intanaikle and ROU Assets) 2674.88 126.78 . 2 80066
2674.82 125,78 n 2,800.66
_§40,60 203.22 083 656,55
Recognized in
Asal Recognized in Cther As at
Farieulars fstApril, 2021 SutementorProfit o hensive oome 315t March, 2022
andLoss
Befarvod Tax Asseta arlsing on account of 3
Saclion 43B of the Income Tax Act 187.45 25.48 5.04 21797
Unabsorbed Dopreciatian 1,243.50 1280.81}) - 92788
Carry forward Business & Capltal osses 1,212.42 (924 40) - 268,02
MAT Credil Entitimenl £00.42 957.17 1,768,559
Others 3441 [1.04} - 33.37
345721 N 233.60 5.04 3,220.64
Defarred Tax Liakilities arlslog on account of
Depraciable Assals (PPR, Imenglble and RO Assets) £.800.66 56,30 - 285685
Falr valuation of finandial Instruments - 028 - 0.38
2,800,566 56.68 - 2,957,33
856.55 (200,28} 504 3.1

11.2 Delarred tax assels and Dofarred taz liabiltias have been offsctwhersver the Company has @ legally anforceable right 1o sed off current tax assels against cument
tax fiabiliiies arxd where the defermed bax asgels ond daferrad tax lablities refale toincome lax levied by live same laxalion autharily,

12, Other Assot Non Current Cuirent
As at As at at As at
3141 March, 2022 31st Mareh, 2021 Jst March, 2022 st March, 2021
Capital advances 5.00 5a.27 - -
Advance against supply of goods & services - - 7218 G4, 11
Bafanca wilh Government aulhorities - - 2365 G826
Prapaid Expange 3.60 A.27 TO.46 9648
5,50 72,54 188,28 220,85
13. inventorivs As at As at
313 0 1=t Mai
(Waluad a1 lawer of cost and net realizable vahoe}
Medicines & Clher C b B07.13 634.94
Stores & spares 121.32 107.64
T2845 542,55

13.1 Mode of Valualian - Refer note ae, 3. of significant accounling policy.
Ao g P

13,2 Refer Note - 19 & 24 fer Infi tlon on hyp of Y.




GPT Healthcare Limited (Formerly known as GPT Healthcare Private Limited)

CIN No : UT0101WB138SPLC047402

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022
{All amounts are Rs in lakhs, except share dafa or otherwise stated)

14. Trade receivable As at As at
31st March, 2022 IMst March, 2021
Trade Receivables considered good - Secured - -
Trade Receivables considered good « Unsecured 1,342.59 1,726.40
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk - -
Trade Receivables - credit impaired 122,79 103.17
1,485.38 1,829.57
Less: Aliowance for deubtful receivables
Trade Recelvables - credit impaired (122.78) {103.17}
’ 1,342.59 1,726.40
Additlonal disclosures as per Schedule -l equirement:
For the year ended 31st March, 2022
Qutstanding for following perlods from due date of Payment
Particulars Less than 6 | € Months-1 '
Menths Yoar 1-2 Years 2.3 Years More than 2 Years Total
{i) Undisputed Trade Recsivables - Considered
Good 562,12 339,87 330.44 3281 2795 1,342.59
{iiy Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have . R _ . . .
significartt increase in Credit risk
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired .47 6.94 17.39 4.38 8284 12279
{iv} Disputed Trade Receivables - Considerad Good ) i} i ) - i
{v}) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have . R R . R .
significant increase in Credit risk
{vi} Disputed Trade Recelvables - credit impaired
For the year endad 31st March, 2021
Qutstanding for following periods from due date of Payment
Particulars Less than 8 | 6 Months-1
Monthe Year . 1-2 Years 2-3 Years Mara than 3 Years Total
{iy Undisputed Trade Receivables - Consldared 85.07 1.053.87 487.83 72,80 16.74 1.726.40
Good ’ T : ’ ) e
{il) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have
significant incresse in Credil risk - * - - h -
{iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credil impaired 174 2171 25,61 5.90 5041 103.47

{iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - Considered Good

{v) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have
significant increase in Cradit risk

(vi} Disputed Trade Recaivables - cradit Impaired

14.1 Recaivables due by directors and its officers of the company is T Nil {F 2020-21 ¥ Nif}

14.2 In determining ihe allowances for cradit losses of trade receivables, the Company has used & practical expedient by computing 1he expected credit |oss
allowance for trade receivables based on a provision matrix. The provision matrix takes into account hisorical credit loss experience and is adjusted for forward
looking information, The expected credit loss allowance is based on the agsing of the receivables that are due and rates used in the provision matrix. [Refar note no -

43¢(l))
14.3 Refer Note - 19 & 24 for information on hypothecation of trade receivables,

15. Cash and cash equivalents As at As at
: 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Balances with banks
Current accounts 792.88 452,48
Cash in hand 3364 2540
Chegue In Hand 0.30 0.12
8Z2B8.80 477.61
Current
16. Other bank balances {Other than note - 15) As at As at
31st March, 2022 3ist March, 2021
Fixed deposits with Banks (maturity for more than 3 months but less than 12 months) 44‘:1;8 %22?}(‘53
38 .




GPT Healthcare Limited {Formerly known as GPT Heaithcare Private Limited)
CIN No : UY0101WB1985PLC04T402

Mates to the Consolldated Elnancial Statements for the yoar ended 315t March, 2022
{All amounts are Rs in lakhs, except share data or otherwisa statod}

17. Equity Share Capitat As at As at
31st March, 2022 315t March, 2021
Mo, of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount

Authorisad Share capital )
Ordinary shares of ¥ 10 sach 85,000,000 8,500.00 18,000,000 1,800.00
Comaulsorily Converlible Praference Sheres of 2 10 aach 40,000,000 #,000.00 40,000,000 4,0600,00

I VX T T sE0GD
Issued and subseribed Share capital
Cedinary shares of ¥ 10 aach (Eouily Shares) 79,904,266 7,920,432 17,841,000 1,794.10
Compulsorily Converlible Preference Shares of ¥ 14 sach - 40,000,000 4,000,00

7.980.43 5.794.10

Lezss : Instrumenl Classified as Equity
(Refer Note No.17{h] & 174} ) 40,000,000 4.000.00

— 780043 e TR,
a) Recong|liation of 1he numbaer of erdinary & praference shares at the heginning and at the and of the year.

Particulars No. of Shares Amount Mo, of Shares Amount

Opening Balance i 17,941,000 1,794,110 17,841,000 1.784.10
Add: Shares issuad during the yeer [Refer note 17{e)] : 35,662,000 3,588.20 - -
Add: Equity Shares issued on convarsion of 0.001% CCPS [Refar nola 17{h)] 26,081,286 2608.13 - -
Closing Balance 79,304,286 7.990.43 17,941,000 1.794.1¢

Pursusnt to a resolution peassed by the sharehalders at the 32nd Annual General Mesting held on September 2, 2021, the Autherized Share CapHal of the Company has been increased from
580,000,000 (Rupees Five hundrad and eighly million only) to ¥ 1,000,000,000 (Rupeas Ong thousand million only) comprising of 60,000,500 number of Equily Share of Face value of 710 gach
and 40,000,000 rumber ol 0.001% Compulsorily Convertible Praference Shares of T 10 each ranking pari passu with the existing shares of the Company.
Subsequentiy al the Exira Ordinary General Mesting of ihe shareholders haki on October 1, 2027, the Authorized Shara Capital of the Company has been fuither increased fram ¥ 1,000,000,000
{Rupees One thausand million only ) {0 2 1,250,000.000 {Rugees One thousand iwe hundred end filty milllon only) comprising of 85,000,600 numbar of Equity Share of Face value of 210 sach
and 46,000,000 rumber of §.001% Compulsorily Gonvertible Prefarance Shares of £ 10 each ranking pari passu with the existing shares of the Company.

b) Terms/ Rights attached to Shares ;

{i) The Company has only one dlass of equily shares having a par vaiue of ¥ 10/- per shere, Each holder of equity shares is entilled o onz vote per shara. The Company declares and pays
dividend in Indian Rupee. In the evant of liquidation of the Company. tha holders of equily shares will be entilled Io receive remaining osssts of the Company. ‘The distribution will be in proportion
1o the Aumber of equily shares held by the sharehaldars.

{iiy Al tha Prefarance Shares shall carry a proferenifal right over the Equity Shares aof the Company as regards 1o paymenl of dividend and repayment of capitel, in the event of winding of the
Company. The dividend proposed, i any, by the Baard of Directors is subject (o the epproval of the shareholders in the Annuat General Mesting.

c} Dataila of sharehodders holding meore than 5% shares in the Company.

As at 3isi March, 2022 As at 315t March, 2021
Partioulars Type Ho. of Shares % Holding Mo, of Shares % Halding
Sharos of ¥ 10/ cach, fully pald up
(GPT &ons Private Limilag {Holding Sompany on the basis of| Equity 53,804,700 67.34% 17,840,500 99,897%
voling power)
- Equit 25,082, 786 32.64% - -
{Banyan Tres Growh Gapit! I, L.1.C. Ry — ] 45,005,000 160.00%
d) Detalls of Prom olding n the
As at 315t March, 2022 Ax at 31st March, 2021
Promoter Nama %age change during the year Ho of Shares % of Total Shares No. of Sharas % of Total Shares
GPT SOME PRIVATE LIMITED -32.6655 53,804,700 B7.34% 17,940,500 95.997%;}
CWARTKA PRASAD TANTIA enlinibia 200 Neptigible - -
OM TANTIA TAMTIA Negligible an Naglinible - -
SHREE GOFAL TANTIA Healigibls anh Neg 'ggiblel - -

As per racards of the Gompany, including its register of shareholders / members as an 315t March, 2022, the above sharehalding represents legal ownership of shares

o} The Gompany has neilher allolted any equity shares againsl cansideration ofher than cash nor has bouphl back any shares during the peried af five years precading the dale al which the
Batance Sheel is prepared excepl 338,82,000 banus equily shares alotled in he rallo of 2 {iwo) fully paid-up bonus share of the face vaiue of € 10 esach for every existing 1 {one) fully paid-up
aquity share of the face value of Rs 10 each as approved by the members at the Apnual General Meeting held en 3rd Seplember, 2021. Thase bonus shares has bean issued by capitaiizing the
sum of T 3588.20 Lakhs fram and put of Securities Premium Resarve and balance amaunt from General Reserve of the Company,

) Na ordinary shares hava been raserved for issue under aplions and cantracts/ commitments for the sale of shares/ disinvesimend es al tha Balance Sheet date.

g} Mo securities convertibla inle Equily! Preference shares have been issued by the Company during the year ended 315t March 2022,

b} 0.001% Compulsorlly Convertible Freferance Shares {CCPS) of ¥ 10 each amounling t¢ Rs. 4000 Lekhs ( 400,00,000 shares held by Banyan Trea Growth Capital Il LL.C.), Bath
Gompulsarily Converlible Prefersnce Shares (CCPS) shall be converible into one equity share of T 10 sach at 2 premium of ¥ 36.01 par share at earliest of following: i) suelion of invaslor, ii)
immediatety prior 1o filing of prospacius with respeci lo initial public offesing & iif} end of 19 years fram the dale af subsaription. The Board of Direclors at its meeling hald on January 3, 2022 upon
reesipt of conversion natice from BanyanTrae Growth Capital It LLG, bave approved the conversion of 40 million 0.001% Compuisarily Converlible Preference Shares{CCPS} of T10 each facs
value held by BanyanTree Growih Capital |1 LLG into 26,081,286 Equity Shares of the Compary of face value 710 each. Upon conversion, the CCPS has been extinguished and accordingly, the
amount of ¥ 1385 14 million bas been fransferred to Share Prémium accownt,

i} Mo calls are unpaid by any Directar or Officer of the Company during the year,

- As at As at
17A. Instrumunt_lil_ﬂwuly Equity in nature 315t March, 2022 31t March
Instrument classified as Equity )
0.001% Compulsority Convertible Proferencs Shares of INR 10 each
A the beginning of the vaar 4,000.00 4,000.00
Less: Mandatory Equily Shares jasued on conversion of 0.001% CCFPS [Reler Nota 17 (h]] [4.000.00) -
ry Equily [ - 3,500.,00

At tho end of the year




GPT Healthcare Limited (Formerly known as GPT Healthcare Private Limited)

CIN No ; UT0101WB1989PLC047402

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022
{All amounts ara Rs in lakhs, except share data or otherwise stated)

. Refer As at As at
18, Other Equity Note No. 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Capital Reserve 18.1 12247 122.47
Secwrities premium reserve 18.2 1,341.87 3,172.56
General reserve 18.3 2,653.73 3,088.37
Retained Earnings 18.4 3,659.75 1,228.13
Other Comprehensive Income 18.5 - -
7,827.82 7,592.53
As at As at

Particulars

st March, 2022

21st March, 2021

18.1 Capital Reserva

Opening balance 122 47 122.47
Changes during the year - -
Closing Balance 122,47 122.47
18.2 Securities premium reserve

Qpening balance 3,172.56 3,172.56
Less: Utilisation towards lssue of Bonus Shares [Refer note 17(g)] (3,172.56) -
Add: Ganerated from conversion of preference shares 1,381.87

Closing Balance 1,391.87 3,172.56
18.3 General reserve

Opening balance 3,069.37 3,069.37
Less: Utilisation towards Issue of Bonus Shares [Refer nole 17(e)} (415.84) -
Closing Balance 2653.73 3,069.37
184 Restained Earnings

Opening bafance 1,228.13 523.51
Add; Profit for the year 4 169.77 2,109.40
Add : Transfer from OCI (12.28} 202
Less: Apprapriations

Dividend Paid (Refer Note 49} 1,725.687 1,406.80
Closing Balance 3,8659.75 1,228.13
18.5 Other Comprahensiva Income {'OCY)

Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plans

Opening balance - -
Add/ Less: Gain / (L.055} on Remeasurement of Defined benefit plan (Net of Tax) {12.28} 2.02
Less : Transfer o Retained Earning 12.28 {2.02)

Closing Balance

18.86 Nature and purpose of other reserves
Capital Reserve
Capital reserve of T 122.47 Lakhs was created on merger of CG Securities Private Limited and Matiix Dealkcomm Privaie Limited with the company,

pursuant {o schemea of arangement dated 1st Octobar, 2009,

Securities premium reserve

Securilies premium reserve represents premium received on issue of shares. The reserve is ulilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013,

General raserve

Under the erstwhile Companies Act 1956, a general reserve was created through an annual transfer of net profit at a specified percentage in accordance
with applicable regulations. Conseguent to the introduction of the Companies Act 2013, the requirement lo mandaiary transfer a specified percentage of

net profit to general reserve has been withdrawn.

.

Retained Earnings
This Reserve represents the cumulative profits of the Company and effects of remeasurements of defined benefit abligations. This Reserve can be ulilized

in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2093

Other Comprehensive Income : Remeasurement of defined henefit plans
Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes 1o the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the relurn on plan assats

{excluding net inlerest), is reflected immediately In the Batance Sheet with a charge or credil recognised in Other Comprehensive Income {OCI) in the
period in which they occur. Remeasurements recognised in OCH is reflected immediately in retailed earnings and will not be reclassified to Statement of

Profit and loss.




GPT Healthcare Limited (Formerly known as GPT Healthcare Private Limllad)

CiN No : U731 01WB1989PL.C047402
Notes to the Consclidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022
{All amounts are RS in lakhs, except share data or otherwise stated)

£3.1 Yerm Loan from Financial lnstitutions

As at
Ag at 31st March, 2021
12, Hon Current Borrowings Refar Hote No. 18t Marph, 2022
Mon - current Current maturities Non - current Current maturlties

Seeured
Term Loan from Finangial Institutions 19.1 22497 2015 1,818.04 530,30
Term Laan from Banks 19.2 6.993.76 1,905,82 B,148.59 1,067.41
Other Loans
Egquipment f Vehicle Loan 19.3 25.47 A7.58 252,60 261.83

T,244.20 1,963.63 10,228.20 1,869.64
Less: Current Portion (disclosed under Short  term
borrowings- Refer Note No.24 ) - {1,983.63) - (1.850.64)

7,244,20 - 10,229.20 -

iy Term Loan from HDFC Lid. is secured by first charge of 2nd and 3rd floor of Nursing Hostel tegether with 2 covered car parking spaces on Ground Tloor, alongwith all
areas appurienant ihereto building called Euphoria, siluated at J N Mukherjee Road, Dag No - 52, B7, 66, 56, P§- M.P. Ghora, Howrah - 714106, The dalails of
rapaymeat terms and rate of inlerest are as under.

18.2

L oan and Data Remaining Rate of Interest| Glosing Bafance | EMI Payahle wilhin 1
Instalment {p.a.) as at 31.03.2022 year
Sep-29 80 §,05% 245.13 20.16

Term Loan from Banks

i} Term loan from State Bank of India is secured by first charge by registered mortgage of hospital building {it.8 Dumdum) having a bullt up area of €3,508 sq.ft. along
with undivided share of land measuring 18.63 coltah at premises no.1, Khudiram Sose Sarani, Kolkata - 700080, hypothecalion of all the fixed assals of the company
excepl equiments financad by other lenders, personal guarantee of some of the directors & corporate guarantae of GPT Sons Private Limited. Working Capital Term
Loan from State Bank OF India amounting to T660.00 lakhs shak rank second eharge with the exisling credit facilities in respect of enderlying security aiready charged to
the existing credit {acilities as welt as cash flows for rapayment. The detail of repayment terms and rate of interest is as under:

Loan end Date Remaining Rate of interest] Closing Balance | EMI Payable within 1
Instalment ipal as at 31.03.2022 year

Jul-24 28 8.65% 1,247.87 503.31

Jut-3z 124 8.65% 4.3.06 5237

Jan-26 46 7.65% 540.48| +65.00

2.731.414] 720.68

#i} Term Loan from Punjab National Bank (Sanction Limited 4500 lakhs) is sacured by equitable morigage over the land of 1654 sqm with Hospital bullding therean in the
name of ILS Howrah situated on crossing of 98 Abani Dalta Road, P.S. Golabari, Howrah, hypothecation of Medical & Non-Medical Equipment, Furniture and other
assels purchased out of this loan along with first charge of Escrow account opened with PNB for routing of all inward cash flows of the company, Waorking Capital Term
t.0an from Punjab National Bank amouating to F833,00 lakhs is secured by extension of charge on lhe existing underlying security already charged to the Bank. The
details of repayment terms and rate of inlerest are as under.

Loan end Date Remalning Rate of interest; Closing Balance | EMI Payable within 1
Instabment ip.a.} as at 31.03.2022 year_

Mar-24 B5 8.25% 3.741.86 405 .31

Jan-26 45 7.80% 855.62| 223.56

4,697.48| 628.87]

{ii} Loan fram LIC Housing Finance Limited of Rs. 188,598,465/ has baen laken over by HOFC Bank on 01-08-2021. The loan is secured by equitable mortgage of
Hospital buiiding situated at Holding No.000DNz, House No.0300407, Rs Piot No.2145/4448, Cs Piot No. 1774 (P), Mouza Kunjaban, Tahsil Indira Nagar, Ps Agartala
East, New Sécretariat, Capilal Complex Road, ls Hospitals, Aganala. first charge by way of hypolhecation of entise movable fixed assets of ILS Agaitala Hospial
texcept specifically charged to Sundaram Finance, Kotak Mahindra Prime, Siemens Financial Services, Allahabad Bank) and current assets of the company, personal
gquarantes of Dr Om Tantia and Mr Anurag Tanlia and Corporate Guaranize of GPT Sons Private Limited, The details of repayment terms and rale of interest are as

under:
Remaining Rate of Interest| Closing Baiance | EMI Payable within 1
Loan end Data Instalment {p.a.) as at 31.03.2022 year
Nov-24 32 7.10% 1.570.79 5565.37
14,3 Equipment/ Vehicle Loans are secured by {irst charge of equipments/ vehicles procured (rom such loans. The delails are as under:
Remaining Rate of interest | Closing Balance as EMI Payable
Loan Loan end Date Instalmant {p.a) at 3.03.2022 within 1 year
Siemens Financial Services Lid 28-Jun-22 3 10,00% 276 2.76
Sundaram Finance Lid 03-Dee-22 9 2.50% 2,14 213
Sundaram Finance iid 10-Feb-23 11 H.75% 539 539
Sundaram Finance Lid 13-Oct-24 31 9.50% 15,73 564
Kotak Mahindra Frime Lid. 01-Nov-23 20 8.03% 20.5 17.28
Bank of Saroda 12-hov-23 20 7 45% 7.42 4.35
£3.02 37.55

$9.4 Tenm Loans from State Bank of India, Punjab National 8ank & HOFG Bank and Ovardraft facility {including non-fund based facilities) availed from HDFC Bank are also
secured by Corporate guarantee given by Holding Company, M/s GPT Sons Private Limited. Total Fund and Non-Fund Jgagqflf“o‘utgtanding a'& the year ended 319st
March, 2022 towards Corporate Guarantee taken from Holding Company amaunts to ¥ 7,835.08 lakhs, - Coadrd sk ,7}\

19,5 The company has not defaulted on any loans payatle, and thers has been no breach of any loan covenants. £ . j

18.8 The company has registered all the applicable charges with Registrer of Companies withins the statutary period.




GPT Healthcara Limited (Formerly known as GPT Healthcare Private Limited)

CIN No : UT0101WB1989PLC047402

Nates ta the Gonsclidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022
{All amounts are Rs in fakhs, except share data or ctherwise stated)

20, Lease Liabilities

Mon- Current

Lease Liabllities (Refer Nota 41)

As at As at
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
408.08 214,37
495,08 214,27

21, Other Financial Liabilitles

Nopn- Current

As at . As at
34st March, 2022 " 31st March, 2021

tnteraat Accrued but not due on borrowings
Interest payable on Income Tax

Employee refated liabilities

Secucity deposit

Capital Creditors

22, Pravisions

ton- Current

As at As at
313t March, 2022 31ist March, 2021

Provision for Employes Benefits *
- Gratuity (Refer Note 39)

- Leave encashment

- Bonus, Ex-Gralia & Incentives
Cther Provisions

- Preference Divigend

405.41 342,72
245.77 217.76
651,18 £60,48

Current
As at As at
st 1
108,51 82,15
105.81 62.15
Current
Ag at As at
3ist March, 2022 21st March, 2021
30.24 7873
- 23.00
495,48 102.44
17.48 10.48
106.55 160.04
€49.85 374.69
Current
As at As at
22 2021
44,49 17.60
23.82 13.83
928,02 215.56
- 0.04
397.34 246.93

" The classiication of provision ior employee benefils info current/on current has been done by the actuary of the Company based upon estimated amount of cash

autfiow during the next 12 monihs from the balance sheet date.

i

23, Qther Liabilities Mon- Current Current
As at As at As at As at
34st March, 2022 3ist March, 2021 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021

Advances from customers - - 162,34 101,33
Advances for sale of Land - - 4.19 4.74
Statutory dues payable - . 233.07 185.25
Deferred Revenue 1,263.10 1,327.55 §4.45 64.45

1,263.10 1!32?.55 494.05 355.77
23.1 Mavement of Deferved Revenue
Partictilars Amount
Opening Balance (Current + Nan Currant) §,382.00
Govemment Grant received during the year -
Less: Deferred Revenue on Government Grant recognised in Profit and Loss Statement £4.45
Closing Balance 1532?.55
Less: Current portion of Deferred Revenue Grani carried forward as at year end £§4.45

1,263.10

Non-Current partion of Deferred Revenue Grant carried forward as at year end




GPT Healthcare Limited (Formerly known as GPT Healthcare Private Limited)

CIN Mo : UT70101WB1989PLC047402

Notes to the Gonsclidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022
{All amounts are Rs in lakths, except share data or otherwise stated)

- As at As at

24, Short term Borrawings 3ist 215t March. 2024

Working Capital borrowings

From banks:

- Qverdraft (Repayable on demand) . 344.04 203,76

Current Maturities of Long tarem borrowings (Refer note no - 19) 1,953.63 1,859.64
2,307.67 2,083.40

The above amount includes :

Secured Loan 2,307 .67 2,063.40

Unsecured Loan h -
2,307.867 2,063.40

Terms & conditions :

24,1 Overdraft of Nil (P.Y. T 203.78) from Axis bank is secured agalnst equitable mortgage on land and building at Mauza Gopalpur, South Narayanpur, Kolkata-
700136, Additional security of pari passu first charge over the inventory, stack, baok debts and oiher current asseis of ihe company both present & future, parsonal
guarantee of four directors and the corporate guarantee of GPT Sons Private Limited, The loan carries an interest al the rate of 9.35% per annum during the currant
year. The Overdraft facility has been clesed during the year and necessary satisfaction of charge has baen filed with Registrar of Companias {RoC).

24.2 Overdraft of * 344,04 (P.Y. Nil) from HDFC bank is secured by equitable mortgage of Holding No. Rgm- 2/142, Narayahpur South, Block 1, Rajarhat Gopalpur, Fo
Raarhat Gopalpur, Kolkata 700 138, Ps Dum Dum Airport, Mouza Gopalpur, J Na 2, Ward No 6, North 24 Parganas, first charge by way of hypothecation of entire
movable fxed assets of ILS Agartala Hospital (excepl specifically charged to Sundaram Finance, Kotak Mahindra Prime, Sismens Financial Services, Allahabad
Bank) and current assets of the company, personal guarantze of Dr Om Tantla and Mr Anurag Tanfia and Corporate Guarantee of GPT Sons Private Limited, The
loan carries an inlerest al the rate of 7.10% par annumn as at 31st March, 2022.

As at As at
25. Trade Payable 315t March, 2022 313t March., 2021
Due to micro, small and madium enterprises (Refer note 38) 75,95 0.81
Due to other than micro, small and raadium antarprises 2,816,588 2 58808
) 2,892,863 2,588 67
25.1 Includes payable to director of the company is Nil (FY 2020-21 ¥ 154.50) .
Additional disclosures as par Schedule -Hl requirement:
For the year ended 315t March 2022
Particulars Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Unbilled due Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3years| Morethan 3 years
{i) MSME - 75.95 - - - 75.95
(i} Others 82 34 2 666,69 24.54 23.31 v 2.815.88
{iiiy Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - -
{iv) Disputed dues - Others - - “ N N N
For the year ended 31st March 2021
Particulars Qutstanding for followlng perlods from due date of payment Total
Unbilled due Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3years| More than 3 years
(i) MSME - £.87 - - - 061
{ilh Others - 260.04 2 045.591 278.1% - - 2.588.06
{iiiy Disputed dues - MSME - - - - . .
{iv) Disputad dues - Others - - B - - -
As at As at
26_. Current Tax Liabilitles 3MstMarch, 2022 _31st March, 2021
) - 308 11

Provision for Income Tax

308.11




GPT Healthcare Limited {Formerly known as GPT Healthcare Private Limited)

CIN No : UT0101WB1988PLC047402

Motes to the Consclidated Financial Statements for the year ended 3tst March, 2022

(All amounts are Rs in lakhs, except share data or otherwise stated)

27. Revenue from Dperations

For the yaar ended
J1st March, 2022

For the year endad
31st March, 2021

Revenue from rendering healthcare services

~ Operaling Income from indoor patient 18,578.67 13,880.45
- Qperaling Income from outdoar patient £.808.90 3.136.M
- income from nursing school . 177.54 142.00
24 663.11 17,159.38
Revenue from sale of products
- Wind power 38.38 27.20
- Pharmacy Sale 9.075.54 7,024.31
9,113.92 7,051.51
Other Operating revenues
Deferred Revenue Income on Government Grant 54.45 84.45
64.45 64.45
33,741.48 24,275.32
27.1 Refer Note 36 for disclosure relatad to IND AS 115
Forthe yearended For the year ended
28. Other income 3tst March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Interest income :
On Rank f Other Deposits 1.93 1.30
On Loans 339.55 317.68
On investments 11.63 -
On Others 44.85 74.87
397.46 383.35
Other Non Operating income
Rent received 31.92 2435
Liabilities / Provisions no longer required written back 24,78 108.52
Probt on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 9.15 64.77
Profit on Sale of Investments 17.98 -
Galn on Fair Valuation of investments measured at FVPTL 1.32 -
Gain on refirement of ROU Assets 11.33 -
Miscellaneous income 4.96 19.52
101.44 2i7.16
498.90 611.01

29, Cost of material consumaed (Medicines & Other Consumables)

For the year ended
31st March, 2022

For the year anded
31st March, 2021

Inventory at the beginning of the year 534.94 495,78

Add: Purchases ™ §,810.29 5,765.07

9,345.23 5,261.85

Less: Inventory at the end of the year 607.13 £34.94

Total 8,738.10 5,726,931
* Net of Revenue Grant of T 43,75 (P.Y. T 88.98)

Forthe year ended For the year ended

30. Employee henefit expanse

31st March, 2022

31st March, 2021

Salaries, Wages and Bonus ' 4,956.13 3,800.50
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 273.31 243.49
Gratuity [Refar Nota 39) 9479 73.04
Stalf Welfare Expenses 54.15 45.96
537838 4,166.18

—ue ]

30.1 Includes payable to directer of the company is ¥ 56.50 (FY 20208-21 Nil)

For the year ended

Far the year ended

31. Finance costs #st March, 2022 st March, 2024
Interast Expense
- On Term Loan from Financial Institullons 107.95 568.39
- On Term Loan from Bank 82542 575.41
- On Unsecured Loan - 2327
- On Equipment / Vehicle Loan 28,80 41.71
- On Short term Borrowing from Bank 2.12 9.23
- On Lease Liabilities 52.90 35.30
- On Income Tax 4.22 23.00
Other Borrowing Costs

- Other Financlal Charges P 95.98 98.37

VA & 1,11549 1,374.68
oy Q

b
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GPT Healthcare Limited (Formery known a& GPT Healthcare Private Limited)
CIN No » UT001WB1929PLC047402

HNotes lo the G lidated ¥ [al Stat: ts for the year ended 315t March, 28422
(All amounts are Rs In lakhs, except share data or otherwlse staied}

32, Dopreciation & Amorfisation Expense For (he year ended For the year ended
st #arch, 2022 A1st March, 2021
Bepreciation an Praperty, ¥lent & Equlpment 1,185.52 1,167 .80
Deprociation an Riahl of Use Assels 15Y.60 7178
Amartisation of Intangible Assels 5.88 7.53
o 1,569.00 1@%
For the year andod For ihe year ended
33. Other Expenses Msl March, 2022 et March, 209
Pawer and fuel M1.74 678,73
Rent 3048 42.52
Rates and {axes 9825 257.60
NSurANGE 61,25 83.70
n
- Plant and machinery §83.71 460,74
« Buildings 251.41 191,72
-Glhers 28547 208.71
Machine Hira Charges 130.71 83.51
Profassional charges and consullancy fees 10389 41262
Daclors payowt 757203 £,198.24
Prinling & statlanery 242,38 10525
Clutsourced senvices 1,323.16 1.136.12
Travelling and canveyance 127.87 9325
Baym 1] i
- Statulery Audd fee 10.94 8.26
-in ather capadily 0.50 0.1
Bad Debis writlen off . 33.08
Sundry Balances written off 660 -
Proviglon for Doubliul debis 1862 209
Capital Wark-in Prograsas wrilten off - 03,66
Loss an sale/discard of Property, plant & equipment 2062 -
SR Expenses (Refer Note 46) 42.38 200
Diractor's Silting Fees 1748 B
~Adverisement pxpenses ' 254.51 12847
- Busingss pramation expenses 6.54 0.24
{iher Miscallaneous sxpensas 211.05 24245
12,241.58 9.483.00
For the year ended For the year ended
4. TAX EXPENSE J1st March, 2022 st March, 2021
Current Tax for the year 04200 503,00
Dafarrad Tax for the year (inchuding MAT Credit entille mant} 290.28 283.22
‘Tax Expense for current yrar 4,232,728 786.22
Income Tax for earfier years 9.30 FA7}
Tax Expense In Statement of Profit & Loss 1,241.58 71905
4.1 Reconclllation of estlmated Income tax ex; at indian ¥l tax rafe ta | fax exp reported in stat it of compr I
Income
income before Incame taxes £,407.83 288845
Indian Statulery Income fax Rate® 20.12% 20.12%
Eztimaled Income lax expentes 157476 adi. 12
¥ ected Income X expense to re e
Incomis exempt ar not chargeabls to tax (2.57) 19919}
Expenses Disallowed for fax purpose 13.57 4326
I i Tax assels ised on Long-term Capital loss {27.55) -
Additisnal MAT Gradit enlitlerent racognised for earlier years {12400
Others* (201,50 143
{342.48) [54.30}
| Tak exp [ the Stat t of Profit and Loss \ 1,232.28 786.22

* rcluclos amount set.aft from arought forward husiness oss on which defered Lax was not recognised in aarkier years

342 Section 115B8AA of the Income Tax Act, 1951 made effactive for inancial year 2020-21 pursuanl to Tavatian Laws (Amendmeni) Ordinance, 2019 datod
September 20, 2019 glves a one ime ireversible oplion for paymenl of incoms tax at reduced rala w.e.f financhal year commencing 1st Apil, 2018 subject (o cortain
condilions. The company has mads an assessment of Lhe impact of the above amendmenl ant decided 1o continue wilh 1he existing tax slruclure untl wiilizalion of

axisling MAT cradl and brought forward |nss rom spacilied business,

Far the year ended Faor the year onded

48, Earnling Par Share 31st March, 2022 315t March, 2021
Profit 8% per Statement of Profit & 1.oss afilbutable to Equily Shargholders 4,166.26 2,109.40
Less ; Freference Dividand {induding Tax) - 0,04
Profitf f.ass alter Tax and Pecference Dividend {a) 4,166,25 2.109.36
Patd-up Equily Share Capilal {In rumber) {Refar Note 33,1} 72,904,286 53 823,000
Add: Mandatory Equily Shares 1o be issued on conversion of 0.001% CCPS {Refar Note 35.2) - 25,081,288
Fotal Welghted Average number of Equity Shares (In numbaer} for calculating Baslc & Olluted EPS (b} 79,004,286 79,304,296
531 254

Rasic and DRuted Earnings Fer Share {afb} {Nowinal Value - 7 104 per share)

351 The Company has lssued and aflolied 358,82,000 bonus equity shares in the ratio of 2 (wa) Tully paid-up honus share of tha face value of Rs. 10 each for avery
existing 3 (one) fully paid1ip equily share of the fece value of Rs 10 each hald as appraved by the members at (ke annual general meeting held on 3rd Septamber,
2021, In terms of ING AS -33, Esmings per shere of current period and previeus periods have been adjusted for bonus shares issupd during the year ended 3151

March, 2022,

35.2 As stated in nols no. 17(h), the company has issued 26,081,284 equity shares of the campany of face value T10 each on conversian of Compulsorly Convartibla
Preference Shares [GCES). Further, i terms of Ind AS-33 "Eamings per Share® tha sforesald equily shares fo be issued on convarsion of Compulsorly Convertibie

Freference Sharas ((ACPS) has been considared for the calcutation of Sask: EPS for the previous year anded 31s! March 2021.




GPT Healthcare Limited (Formerly known as GPT Healthcare Private Limited)
CIN No : U7101WB1985PLC047402

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022
{All amounts are Rs In lakhs, except share data or otherwise stated)

36 Disclosure pursuant to lnd AS 115
A. Nature of goods and servicas

The following is a description of principal activities separated by reportable segments from which the Company generates its revenua

a) The Company is principally engaged in providing Medical & Heslthcare Services which includes operation of multidisciplinary private
hospitals, ciinics and pharmacies. Besides, the company s also engaged in Wind Mill Power Generation in Maharashtra and has one Nursing

Institute in Agartala.

B. Disaggregation of revenue

In the following table, revenue is disaggregated by primary geographical market, major praducis lines and timing of revenue recognition.

Year Ended Year Ended
i) Primary Geographical Markets March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Within India 33,677.03 24,210.87
Quiside India - -
Total 33,677.03 24,210.87
if} Major Products & Services
Sale of Services
Healthcare Services 24,385.57 17,017.36
Nursing Scheol 177.54 142.00
(A} 24,563.11 17,159.36
Sale of Goods
Pharmacy {Medicines and consurnables} 9,075.54 7.024.31
Wind Fower 38.38 27.20
{B) 9,113.92 7,051.51
A+ B) 33,677.03 24,210.87
C. Contract balances
The following iabie provides information about receivables, contract assets and contract liabifities from contracts with customers :
As at As at
31-Mar-2022 21-Mar-2021
I. Receivablas, which are included in ‘Trade receivables’ 1,342.59 1,726.40
Il. Contract assets {Unbilled Revenue - Refer Note 8) 354.39 327.14
1. Contract liabilities {(Advance from Customers - Refer Note 23) 192.34 101.33
Total {H+1-117} 1,504.64 1,852.21

D. Othar Informaticn

\. The Company generates its entire revenue from contracts with customers for the services at a point in time. Revenue primarily comprises fees
charged for inpatient and outpatient hospital services. Revenue is recorded and recognisad during the period in which the hospital service is

rendered, based upon the estimated amounts due from patients and/or medical funding enfities.

)l Remaining pedormance obligations : The Company has applied praciical expedient in Ind AS 115 and has accardingly not disclosed

information about remaining performance obligations which are part of the contracts that have criginal expected duration of one yaar or less
and where the Company has a right to consideration from & customer in an amount that correspands directly with the value to the customer of

the entity's performance completed to date.

Hl Significant payment ferms : The amounts receivable from customers bacome due after expiry of credit period which is basically 30 - 60 days.

There is no significant financing component in any {ransaction with the customers.
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$7  Contingent Liablities and Commitments As al AR at
— 31-Mar-2022 31sMar-2021
37(n} Contingiont Liabilities {to the extant not provided fort
Bank Guarantess oulslanding 88.46 £2.48
37{b) Capltal Commitmant
Estimatad amounl of canlracts semaining ko be eracuted and not provided for [nel of advances Nil for 2021-22 & T - 017

&86.27 for 2020-21}

371e] Tha Code on Sodal Secusity, 2020 (Code) related to various employes banehls received Presidenlial assen! in September, 2020 and has been published in the Gazetle of
Intin. Howswver, the dala on which the Goda will come [n effecl has not been notied and ihe final ndes! interpralation have not yol been issued. The Company will assess lhe
impac! of ihe Code whan it comes ko effect and will racond any ralated impast in the pesiod the Code becomas effective.

3% Detalls of dues o mlcr_o and small enterprizes as daﬁned under the MSMED Act, 2006 il‘lbll;lﬂﬂd [n Trade payables*
Particulars

As at As at
A1-Mar-2022 31-Mar-
Princigal ameunt remaining unpaid to any supplier &t the end of accounting yaar 76,95 081
Inleres! dua oh ahove o
Totat 7595 081
Amount of interest pald by the Company to tha suppliers In tems of seclion 16 of the MEMED Acl, 2008 afangwith amount - -
pald to the suppliers beyand the respective dua date
Amount of interest due ard payable {ar the year of delay in payrments {which have been pald but beyond the due date during - .
the year) buf withoul adding the inlerest specified under the Act

Amaunt of inlarest accneed and remaining unpaid at the end of accounting year - -
Amsunt of fudber interest remalning due and peyable even in ihe succeeding years, until such date when Lhe inleres! dups - -
as gbove are actually gald to the smaf sntemise, for tha purpose of disaliowance as a deduclible expenditure under seclion;
23 of this Act.

* Tris informalion hae been determnined 1o the extant such parties have been identifled on the basis of infarmation availabile wilh the Company.

39  Employee Henefit (Defined Beneflt Pian)
Tha Company has a Defined Benefit Gratuity plan, Every employee who has compleled et least five years or more of senvice is enlilled to Gratuity an lanns as per the
provislans of The Paymanl of Graiuily Acl, 1872, The schame ia furded.

Tha following tables summarize the components of nel benefit expense recognized in ihe Statement of Profit and Less end the funded stalus and smaunts secognized in the

Balanca Sheet for the plan.
39(a) |Partlenlars 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-24
Ghange In projected benaflt obligati
Ch#gations at baginning of the year 368.35 307.04
Cuiranl Service coel 69,95 51,95
Past Service cost " - -
Intarast Cost 25.42 21.49
Banafits Paid 21.99) {11.68}
Aciuana! {gain} floss {theaugh QCI) 18.06 10.43}
Obligations at end of Ihe year 459.84 a68.38
38(b} |Parllculars 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Change [n plan assets ’ -
Plan assala sl heginning of the year, at fair vahme 8.16 5.05
inlarest ncome 0.58 0.40
Actuarial gain Alass) {hraugh OClY 074 243
Contribulions 2243 11.05
Banefils Paid (21.87} {11.58)}
Plan assets at end of the year 9.94 3.16
38|} Amounl recogmised in the Balance shaet consisl of ! -
Parilculars H-Mar-22 31:Mar-2t
Net Defined Benedit fiablilty / [asset}
Frasent valua of dafined banefil obligaticn al i end of the year 459.84 266.38
Fakr vaius of plan agsets at the end of the year 9.94 3. 18
Not liabliityi{assal) 1 anised Im 1he Bal Sheat 449.90 | 380.22
Ragoqnised - As Cument” 4443 17.80

*The Company expecls lo contribule T 44,49 to its aratuity fund during the next 12 months,

J9(d) |Parll=ulars 31:Mar-22 31:Mer-21
Exg gnized In Stab t of Prafit and Less
Sarvice cast .- 69,95 51.88
interest ¢os! {nel) 24.84 21.08
Total T niged in Stat t of Proflt and Loss {Refor Nobe nc.J0}1" 94,739 73.04
39{e} |Padiculars 31-Mar-22 3-Mar-21

Re-measurement {nalns} f losses in OCI

Actuarial {gain) / fogs Hue 1o Ananclal assumption changes (3,14} LERY

Acluanal (nain) f foss due 10 experience adpstments 2120 (19,53}
Raburn on plan assels tareatsr)fngs then diseount rale [0.74} (2,43}
Tata) exponse fgain} routed through OCH 17,32 {285}

38(0) The major cateqorias of plan assets of the fair valua of the total plan assets are as fallows:

Agtuarial {(galn] / loss due 10 w; ance ad{ustmeonts | 31.Mar?2 i 31-Mar-H |
Invesimants with inguyer ] 100% | 100%
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The principat assumpliens used in datermining gratuity benefil stdigations for na company's plans are shawn below:

Particulars 31-Mar-
Discount Rate 7.10%
Salary Escalalion Rale &.00%
Mortalily Rate IALA (2012144
Wilhdrawat Rala 1% to 8%

H-Mar-21
6.90%
6.00%
1ALM {2012-14)
1% lo 8%

t of Inffation,

The estimates of future salary increase considared in actuanal valuglion take
in the employment martel.

A quaniiialive sensitivily analysis for significant assumplion as at March 31, 2022 is as shown bglgw:

ily, pramotion and other relevant faclors, such as supply and demand

Partlcutars Sensllivity o 31-Mar-22 31 Mar-21

ingroase Bacyease lncroase Decrease
Effects on Beflned Benofit Obligation tue to change in
Further salary increase 1% 516.87 410.63 403.35 316.49
Withdrawal rates 1% 465,685 452.79 361,60 352.88
Mscount Rala i% 491,14 519,09 319.7 403.83

Tha sensilivily analyses abava have been delermined based on a maethod thet exlrapolates ihe impact an defined benafit abligation as a result af reasonable changes in key

assumplions oocuring at the end of the reponing period.

‘Fhe average duralion of the defined benefit plan obligation al the end of Lha reparing year is 5.50 years {March 31, 2021: 5.28 years). The distribulion of Ihe tining of

benefits paymen |.8., the maturily analysis of the benafil payments Is a5 follows :

GCenldbulion ta Providanl / Pension funds (Refar note 30)

arilculars Amotint

Expected benefits payment for the year ending on

March 31, 2023 44.49

March 31, 2024 24,50

March 31, 2025 25,97

March 31, 2026 2669

March 31, 2027 702

March 81, 2028 to March 31, 2032 AERIE |

Defined Contributlon Plan

Partlculars For the year ended | Far the year ended
8istMarch 2022, | 315t March 2021 |

184.21 165.27

Soclal Responsitility Actlvitios™

Diacingures of Gorporate Soclal Responsibllity {£SR) expenditury in line with the requlmrimnt of Guldance Note on “Accounting for Expenditure on Corporate

(1t Ensiring environmanlal sustalnability, ecalomsal balanca

For the year cnded | Fer the year ended
Partloulars A1st March 2022 34st March 2021
{i} Amount of CSR expenditure to be incurred during the year 42,20 2998
(F} CSR expanditure incured during the yaar 42,38 3200
(Hiy Shortfak at he end of yaar M.A. ]
(iv) Teral of Previous years sharfal MN.A, NA
i) Reason for Sharfall N.A, N.A.
{tvi) Ralated party (ransaction a3 per Ind AS 24 in relalion lo CSR il 37.30 11,400
(vily Where provigion |3 made with raspect to a liability Incuved by entering ino a cantraciual ¢hligation, the movemant in the A A
proviglan during the year B L
(vili) Naure of CSR activilias ©
(ay Promoting healibcara 14.94 3200
(b Promating animal wellara 315 -
(c) Promoting educalion 338 -
(¢ Disaster celiel 6,18 -
(e} Selfing up old age homeas gg: -

Leases

The Cempary has entered inte agreements for taking on (pase carlain officas/medical equipments efc. an lease and ficenca basis. The isase larm is for a period ranging from
4 to 7 years, on (et rental basis with escalation clauses in the lease agresmenia. In addition 1o the above, tha Company has cartain leasehold land under finance lease

amrangemenls which has been raclassified from property, plant and equiprent to right of 132 aasels during tha pravious yaar,

a) Carrying value of Right-ofwse agaels

Partleufars
Balance a5 at 151 April,2021
Addition during the yaar -
Disposalsf Wilhdrawals -
Loss: Daprecialion for the year -
Less: Dapreciatipn an Disposals! Withdrawals

Leasehold Land 1a
3.68 760.20

250.92

155.54

157.80

112118

51.85
1,358,853

Additlons during the year

Currait Lease Liahilitlaa

Amount

Eatance as at 151 Aprll,2021 ATE.AZ

s32.27
Finance Cost sccryed during the year S2.80
Less: Retirement during the year 115.02
Luss: Paymenl of Lease Liabilities for the year 142.68
Balance as at 315t March, 2022 503.89 |
Non-Current Lease Llabilities 498.08

105.81

&) Inv the statement of profil and loss for the current year, rent expensas which was earier racognised under other expenses is now recagnised as dapradiation of right of use
assats and Inferes! an laase liabilily under finance cost. The adoplian of this standard did nol have any significant impact en {he prafit tar the year arl esmings per share.
The aperating cash fiows for Lha year ended 31sl March, 2022 fias increased by ¥ 142,68 and the financing cash flows have decreazed by 7 142,68 a3 paymen of lease

(lakililies,

&) The weighted averape Incremental bormowing rate of 8.00% has been spplied tn lease liabilies recognised in lha balance shaet.
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(a}

(b} Falr Value hleramh
Particulars
[nvesimant in Bonds (Quoled Price in Aclive Markels) Leval -]

]

F il Stat

&) Mafurity analysls of leaso ifabllltles :
A3 per the raquitement of Ing As-407 maturily enalysis of Jeasa Kabiity have been shown under malurily analysis of financial liabililies under Liquidity risk {Refer note 43 {c)
(I} The Company does not face 4 skgnificant liquidity sisk wilh regard o [ts lease lisbilities a5 ths curent assots are sulficient to mee! the obligation refated Lo kese abiklies
as and when they fall due.

f} Rental expenses & Machinery hire charges for shorterm (easas, |ow value leases or leases which are cancaliable in nature amounis to ¥ 30.49 & ¥ $30.71 respactively for
the year endad March 31, 2022, (Refer Nole 33)

ts for the year ended 31st Merch, 2022

.-

Capital Management

‘The Compary's objective ko manega #ts capltal is fo ensure conlinuity of business while al lhe same imo provide reasonable reluing 10 is varous sltakeholders but keep
nasocialed casts under comimt. in order to achieve this, requirernent of capilat is raviewed pericdically wilh reference o operating and business plans tha! take into account
capital expendilure and siralegle invesiments. Apart from Internat acerual, sourcing of capitat is dene {hrough juticious combinalion of equily and borawing, both sher term

and kang barme. Nat debt (total borowings} 1o equity rallo s used to manitor capital
31-Mar-21
2.82

and provides additional information on Batance Sheel llems that contain financial

Particulars i
i

3%.Mar.22 |
Debt Equity Ralio 0.60 |

Disclosore on Financlal Instrunsent

This seclion givas an overvlew of lha significance of financial insk
instrumeanis

Tha details of significant secounting poficias, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basig on which incoma and expenses arg recognised in
respect of aach class of financial asset, financial labilily and aquity instrumant are disciesed in Nole no. 2.12 1o the financial stalements,

ks for Ihe Comy

Financiat Asset and Llabilities (Hon Current and Current |
The following tables presenls the carrying value and fair value ol each category of financial assets and Habiltles as al March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021

Parfleubars Balance as at March 31, 2022 Batanse ax at March 34, 2021
FVTPL Amartised Carrying EVTRL Amprtisod Carrylng
Cast Valug Cost Valug

Financlal Aszats
(i} Investmeant in Hon Convertible - 500.01 500.0% - - -
Dabentures
(ii} b stment in Bonds 539,26 - 539.26 - - -
(i) Trade saceivable - 1,342,589 1,242.50 - 1.726.40 1,725.40
(ivy Cash and cash equivalenls - 82580 a8z6.80 - 477,61 477,61
{v) Olher bank balances - 44,38 44,28 - 22,06 22.06
{vi} Loans - 3.871.35 387135 - 5077.17 5,077.17
{wll} Inleresl Accrued on Loans - av.aR 197.02 - 315.38 3338
?;Imz:;?:ns with malurity of more than ) 1016 10,16 ] ) )
{ix) Othar financial assels - 1,460, 76 1,460.76 - A58.46 358.45

539.18 8,252.07 879232 - 1,977.07 7,977.07
Financial Liabilitics
1i) Borrowings - 89,551.67 9,551.87 - 12,292.60 12,282.60
{ii} Lease Liabiities - G03.59 602.89 - 276.42 242
{ii} Trada payskios - 2,892.83 2,892.53 . 2,588.67 2,586.67
{iv) Inlaresl Accrued bt not dua - 30 30.34 - 79.73 T8.73
{v} Capilal Creditars - 106.55 106.55 - 166.04 180.04
{wi) Payabla {0 employses - 49548 495,48 - 102.44 102.44
{vii) Qthers financial liabililies - 17.48 £7.448 - 33.48 33.48

- 13,6596 44 13,698.44 - 15,522,368 15,532.28

Since there 13 no Financiel AsselFinancial Liatiity which is measurad at Fair valua theaugh other Comprehensive Incame, no separale disclosure has been made for the
same In Lhe above 1zhia,

[ Asat 11.03.2022 ’ A5 A 31:03.2021 [
| 530.25 N

ings and olher curent financial assels and kabliies approximate their fair

Thera ara ng {ransier belween [@vels during tha year,

Tha camying value of lrade raceivables, (rade payatdes, cash end cash agur
valuas largely due to the short-laem malurities,

Sinca nong of the financial assalslabiites has been Falr Valuzd thraugh Other Comprahensive Income, no separale disciosura has been given for Leval 1, Level 2 and
Lovel 3.

The fairvalue of fhe finencial &3sets and fiabiilies is included at the amount al which the inatriment could be exchengad in a curent traneaclion between willing parties, other

{harin a torcad ar liquidalian sabe.

, loans, b

FI lal Risk Manag t

The Company has a Risk Managemant Polley which covers risk assucialed wilh the financial 28sels and hiabilitles. The Risk Management Policy is epproved by ibe Directors.
The different lypas of ¢igk impacling the fak value of inancial instrumenls are as balow:

i, Credit risk

The cradit fisk refors (o (he risk that @ counlerparty will default on its conlracival obligations rasulting in financial l0ss 10 the campany. Majority of the Company's transaction
are sermed in cash or cash equivalenis, The imde raceivable comprise of mainly of receivabios fram insurance Companies, Gorporate Companies, Sovernment Undertakings

Cuslomer credit rsk is managed by the Company subject to the Company’s established policy, procedures and condrol relating {o customer credit risk managemanl,
Qutslanding customer recetvables an regularly monilored. The maximum exposure to credil dsk at the reporting data is the carrying value of rade receivable disclosed in

neta ne. 14

More than 't Year &

More than 3 Year

As ot 31st March, 2022 Less than 1 Year Ipgs than 3 Year

Gross Caimying amount 220.40 A34.78 119,19
Expeciod loss rate (Approx.) 2% 5% 5%
Expecled cradit losses (Loss aliowance provistor) 18.41 21.74 82.54
Camying amount of lrade racelvables (net of la3a afiowance) oLy M ) 413.06 27.55
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Motes to the © didated Fi |al Stab te for the year endod 3151 March, 2022
i More than 1 Year &
As at 31st March, 2021 . Less than 1 Yoar tess than 3 Vear More than 3 Year
1,972,309 | £00.23 &6 05
_ 2% 5% i
2345 29 50.27
1,148.54 0,72 16.74 |
Tride Raceivables
Lo5s allowance on 31 March 2020 7108
Changes in loss allowance (Nal) 32,08
Loss altowance on 31 March 2021 WAAT
Chan in |oss allowance (Ne! 19.62
Losg allowance on 31 March 2022 122.79

£, Liguidity risk

The Comprany delermines its liquidity requirernent in the short term and lang 1eem, The Company manage its liquidity dsk in @ manner 5o a3 (& meel ils {inancial obiigations
without any sigrificant delay o strass. Such risk is managed through ensuring operational cash flow whie at the same tims mairtaining adequale cash and cash equivalen!
posliion. The managemenl has arranged for diversilied furwiing sourcws and adopled a policy of managing assals with liquidity menitoring {utura cash flow and figuidly on a
reqular basls. HBesidas, it generally has certain undrawn credit faciilies which can be assessed as and when required; such cradil feciiities are reviewad st regular basis

{if  Maturity Analyais for financlal Habllities
The tallowing aré the remalning canlractual maluritiag of Anencial liabiities as at March 31, 2022,

Particulars On Damand 6 Months Upte 1 ¥r A¥r_3¥r More than 3 YT
MNon-derlvalive

Trade payables - 2,892 8% - - -
Barrowings 344.04 a71.24 89241 3,834.58 3,609.60
Leasa Liabiliies - 51.85 54.16 200.1 287.97
{Hher financlal liabllities

Interest Accried but nol due un bormewinas - 30,34 - - -
Gapital Credilors - 106,55 - - -
| Payable to employess . 405,48 - - -
Others finandial labiitfes 8 57.48 - - .
Tatal 344.04 4,565.57 1,046.57 3,834.5% 3,807,587
The fallowing ara the remaining contractuat mafurities of Ananclal labiiles as at March 31, 2021,

Particulars On Demand 0-& Months Upke 1 Yy 1¥r - 3¥r Mose than 3 ¥r
Man-derivative

Trads pavables - 2.588.67 - - -
Borrowinas 203.78 f88.88 orLTE 4,457 53 53167
{aase Liabillies - 30.19 3188 139,72 14.55
Othor finantial (fabilitles

Inlerasl Accried but not due on korrowings - 7873 - - -
Capltal Creditors - 160,04 - - -
Foayable 1o employaes - 102.44 - - -
Olhers financial labllilles - 3348 - it -
Tatal 203,75 3,882.43 1,002.72 _4 597.25 5,848.22
1. Market visk

Merkel fisk is the risk thal the Fair value of future cash flows of e flnanciat inglrument will fluciuate because of changss in market prices. Markel rigk compnses two types of
risk: inlerest rle risk and foreign curvancy fisk. Financhal instrumeants affected by madkat nsk include borawings, trade receivable and trade payable.

() Interest rate risk: Interast rala risk is he sk that the fair value or fulure cash ficwa of the Gompany's financial inslruments wil fucluate because of changes in market
interest sates.
a) Exposura 1o interest rate risk

Partieulars 31-Mar-22 31:par-21
Flaed Rate insiruments

Financial Assats 4.080,5¢ 5,202.07
Finandial Liablities 63.02 524.53
Variable Rate Instruments +

Finzndial Assels - -
Finandat Liabiiles B,488.85 11.768.07

{b) Wnterest rate Sensitlvity: A change in 50 basis paints In the ntetest rate would have fallowing Impacl an profit before tax and olher equity

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
| PR Impact on Impast 6
Particulars Sensitivity Analysls | tore | Dther Equity Profit beforo Tax Othor Equity
Jax
{intarest rate incresse by D.50% {47.44) (32.69) (58.84) {41.71)
{lntarasi rate decrgase by D.50% A7 44 3363 58.84 M7

(¢} Foreign Currency risk
Foreign currency sk is the fisk that the falr value or fulure cash fiows of an sxposure wil flucluate bacause of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company does not
have significant foreign cumency axposure and hence, &2 not eapesed fo any significant forelgn currency risk.
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44, Ratios as por the Schedule Il requirements

a) Current Ratlo = Current Assels divided by Current Liabilities

Particulars March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Currenl Assels 8,568.54 8,632.93
Currenl Liabitities 6,B47.55 5,999.72
|Ratio 1,25 144
% Change from previous year -13%

b) Debt Equity ratlo = Tola| debt divided by Tolal equity wiere total deit refers 10 sum of Swrent & non current borrowings

Faricutars March 31, 2022 | March 39, 2021
Totat debt 9,551 67 12,292,58
Total equily 15,818.25 13,306,623
Ratlo 0.50 0.42
%% Change from previous year -34%

Reason for change more lhan 25%: There has been improvemen in oparating profits and cash fows during the year ended 31sl March. 2022 as cornpared 1o

earlier year.

c] Debt Sprvice Coverage Ratio = Earnings available for dobt services dividad by Tolai interest and principal repayments

Particulars March 31, 4022 | March 31, 2021

Prolit alter 1ax 4,189.77 2,109.40

Add: Nod cash operating exgenses and finance cost 2474.49 252119

-Deprecialicn and amortizalions 1,350.00 1,247.11

-Finance cpsl 1,115.48 1.374.68
Earnings available for debt services 8,644.26 473113
Interest cosl on borrowings 952.39 1,218.0%

Principal repayments (inchuding <erlain prepayments) 2.868.19 1.238.07
Fotat Interest and principal repayments 3,850,564 2,456,08

Ratio 1.7% 1.93
% Change lrom previous year -10%

4} Relurn an Equily Ratio / Relurn on lavestment Ratio = Nel profit afier lax divided by Equity

Particulars Harch 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021

Nel prafit afler tax 4,189.77 2,109,40

Tolal equity 15,818.25 13,386.63
Ratio 26.36% 15.76%
Change in basis points {bps) from previous year 1060

% Change from pravious year 6T%

Reason for change more than 289 There has been imprevemenl in operaling profits and reduction in interest rales, resulling in enhanced retum on

investmenl,

&) Inventory Turnover Ratio = Cosl of materiais consumed divided by Closing inventory

Particulars March 31, 2022 ; March 31, 3021

Gosl af materials cansumad 8,738.10 5,726.91

Clesing laventory 728,45 642,55
inventory Turnover Rallg i2.00 8,99
F&. Changea from previous year 5%

Reason far change more than 26%: The Gompany has implemented belter imernal controls and improved mankioring of the inventary which has lead to

improvement in invenlory turnowver ratic

f) Trade Receivalles lumover ratio = Gracit Sales divided by Closing trade recelvables

Particulars

March 31, 3022

March 31, 202

Creail Sales 11,503.54 9,635.608
Closing Trade Recewvabies 1,342.59 1,726.40
Ralio 8.57 5.58
% Change fram previous year 54%

Reasan for change mora than 25%: The company has implemented betier internal conlrols for submisslon of claims (0 insurance companies and henca lhe

lrade receivables have inyproved.

) Trade payablas lurnover ratio = Gredit purchases dividod by Closing irade payables

Pariicularg

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

% Change from previous year

Credil Purchases 861029 5,765.07

Closing Trade Payables 2,892.83 2,G88.67

Ratio 3.05 2.23
3%

Reagon for change more than 25%: Due to enhanced operating proflabilily along with impravement in cash flows, the Company has been sble 10 reduce Ihe

Irade payables and hence Ihe iimprovament in the ralio.

mxia ¥




GET Healthcara Limited [farmerty known as GPT Healthcare Private Limited)

CIN Mo : UT010TWE1889PLC04TAQ2

Hofes to the Cr lidated Fl ial Stat ts for the year ended 315t March, 2022
{All amounts are RE in lakhs, except share data or othervrise stated)

44, Ratios a5 por the Schedulo i requirements

h) Net Capital Turnover Ratio = Sales divided by Net Working capital whereas ned working cepltal= current assets - current liabilitios

Particulars March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Sales d3741.48 24,2752
Net Working Cepilal 1,720.99 2,6832.20
Ratio 19,61 8,22 |
% Change from previous year 113%

Reason for change more than 25%: There has heen improvement in operating profits and cash Hows during the year ended 313l March, 2023 as comparad to

aarlier year.

i) Net profit vatle = Net profit af_lar tax dlvided by Sales

|Particulars Mareh 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Net profit after tax 4 165.77 2.102.40
Sales 33,741.48 24 27532
Ratio 12,36% 8.59%
Change in basis points {bps) Trom previous year | ABY

% Change from previous year P 5%

Reason for change mare than 25%: There has been improvement In operating prefits and reducllon in inlerest rates, resulling in bedier Net profit ratio.

j} Return on Capital empioyed {pre cashy=Earnings beforg interest and taxes{EBIT) divided by Capltal Employed {pre cash)

March 31, 2021

Particulars March 31, 2022

Profit before tax {A) 5,407.83 2458845
Firance Cosls {B) 1.145.49 1,374.68
OCther Income {C) 498.90 814,01
EBIT (D} = {AYH{B}-{C) €,024.42 3,652.12
Capital Employed (Pre Cash} {J)=(E)-{F}{G){H)-(1} 24,064,37 25,218.46
Total Assels (E) 32,322.36 31, 7117.85
Currend Ligkillies (F) 6,847.55 £,929.72
Curranl Invastments {G) 530.26 -
Cash and Cash equivalents (H) 826,80 47761
Bank balances clher than ¢ash and cash equivalends (f) 44,38 2246
Ratio (DL 25.03% 14.48%
Change In basis polnts {hps} from pravious ysar 1085

% Change from previous year 73%

Reason for change more than 25%: There has been improvement in operating profits and reduction In interesl rates,
Empluyed,

resulting in higher Return on Caplial
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A,

Related Party Disclosure pursuant to INI» AS -24

Name of Related parties:

&) Holding Company
b} Associate Company

c) Fellow Subsidiaries

o) Entities in which Holding company / KMP
exercises significant influences

&) Key Management Personnet {KMF)

) Relatives of Key Management Personnel

GPFT Sons Private Limited
TM Medicare Private Limited {upto 30.06.2021)

GPT Estate Private Limited
GPT Castings Limited (upto 30.06,2021)

GPT Developers LLP

GPT Infraprojects Limited

GPT Castings Limited (w.e.f 01.07.2021)
Govardhan Foundation

Mr. Dwarika Prasad Tantia — Executive Chairman w.e.f 01.10.2021
{Non-Executive Chairman if 30.09.2021)

Dr. Om Tantia — Managing Director

Mr. Anurag Tantia ~ Executive Director

Dr. Aruna Tantia — Director

Dir. Ghanshyam Goyal — Director

Mr. Naval Jawarharlal Totla (Mominee Director-Banyan Tree Growth Capital iE,
L.L.C. upto 15.11.2021)

Mrs. Kriti Tantia - Chief Finance Officer

Mr. Ankur Sharma - Company Secrefary

Mr. Kashi Prasad Khandelwal - Independent Director (w.e.f. 15.08.2021)

Mr. Bal Kishan Choudhury - Independent Director (w.e.f. 15.09.2021)

Mr. Hari Madi - Independent Director (w.e.f. 15.08.2021)

Dr. Tapti Sen - Independent Director (w.e.f, 15.09,2021}

Mr. Saurabh Agarwal - Independent Director (w.e.f. 15.08.2021)

Mr.Amrendra Prasad Vemna - Independent Director (from 15.08.2021 il
15.11.2021)

Mrs. Niharika Tantia — Wife of Son of Dr. Om Tantia
Or Ankush Bansal - Spouse of daughter of Dr. Ghanshyam Goyal
Dr. Nandita Barsal - Daughter of Dr. Ghanshyam Goyai




GPT Healthcare Limited {Formerly known a5 GPT Heafltheare Private Limited)

CIN No ; U70101WB1SB9PLCO4T402

Notes to Lhe © dictated F fal & for the year endod J1s1 March, 2022
{All amounts are s In kakhsg, except share data or othorwise stalod)

B. Transactions During the Year and Balanca Oulstanding ag at 21st March 2022:
Nature of Transactions Holding Fellow Endtltles in which Key Ralatlves of Votal
company Subsidiarigs? halding pany Manag t Kay
Associaie exarcises significant Par 1 | Manag it
Cappany Influences Personnel
Loan Glven
GPT Soas Private Limited 1.125.00 - . . - 1,125.00
GPT Estalg Private Limited - 325.28 - . - 326.28
F.Y.2021.22 1,1258.00 325.28 - - -] 1,450.28
F ¥.2020-21 {2 083.00) 1218 23] = 3 A 13,205.03
Lwan Pefund recoived (ncluding Interest)
3PT Sons Private Limited 593462 e - -] -] 593462
GPT Estate Privale Limited - 703.82 - . A 793,82
F.Y.2021-22 5334652 TS3.82 - = . 6, 728.44.
F.Y.2020.21 [1,71000 [114.88}| i [ i3 {1.824.58)
ilntorest Income on Advances f Loane
GFT Sons Pavate Limited 12827 - - - : 128,27
GFT Estale Private Lirited + 471 - - - 471
F.¥.2021.22 128.27 4.71 - - . 132.98
EY.2020-31 12687.00H (30.65)| -} i {) {317.68)|
|ingome frem Qutdoor Palients
GPY Infraprafecis Limited - g 0.35 - &) 0.55
F.Y.202%-22 - 4 D.Eii - - 0.55
F.Y.2020.21 i [ {) ] I 4
Oividend Paid
GPT Sons Private Limited 1,255.84 - g - - 1,255.84
F.Y.2021.22 1,255.84 . - - s 1,255.84
F ¥ 2020-21 {388 73} [} & ) {3 906,73
Securily Depasit Pald
GPT Sons Bnvate Limited - - - - - -
GPT Estate Privals Linmiled - 51335 - - . £13.35)
E.Y.2021.22 : 613.35 - - . 613.3%
F ¥ 202021 [ [ {1 [l 2] il
Pharmaey Sale
Dr. Om Tantia . - - - - :
F.Y.2021.22 - - - - -] =
£y, 202021 i {3 & (0.80} 1] {0.90)
[Doctars Payout
Dr Amna Tanka - - - £5.97 - 45.97
Br Ghanshyam Goyal - . - 04.9] . 54.07
D Anhush Bangat - - - . B.62 B.62
Dy Miharka Tanya . - - - .81 7.81
Dr Mandila Bansal - - o - 1.01 1.01
F.Y.2021.32 R . E 140.85) 17.44 168,33
F.Y.2020-21 -} {4 (=¥ {104,51) {50.251] (155.16“
Salary/Remuneration Pald _!
Dr. Om Tantia v - - 175.23 - 175,23
Wr._Aruray Tantia - - - 82 56, . B3 56
Mr. Dwarika Prasad Tanlia ** - N - 131,50 - 131.50
Mrs. lKrili Tantis - - - 4578 - 4578
Mr_Ankur Sharma - - . i - 877
F.¥.2021-22 - - . 444.34 -l 444.84
F Y 2020-21 2 [] ] (151.500) W] 116160}
Dircctors Sitting Fees Paid
Or. fruna Tanha . - . 0.80 : £.80]
L Ghanshyam Gayat . . A 1.20 - 1.20
Mr Dwarika Prasad Tanyg - . - 0.40 . 0.40
Mr_ Kashl Prasad Khandeiwal . . . 4.00 . 4.001
Mr. Bal Kishan Choudhuey . - . .80 - 1.60)
Mr. Hari Modi - - - .00 . 2.00
Dr. Tapii Sen ! | A 00 . 2.00:
Mr. Saurabh Aganwal - - - 2.40] - 2.40]
Mr_Amrendra Frasag Verma D.40 G.40
F.Y.2021-22 . - | 14.80 - 14.801
F.Y.2020-21 ) {3 o 4] [ ]
Cammisslon to Directar
Wr. Bwarka Pragad Tantia - - - hi ! !
F.Y.2021.22 : s - ! - -
F ¥.2020-21 Q] i Q] {154.50) [ (154.50)




GAT Healihcare Limited (Formarly known as GPT Hoalthcare Frivate Limited)

LGN Ho : UTG1G1WE1589PLE047402
Notes to the © lidated F jal Stat

ta for the year onded 31at Mareh, 2022

{Ali amounts are Rs in lakhs, except shara data or otharwlsa stated)

Nature of Transacilons Holding Fellow Entitles In which Koy Relatives of Tatat
pany g fasf halbding PANY M 1 t Koy
Assoal Isos significant | P 1 | Manag t
Comozny Infly Eersonnel
Donation Paid
W5 Sovardhan foundation - - 37,38 . - 3.8
F.Y.202-22 = . ar.as - = 3?%
F.Y.2020-21 ] -1 11,008 (-} {=} {11.00
Paymend of Lease Liabilities
GPFT Eslate Privale Limitad - 8486 - - - 8496
F.¥.2021-22 .| 84.96! . . . £4.96
F.¥.2020-21 (-} 136,003 L] 5] 5] {36.00)
Balance oulstanding as at ihe Yoar end =
Invoetment In Equity Sharos
Tid Medicare Privata Limiled o . - - ] .
As at 39st March 2022 - o . - - .
As @l 31at March, 2021 ) (71.31) [E) [E] % 7131
Payment of Lease Liablllifes
GFT Estale Private Limiled " 13.87 - - - 13.87
As at ¥st March, 2022 - 13.8¢ - - - 13.87
AS &l 3181 March, 2021 [ [+ B [B] =] =
|Seeurity Deposit &
GPT Esipie Privale Limited - 77000 - - . 77000
As at 31st March 20232 - Fi0.00 -] - - 770.00]
A5 gt 31st March, 2021 [ t156.65il [ ) i) {156 65)
Loan [Inctuding intorest acerued)
GPT Sons Privale Limited . - B | - |
GPT Estate Prvale Limiled - | . . . A
As at 3151 March, 2022 - o - | . i
As gl 3is| March, 2027 71571 (464 301 ] [} - {3,180.0t
Othors recalvable
GPT Infraprojests Liniled | - 121 . - 1.21
tMe_Ankur Sharma . - - 0.39 - 0.29
As at 315t March, 2022 - - 1.24 0.38 - 1.60
As 21 31g March, 3021 (-} [€] 4 {0.29) ol {0.28)
Balance cutslanding as af the Year end -
Credit
Dlreetor's Commission payahle
|#r, Dreegitike Prasad Tantia - - . - - R
As at 31st March, 2022 - u - o . -
As al 3151 March, 2023 0] - ) {15450 [} {154 501
Donallon Payable
Mis Govardhan Foundaiion N - - - - .
£ a1 31st March, 2622 E - - - - -
As @t 31st March, 2021 % ¥ {2.5_01’ {) ) f2.5ﬂll
Other Payables * |
Dr. Anma Tanlia . - - 289 e 288
Or. Ghanshyam Goyal . . - ’.% N 7.50
Or. Om Tanlia - . - 5,15 - 5.1
Wr_Anwran Tentia . B - - FRE 4,35
Mrs. Kriti Tantia_ . - - - 2.90] 3.80
Dr. Ankush Bansal 0.88] 088
Dr Nandila Sansal 0.05 0.05
Mr_Ankur Shanna L . - 063 - 0.53
IM( Dwanka Prasad Tanka 5700 - 57.00|
As at 3{st March, 2022 - - . 73.25 8.18 §1.43
A5 Bt 315t March 2021 &) 1 i1 {23 31) {0.63)] {23.84)
Oulstanding Personal Guarantee f Corporate
Guarantzes glven on behalf of he Company
Mr_Bwarlka Prasad Tantia . - - 6.132.40 - 5,132.40
Bir. ©m Taplia - - +! 7,828,856 - 7 B3B.BG
Mr_Anuran Tantia - - -| 8.144.24 - 144,24
Or. Aruna Tantia - . - X - 869,80/
GFT Song Pnvale Limited - X - ,A356.08
As at 31st March, 2022 - - . a5.821.38 - 36,821,38!
As al 3ist March, 2021 i -} {+} {59,545 50V 359,545.90i|

¥ toas nol inglude impact of feir valualion of Security Depsail as per IND AS
* includes payabie lowards Remuneratan and Prolessional Fees

** nciudes Commesson paid {o Direclar

G Key Managoment Por | contpensgation
Particulars For the Tear endnd
3tsl March 2022 315t March 2021
|Shont-Term Empioyee Banelils 444 84 161,60
| Post-EmiHoy Benefits * - -
Long-Term Employe s Banefi - -
Tolal Campensation 444,84 161.60

*As the fulure ligbilily for graluily and lesve enc

ascertainable and Iherefore, not inchsded above.

i
e Aguln
Bt

is provided an an actuanial basis for (he company as a whole, the amaunt pertaining to the direclors is not
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(&

(0)

{c}
(d)
{e)

Trade Receivable, advances and deposits include certain overdue and unconfimed balances. However in the opinlon of
management, these current asset would, in the ordinary course of business, realize the value stated in the accounts.

The spread of COQVID-19 has severely impacted businesses around the globe, inciuding India, There has been severs disruption to
regular operations due to lock-downs and other emergency measures which may have an short-term impact of revenues of the
Compary. The management has used the principles of prudence in applying judgments, estimates and assurnptions and based on
the current estimates, the management expects to fully recover the carrying amount of inventories, trade secaivables and other
assets, Having regard o the abova and the company's liquidity position, there is no material uncertainty in meeting it's liabilities in the
foreseeable future, However, the eventual cutcome of impact of the global health pandemic may be different from those estimated as
on the date of approval of these financial statements owing to the nature and duration of the pandemic.

The shareholders of the Company at the 32™ Annual General Meeting held on 3rd September, 2021 have passed the resolution for
conversion of the Gompany from Private Limited Company into a Public Limited Company including adoption of new Memorandum of
Association and new Articles of Associalion as applicable to Pubtic Company in place of existing Memorandum of Association and
Articles of Assaciation of the Company. The Company has received fresh cerificate of incorporation dated 15th September, 2021 in
the name of GPT Healtheare Limited consequent upon conversion to Public Limited Cormpany.

a) The Board of Directors at its meeting held on June 15, 2021 have approved 2nd Interim Dividend of Rs. 2/~ per equity share of
face value of Rs, 10/ each and special dividend of Rs. 0.350/- per Compulsorily Convertible Preference Share of Rs, 10/- each for
FY 2020-21. The total payment amounts to Rs. 498.82 lacs.

[ addition to the above, the Board of Directors at its meeting heid en August, 20, 2021 have also approved the first interim dividend
for F.Y. 2021-22 of Rs, 5f- per equity share of Face value of Rs. 10/- each and special dividend of Rs. 0.825 per Compulsorily
convertible preference shares of Rs. 10/- each, The tatal payment amount to Rs. 1227.05 Lakhs.

b) The Board of Dirzctors at its meeting held on May 03,2022 have proposed a final dividend of Rs. 1/- per equity share of face value
of Rs. 10/~ gach for FY 2021-22. The same is subjecl to approval of members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and has not
been recagnised as liability. The total cash outflow shali amount to Rs. 799.04 lacs,

Companies consolidated as Assodates in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (IND-AS) 28- "Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures
Name of the Cousitry of Incorporation Proportion of Ownership Reporting Periad and date
Enterprise Interest
TM Medicare India 47.92% Quatter ended 30-06-2021
Private Limjted

The corpany, based on the approval of the Board of Directors, has sold ils entire stake in Mfs TM Medicare Private Limited
(TMMPL} at value of Rs.71.31 lakhs and the differential amount of Rs, 3.54 fakhs between carrying value and sale vaive has been
recognised as "gain on dispesal of associate” in the consolidated statement of profit and loss for the period ended 30-08-2021.
Accordingly, the said company has ceased to be an associale company w.e.f 1st July, 2021.

The members of the Company at their meeting held on 1¥ October, 2021 on the recommendation of the Board of Directors of the
Company have approved Fresh issue of Shares through Initial Public Offer. Accordingly the Company has filed DRHP and UDRHP
with SEBI which was later approved by the SEBI, The Company has also received In-Principle approval from NSE and BSE Limited.

Other Statutory Information
The Company has not revalued its Properly, Plant and Equipment (including Right-of-Use Assets) and intangible assets during the
year.

The Company does not have any Benami property. Further, there are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company
for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Froperty Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder

The Company does not have transactions with any struck off companies during the year.

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the current financial year.

The Gompany has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person{s) or entity(ies}, including foreign entities
(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

() diractly or indiractiy lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company
{Ultimate Beneficiaries); or




{ii} provide any guarantee, security or the like to or an behalf of the Ultimate Benecficiaries

() The Company has not received any fund from any person{s) or entity(ies), including foreign entitles (Funding Party) with the
understanding (whether recorded in wiiting or otherwise} that the Company shall:
{a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified In any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (Litimate Beneficiaries), or
(b} provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimaie Beneficiaries,

{g) The Company have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed
as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

(h) The Company has not been declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government
authority.

(i) The company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause {87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies
{Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017,

(i} The company has not filed any Scheme of Arrangements in ferms of sections 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013 with any
Competent Authority.

52 Previous year's figures have been reclassified/regrouped to conform thd current year's presentation.
As per aur Report annexed For and on behalf of the Beard of Rirectors !
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Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate
companies/joint ventures pursuant to first proviso to sub section (3) of Section 129 of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 5 of the Companies (Accounts} Rules, 2014.

PART-B: Associates and Joint Ventures

Name of Associates/ Joint Ventures

TM Medicare Private Limited*®

1. Latest Audited Balance
Sheet Date

2. Shares of Associate/Joint
Ventures held by the
Company on the year end

31.03.2022
Nos. Nil*
Amount of Investment | Nil*
(¥ in lacs)
Extent of holding (%) | Nil*

3. Description of how there
is significant influence

GPT Healthcare Limited (Formerly GPT Healthcare Limited)
was holding 47.92% shares of TM Medicare Private Limited
and in terms of Section 2(6) of the Companies Act, 2013
significant influence is defined as control of at least 20% of
total voting power or control or participation in business
decisions under an agreement. However, The Company has
sold its entire stake in its associate TM Medicare Private Limited,
Accordingly the said Company ceased to be an associate
Company w.e.f. July 1, 2021.

Shareholding as per latest
audited Balance Sheet (X in
lacs)

4, Reason why the N.A.
associate/joint venture is

not consolidation

5. Net worth attributable to Nil

6. Profit/Loss for the year
R in lacs)

i. Considered in Consolidation -0.02
ii. Not Considered in N.A.
Consolidation

*The Company has sold its entire stake in its associate TM Medicare Private Limited, Accordingly
the said Company ceased to be an associate Company w.e.f. July 1, 2021,
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D:P. Tantia
Executive Chairman
DMN:00001341

Company Secretary

Place: Kolkata
Date: 03.05.2022

nél on behalf of the Board of Directors
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Managing Director
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Executi irector
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